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Revenue 2008
The result was earned on aggregated revenue 
of $4,900.7 million, an increase of 38.6% on 
the $3,534.6 million reported in 2007.

EBITDA 2008
EBITDA for the year was $587.0 million, an 
increase of 66.1% from the $353.4 million 
reported in 2007.

Net profit 2008
The full year result for 2008 was 
$343.9 million, an increase of 53.0% over 
the $224.8 million net profit reported in 2007.

Group Financial Highlights

Five year performance at a glance
        
$m  2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 Growth %

Aggregated revenue1  514.8 1,379.5 2,464.4 3,534.6 4,900.7 38.6

EBITDA  49.0 117.0 219.9 353.4 587.0 66.1

EBIT  40.4 102.3 199.5 319.1 520.0 63.0

EBIT margin  7.8% 7.4% 8.1% 9.0% 10.6% 
Net profit after tax  30.7 66.5 139.1 224.8 343.9 53.0

Net profit margin  6.0% 4.8% 5.6% 6.4% 7.0% 
Return on equity  23.7% 24.5% 32.1% 31.3% 24.5% 
Basic EPS normalised2,3 (cents)  22.4 35.8 66.9 105.4 153.4 45.6

Basic EPS (cents)3  21.6 35.1 66.3 101.8 142.5 40.0
1 Aggregated revenue includes revenue from associates and excludes pass through procurement services for nil margin 
2 Before amortisation of intangibles including tax effect of amortisation expense 
3 Basic and normalised EPS for the financial years to 2006 have been adjusted to be comparable to 2007 as a result of the rights issue in March 2007 where shares  
 were issued at a discount to market price
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The Annual General Meeting  

will be held as follows:

Radisson Plaza Hotel 

27 O’Connell Street 

Sydney NSW 2000

28 October 2008 at 2.00 pm

WorleyParsons is a leading provider 
of professional services to the 
resources & energy sectors and 
complex process industries.

Our services cover the full asset 
spectrum both in size and lifecycle 
– from the creation of new assets 
to services that sustain and enhance 
operating assets.

Front Cover  
resources & energy

Our resources & energy approach delivers 
greater opportunity and satisfaction to 
our people, success to our customers and 
superior returns to our investors.

AGM
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Right: John Grill 
Chief Executive Officer

Left: Ron McNeilly 
Chairman and  
Non-Executive Director 

Chairman’s Review

In a very positive year, 
WorleyParsons has consolidated 
major acquisitions, optimised 
opportunities deriving from global 
market conditions and continued 
to adapt to achieve our strongest 
performance yet, with increased 
profitability. Net profit after tax 
grew to $343.9 million, up 53.0% 
on 2007. We have continued to 
build on our global reputation for 
delivering superior results to our 
customers and our goal of delivering 
prosperity to our shareholders 
and our people.

PERFoRMANCE
This is a pleasing  performance in market circumstances which were 
very positive despite some turbulence in currency and debt markets. 
The Board has declared a final dividend of 47.5 cents per share (up 
46% from 32.5 cents per share last year), taking the total dividend 
for the year to 85.5 cents per share, up 41% from 60.5 cents per 
share last year.

In the year we have continued our focus on growth. We have 
achieved organic growth in our existing markets and segments 
through the development of new areas of these businesses and 
growth through acquisitions. The acquisitions we made in 2007, 
including Colt, have been integrated effectively and are making 
strong, positive contributions. In 2008, we have made a number of 
acquisitions. INTEC is one such acquisition that has continued the 
expansion of WorleyParsons in the deepwater hydrocarbon market. 
Acquired in April 2008 for US$108.5 million from the Heerema Group, 
it continues to perform strongly.

PEoPLE
Substantial among the challenges facing global services businesses 
are the attraction and retention of outstanding people. The Board 
and management regard these as central to the success of our 
strategies. We have achieved a number of our goals in this endeavour, 
including: increased sophistication of our recruitment capabilities; 
diversified sources of recruitment; succession planning; workshare 
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and preferential allocation of roles to existing staff, providing 
them more interesting work and superior opportunities; leadership 
identification; and constant scrutiny as to the competitiveness 
and appropriateness of our remuneration approaches. This includes 
linking senior staff remuneration to performance and shareholder 
benefit. We expect that the tight market for good people will be an 
ongoing condition of our operating environment and we are well 
placed to deal with it.

MARkET
We also expect that oil and resources prices will remain sufficiently 
high to allow our clients to expand. Although these market conditions 
are relevant to our businesses, their impact, while generally positive, 
is not entirely direct, affecting our customers much more than our 
business. Our contracts and relationships tend to be long term and, 
although changing market circumstances are a cause for vigilance 
by the Board and management, no dramatic impact is foreseen.

REPuTATIoN
One of the crucial issues monitored by the Board is our strong 
international reputation, which fuels our capacity to do business 
globally. It is a key element of the trust that we are able to build 
in our relationships with customers, investors, our people, the 
communities in which we operate and regulators. We have to be 
careful that no act or failure to act diminishes the standing of our 
brand or otherwise impacts on our capacity to deliver on customer 
projects and to enhance their businesses. The Board is satisfied that 
our values, strategies and business plans, Code of Conduct, systems 
and other procedures support this priority appropriately.

SAFETy
Safety remains of the highest importance throughout the 
business. While our safety performance is of a very high standard 
when benchmarked internationally against our competition, we 
acknowledge that there is more for us to do, particularly in some of 
our markets that have specific risks and inherent difficulties. In 2009, 
we will continue to focus on our goal of zero harm and in improving 
the overall safety performance of everything we do.

ECoNoMICS™

EcoNomics™, our global program that delivers profitable sustainability 
to our customers and our business, was launched last year and I 
am pleased to report that its goal of being integrated throughout 
the global business and impacting on all customer projects is well 
underway. The EcoNomics™ Assessment service has been developed 
and advanced using sophisticated technologies that were designed 
and brought to market through collaboration between many 
parts of the business. In addition, we have expanded our global 
relationships. Recognising that this endeavour requires a collective 
of skills and resources, last year we announced a number of strategic 
partnerships. I am pleased to announce that we have expanded 
these to include GE. It is in this spirit of partnership that we are 
embarking on the newest arm of the EcoNomics™ business as we 
look at selected businesses and markets identifying opportunities 
for adaptation or reinvention on a major scale.

CoRPoRATE RESPoNSIBILITy
We accept our responsibility in relation to communities with which 
we work and to the environment. This year we have taken steps to 
better record and align our commitments and achievements in these 
areas, to formalise our policies and to better focus our charitable 
donations. Our initiatives include: a policy of indigenisation of work 
wherever possible; education initiatives that range from sponsorship 
of university students in Aceh to sponsorship of a lectureship in 
Environmental Engineering and Climate Change at Imperial College, 
London. Other activities include a number of medical initiatives 
including dealing with malaria in Nigeria and many initiatives 
implemented at the local office level, reflecting the interests of 
our staff and the needs of those communities. The Board and all 
in WorleyParsons believe that the proper, ethical engagement with 
communities across social and ecological issues is positive for the 
communities and positive for our business.

CoRPoRATE GovERNANCE
The Board is confident that a robust governance structure is in 
place and is properly administered. Management has continued 
to upgrade our risk management capabilities, and to implement 
our agreed Values and Code of Conduct to ensure that this is an 
enterprise-wide endeavour.

Finally, I express the thanks of the Board to John Grill, 
management and all staff for their committed, enthusiastic 
performance. resources & energy are our competitive edge and these 
have been focused and abundant in achieving this result. On my own 
behalf, I thank the Board for its support and contribution.

Ron McNeilly 
Chairman
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Chief Executive officer’s Report

WorleyParsons has delivered a 
fifth consecutive record result for 
shareholders in 2008.
It is pleasing to deliver another record result in 2008. Positive trading 
conditions across the Group continue and demand for our services 
remains high. The operating result is outstanding. This is especially 
so in the context of the strong appreciation of the Australian dollar 
in the year.

We ended the year with our reputation enhanced by the great 
performance of the now 32,200 people in the organisation.

Our strong performance in recent years has seen us finish 2008 in 
the top 10 global engineering design firms for the first time. We are 
the second largest international engineering design firm outside of 
their home country.

Significant pressures on project delivery for all participants in the 
industry continued in 2008. We have been very pleased with our 
ability to continue to attract and retain personnel and to support 
projects with an increased portion of workshare. Equally, we are 
encouraged by the feedback from our clients on the enhanced 
state of our project delivery systems.

The successful early integration of our Canadian operations in 2007 
has provided the base for a strong result in 2008. As a result of this 
success we have been able to develop the next phase of growth in 
Canada through the expansion of our other customer sector groups. 
The addition of Westmar Consultants in the second half of this year 
will assist in this expansion in 2009.

This year we have invested another $235.6 million in eight 
acquisitions including deepwater specialist INTEC and Canadian 
consultant Westmar. Since 2004 we have invested approximately 
$443.3 million in small to mid size acquisitions that have added 
significant capability to the Company. We continue to see and 
evaluate similar opportunities as the sectors we operate in continue 
to consolidate. Our financial and management capacity leaves us 
well placed to bring additional capability into the business.

MANAGEMENT STRuCTuRE
WorleyParsons has experienced strong growth since listing on the 
ASX in 2002 and the subsequent acquisitions of Parsons E&C in 
2004 and the Colt Group in 2007. The Company has a leadership 
position in many of its markets.

To ensure the company remains well positioned for current and 
future opportunities and to ensure the ongoing development of the 
executive management team an evolved organisation structure will 
be implemented by the end of September 2008.

The new structure increases to five the number of operating regions 
and also recognises the increasing importance of both Mega Projects 
(projects with capital cost in excess of US$1 billion) and EcoNomics™ 
by allocating separate executive responsibility for these initiatives. 
The new structure will involve relocation and changes in 
responsibility for a number of key executives.

SAFETy PERFoRMANCE
WorleyParsons uses the US OSHA (Occupational Safety and 
Health Administration) reporting standards for Total Recordable 
Case Frequency Rate (TRCFR) and Lost Workday Case Frequency 
Rate (LWCFR).

Under these definitions WorleyParsons’ safety performance for our 
employees for the 2008 financial year was a TRCFR of 0.14, a slight 
increase when compared to the 2007 financial year. Our LWCFR rate 
was 0.02 for 2008, a similar performance to the 2007 financial year.

While our safety performance compares very favourably with 
international best practices and within our industry sectors, we are 
taking our commitment to safety to a new level. We are actively 
reinvigorating our management systems and engaging our people, 
contractors and suppliers in the expectations and programs we have 
to achieve zero harm.

WorleyParsons is increasingly involved in the provision of project and 
construction management services in remote parts of the world and, 
in doing so, taking safety responsibility for contractors. Consequently, 
it is essential that we ensure that these contractors share our goal 
of zero harm – a challenge we are confident we can address this 
coming year. To support this effort we will continue to develop and 
establish our OneWay™ program throughout the Group.

PEoPLE
This is an exciting and challenging time to be involved in the global 
energy and resources sectors. Our global scale, geographic spread 
and continually evolving client service model call for people with 
exceptional levels of talent and commitment, coupled with an ability 
to work cohesively as a team.

WorleyParsons’ continued success reflects the energy, talent and 
commitment of our team of more than 32,200, whether they 
are located at a remote plant in the Middle East or in our Sydney 
head office.

Professional development and training continue to be a major 
focus across all our operations. We recognise that a skilled, 
focused workforce is essential in the rapidly developing 
marketplace in which we operate. Additionally, we face the 
continuing challenge of increased competition as a result of 
buoyant conditions in our industries.

WorleyParsons global workshare and mobility programs are designed 
to meet these challenges and ensure optimal allocation of our 
professional assets to meet our clients’ needs. To this end, this year 
we made further substantial steps in developing highly responsive 
workshare systems throughout the Group.

The principles of workshare mean that we can mobilise talented 
professionals in diverse geographies to work collaboratively on 
the same project in real time. The benefits to our client are clear: 
a seamless, timely outcome in a coordinated, cost effective manner.
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SELECT DELIvER IMPRovE
In 2008 the Company simplified its services into three categories 
that cover all aspects of our clients’ operations: Select, Deliver and 
Improve. Select is a specialist capability of WorleyParsons, focused 
on project viability assessment and selection. Our consulting 
services are also provided through Select. It is an integral part of 
WorleyParsons’ global project delivery capability. During the Deliver 
phase, WorleyParsons converts the highest potential value options 
identified in the Select phase into fully defined, safe and successfully 
executed projects, realising maximum value for our customers. 
WorleyParsons’ Improve delivers major projects, upgrades, 
de-bottlenecking and maintenance projects, project portfolio 
management and support services to sustain assets and improve 
business performance of brownfield operations.

FINANCIAL PERFoRMANCE
The record 2008 result includes a net profit after tax for the 
12 months to 30 June 2008 of $343.9 million, an increase of 53.0% 
on the $224.8 million net profit reported for the same period to 
30 June 2007.

The result was earned on aggregated revenue of $4,900.7 million, 
an increase of 38.6% on the $3,534.6 million reported in the 
previous corresponding period.

EBITDA for the period was $587.0 million, an increase of 66.1% 
on the prior corresponding period and an increase of 23.1% on 
the first half of this financial year. The EBITDA margin for the 
Group increased to 12.0% from the 10.0% reported in the previous 
corresponding period. The Company’s net profit after tax margin on 
aggregated revenue increased to 7.0% from the 6.4% reported in 
2007. The effective corporate tax rate of 28.9% remained in line 
with the rate recorded in the first half of this financial year.

Basic earnings per share (EPS) were 142.5 cents, an increase 
of 40.0% above the 101.8 cents per share for the previous 
corresponding period.

oPERATIoNAL REvIEW
HyDRoCARBoNS
Hydrocarbons remains the largest contributor to the WorleyParsons 
business generating 73.7% of the Group’s revenue in the 2008 
financial year.

The Hydrocarbons business reported aggregated revenue of 
$3,612.5 million for the 12 months to 30 June 2008, representing 
an increase of 40% from the previous corresponding period. 
Hydrocarbons contribution to the Group’s total aggregated 
revenue was 73.7%. Segment EBITDA was $436.3 million with a 
reported segment margin of 12.1% (2007: EBITDA $264.4 million; 
margin 10.2%).

During the period, WorleyParsons completed the acquisition of 
INTEC Engineering, a globally recognised consultancy specialising 
in deepwater subsea engineering and offshore pipelines. This 
acquisition is highly complementary to last year’s acquisition of SEA 
Engineering and the company has combined the two organisations 
into a new entity, INTECSEA, to provide a fully integrated deepwater, 
subsea, pipelines and floating production capability.

WorleyParsons also announced a number of material contracts during 
the period confirming the continued successful execution of the 
Hydrocarbons strategy and the recognition of the advanced status 
of the Company’s project management systems and ability to utilise 
workshare as an integral component of project delivery.

In Australia, following the successful FEED for Woodside’s North 
Rankin 2 Project, WorleyParsons and its joint venture partner were 
awarded the engineering and procurement services contract with 
expected revenue to WorleyParsons over the contract period of 
$190 million.

ExxonMobil affiliate Exxon Neftegas Limited awarded WorleyParsons’ 
Russian joint venture company an engineering, procurement and 
technical services contract for its Arkutun-Dagi platform as part of 
the Sakhalin 1 offshore arctic development. The contract to be 
performed out of our Houston operation comprises $28 million in 
fees for the initial studies with an estimated total of $150 million 
over the expected five year length of the project.

Our UK operations were awarded a FEED contract by Petrom S.A. 
for the modernisation and expansion of the Petrobrazi refinery in 
Ploiesti, Romania. This component of Petrom’s $1 billion vision 2010 
program is expected to exceed $40 million in fees.

In Canada, Colt WorleyParsons was awarded an EPCM contract 
by Consumers Co-operative Refineries Limited for its C$1.9 billion 
expansion to its existing oil refinery in Regina, Saskatchewan, Canada.

In June 2008, WorleyParsons also announced the award of an 
engineering and project management services contract to support 
BP’s global offshore development program, an innovative contract 
application by which BP intends to ensure the completion of safe and 
high quality delivery of its worldwide program of offshore platform 
design, build and installation.

In the Middle East, WorleyParsons was awarded early Select studies 
for the Chemaweyaat chemicals complex which, if completed, would 
be the world’s largest fully integrated chemical complex.

outlook for Hydrocarbons
The outlook for Hydrocarbons remains positive for 2009. Strong 
demand continues to be experienced in all sectors. WorleyParsons’ 
push into unconventional hydrocarbons including offshore 
deepwater, oilsands, heavy oil and sour products together with 
our recognised capability in conventional oil and gas, refining, LNG, 
petrochemicals and pipelines provides us with a comprehensive 
product offering in both greenfield and brownfield sectors that 
customers can access from an increasingly widespread global 
network of offices.

PoWER
The Power business remains the second largest contributor to 
earnings in the Group and continues to deliver strong growth.

The Power business reported aggregated revenue of $469.2 million, 
an increase of 7% on the previous corresponding period. Segment 
EBITDA was $66.1 million with a reported segment margin of 14.1% 
(2007: EBITDA $63.3 million; margin 14.5%).
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CEo’s Report continued

The Power market continues to be driven by a combination of 
increased demand for electricity and increased concerns regarding 
the impact of greenhouse gas emissions. There has been a 
significant increase in interest in renewable energy including solar, 
wind, biomass and hydroelectric on a global basis. The shift 
to nuclear power continues with new projects in the development 
stage in several countries in addition to ongoing programs in Europe, 
China, India, Russia and the US. Demand for natural gas fuelled plants 
remains strong. The continued reduction in conventional coal plant 
approvals impacted our results in the US as did the significant 
weakening of the US dollar in 2008.

Significant new contract awards in 2008 included solar and wind 
projects in the US, Europe and Australia including the Select study 
for the feasibility of an advanced solar thermal plant in Australia, 
major air quality improvement projects in the US, existing coal plant 
upgrade in Russia and licence renewal and performance improvement 
projects for several existing nuclear power plants. The Company was 
also awarded a material contract extension for project management 
services for the Belene nuclear power plant.

There were additional gas turbine contracts awarded in Canada, the 
US, Asia and the Middle East. New contract awards in the clean coal 
segment centred on studies, evaluations and preliminary engineering 
for gasification of coal plus carbon capture and sequestration.

outlook for Power
Uncertainty around fuel choice for power generation projects is 
expected to continue through 2009. This is likely to lead to increased 
demand for feasibility assessments and evaluation of alternatives 
sources of power. We expect continued strong demand for 
renewable energy, gas turbine projects, nuclear services and 
front-end engineering for clean coal projects.

Demand for services to expand transmission networks is expected to 
increase and services to improve the performance and efficiency of 
existing assets of all fuel types, including air quality improvement 
projects, should remain strong.

MINERALS & METALS
WorleyParsons Minerals & Metals business experienced strong 
growth during the period with aggregated revenue increasing by 
61% to $471.1 million. Segment EBITDA was $86.3 million with a 
reported segment margin of 18.3%.

Market conditions continue to be strong. We continue to perform a 
significant amount of Select studies (early stage feasibility) which 
are expected to provide significant follow on opportunities 
as projects reach sanction.

Projects such as Worsley Alumina’s Efficiency & Growth project 
(Collie, WA) and Spinifex Ridge Molybdenum and Copper project 
(Pilbara, WA) have moved into execution phase during the year, 
joining the EMAL Aluminium smelter (Abu Dhabi), Ma’aden Phosphate 
project (Saudi Arabia) and phase 2 of the Pilbara iron ore project for 
FMG as the material EPCM and PMC projects currently in progress.

European operations continue to grow with a number of Select 
studies and early phase projects in Russia, Ukraine and Kazakhstan. 
London is now a well-established hub office supporting the 
European activities.

The Gas Cleaning group is continuing to see growing demand for 
cleaning and energy optimisation services as well as EcoNomics™ 
solutions across all regions with this capability now established in 
Australia, South East Asia and China, Canada and the US.

The Canadian operations continue to benefit from the integration 
with the Colt operations and the recent acquisition of Westmar 
Consultants will enhance their capability to offer full “pit to port” 
resource infrastructure solutions. Toronto continues to develop as 
an alumina engineering centre and is currently engaged in a major 
bankable feasibility study for an alumina refinery in Jamaica.

ARA WorleyParsons in Chile continues to provide a growing regional 
base to secure projects and exposure for WorleyParsons to ongoing 
minerals opportunities in the Latin American region with opportunities 
secured in Peru and Brazil.

Operations in China continue to perform well and provide FEED 
and EPCM services to the specialty chemicals segment as well 
as providing high value engineering and global procurement support. 
Global workshare is being used very successfully to overcome local 
resource shortages.

The Middle East continues to provide opportunity for Program 
Management Consultancy (PMC), EPCM and Improve services with 
strong opportunities in the chemicals and aluminium sector.

Long term Improve services contracts continue to show strong 
growth with a new asset services contract secured with Rio Tinto 
Alcan Yarwun alumina refinery in Australia. The European operations 
have secured long term service contracts with SMR, a subsidiary of 
Basic Element in Russia and Kazakhmys in Kazakhstan.

outlook for Minerals & Metals
The outlook for Minerals & Metals remains positive. While commodity 
demand remains strong from the continued industrialisation and 
urbanisation of China and India, this has been offset to some extent 
by current economic volatility and lower demand in Western 
economies, particularly in the US.

The full extent of the current economic conditions on project 
development in the sector in 2009 is unknown but a significant 
number of projects have been awarded and WorleyParsons growing 
geographic footprint and capability in the “new resource” regions 
should provide continued growth opportunities.

INFRASTRuCTuRE & ENvIRoNMENT
The Infrastructure & Environment business performed well with 
aggregated revenue for the year of $342.6 million, an increase 
of 56.0% from the $219.6 million reported in 2007. Segment 
EBITDA was $49.9 million with a margin of 14.6% (2007: EBITDA 
$22.3 million; margin 10.2%).
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This result reflects a continuation of very strong demand for services 
across the board in the Australian business. In addition to phase 2 of 
the Pilbara Iron Ore project for FMG, the business is involved in Select 
studies for a number of major resource infrastructure projects. Good 
progress was made in the municipal infrastructure sector in Australia, 
including involvement in desalination plants in Sydney, Melbourne 
and Perth in various stages of development.

The Middle East and Asian businesses have strengthened on the 
back of work on resource infrastructure projects such as Ma’aden, 
EMAL, Singapore Parallel Train and Chemawyaat and municipal 
projects for the Land Transport Authority in Singapore.

Strong demand for infrastructure and environmental services in 
Canada has produced good returns in 2008. The scale of the 
Canadian operations following the integration of the Colt Group has 
enabled the development of new infrastructure markets for both 
resource and municipal infrastructure. Further development of the 
business will be complemented by the recent acquisition of Westmar 
Consultants that will strengthen our capability in the public and 
private sectors including marine, port, resource, mining, bulk material 
handling and transportation sectors within Canada, the US and 
internationally.

outlook for Infrastructure & Environment
WorleyParsons has developed a strong capability to support major 
resource projects with significant opportunities for growth in 
Canada, Australia, the Middle East, Africa, portions of Asia and 
Eastern Europe. The municipal market in Australia is also providing 
significant growth opportunities, particularly in the water, 
wastewater and rail sectors.

Environmental services associated with major resource projects 
remains a large and growing market for the Company with significant 
opportunities for growth, in parallel and enhanced by our EcoNomics™ 
initiative in delivering profitable sustainability solutions for our 
customers. The focus on and global concern for water usage and 
the development of alternative water sources, including desalination, 
continues to provide significant opportunities.

ECoNoMICS™

EcoNomics™ is WorleyParsons’ range of services and technologies 
that profitably embed environmental, social and financial 
sustainability into project delivery, across the asset lifecycle.

Substantial progress was made in 2008 in the development of 
the EcoNomics™ initiative launched in 2007. Increasing numbers 
of customers worldwide are utilising EcoNomics™ assessment 
methodology including quantification of environmental and social 
sustainability in project decision making, and then delivering the 
projects with a project team which includes embedded 
sustainability-related expertise and capability.

2008 also saw solid progress in the development of several new 
initiatives including a Select study for Advanced Solar Thermal (AST), 
a commercial utility scale (250 MW) thermal solar power station. 
Uniquely the AST Select study is being funded by a consortium of 
Australian stakeholders including public and private enterprises. 
Carbon capture and sequestration for coal-fired power stations 
and the development options for fully-integrated sustainable 
communities are also underway.

ouTLook FoR WoRLEyPARSoNS GRouP
We expect the markets for WorleyParsons’ services will remain 
strong. Our key markets and sectors continue to experience 
positive conditions and we are well positioned to respond to these 
opportunities. Subject to conditions remaining favourable, we expect 
to achieve increased earnings in 2009.

The Company continues to evaluate opportunities for new business 
growth that will add to our existing capabilities and provide value for 
our shareholders.

John Grill
Chief Executive Officer
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Corporate Governance
INTRoDuCTIoN
The Board of Directors of WorleyParsons (Board) strives to ensure 
that the Company meets high standards of safety, performance 
and governance across its global operations. This is an ongoing 
commitment, requiring continual review, modification and 
enhancement of governance systems over time. The Company 
recognises that it has responsibilities to its customers, employees 
and suppliers as well as to the welfare of the communities in which 
it operates.

The Board, which has authority for the ultimate oversight of 
the Company, regards corporate governance as a performance 
enhancement opportunity for WorleyParsons and has adopted 
various policies and codes and established a number of committees 
to assist it in discharging its duties.

This statement outlines WorleyParsons’ approach to corporate 
governance for the financial year ended 30 June 2008. It addresses 
each of the ASX Corporate Governance Council Corporate 
Governance Principles and Recommendations (Principles) as revised 
and reissued in August 2007, and is divided into three parts:

•  the composition of the Board and governance policies applicable 
to it;

•  the operation and responsibilities of the Board and Board 
Committees; and

•  governance policies that apply generally throughout the 
WorleyParsons Group.

The “Corporate Governance” page in the “Investor Relations” section 
of the Company’s website (www.worleyparsons.com) contains most 
of the documents which are referred to in this statement. These 
charters, codes and policies are regularly reviewed to take account of 
recent changes in the law and governance practices.

The following table indicates where specific Principles are dealt with 
in this statement:

 LoCATIoN IN 
 CoRPoRATE 
 GovERNANCE 
PRINCIPLE STATEMENT

Principle 1 – Lay solid foundations for  
management and oversight 1.3, 1.7, 2.1, 2.2

Principle 2 – Structure the board to add value  1.1, 1.2, 1.3, 1.4, 
1.5, 1.6, 1.7, 2.2, 
2.3

Principle 3 – Promote ethical and responsible  
decision making 1.5, 2.4, 3.1, 3.2

Principle 4 – Safeguard integrity in financial  
reporting 2.3, 3.3, 3.4

Principle 5 – Make timely and balanced disclosure 2.4, 3.5

Principle 6 – Respect the rights of shareholders 3.5, 3.6

Principle 7 – Recognise and manage risk 2.3, 3.3, 3.4

Principle 8 – Remunerate fairly and responsibly 2.3, 3.7

WorleyParsons recognises that responsible, sustainable corporate 
performance is essential to the long term success of our 
business and desirable to all of our stakeholders. During the year, 
WorleyParsons formalised its Corporate Responsibility Statement. 
The Corporate Responsibility Statement can be found on page 18 
of the Annual Report.

PART 1 – CoMPoSITIoN AND GovERNANCE PoLICIES oF 
THE BoARD
Relevant policies and charters – Corporate Governance Code 
(see www.worleyparsons.com)  and Board Charter

1.1 MEMBERSHIP
The Board comprises nine directors in office at the date of this 
statement. Six of the directors, including the Chairman, are 
independent, non-executive directors.

The directors in office at the date of this statement are:

NAME PoSITIoN

Ron McNeilly Chairman

Grahame Campbell Non-Executive Director

Erich Fraunschiel Non-Executive Director

John Green Non-Executive Director

Eric Gwee Non-Executive Director

Catherine Livingstone, AO Non-Executive Director

John Grill Chief Executive Officer

David Housego Chief Financial Officer

William Hall Executive Director

Larry Benke Alternate Director to William Hall

Details of the skills, experience (including the director’s period of 
office) and expertise, of each of the directors are contained in the 
profiles included on pages 19 to 21 in the Directors’ Report.

1.2 CoMPoSITIoN PRINCIPLES
The Board’s composition is determined in accordance with the 
following principles:

•  the Board should comprise at least three members, and maintain a 
majority of non-executive directors;

•  the positions of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer must be held 
by separate persons;

•  the Chairman must always be a non-executive director;

•  the Board should comprise directors with an appropriate range and 
mix of qualifications and expertise;

•  the performance of the Board and its members should be reviewed 
regularly and objectively;

•  all directors (except the Chief Executive Officer) must submit 
themselves for re-election at regular intervals, and at least every 
three years; and

•  all non-executive directors should serve a maximum of three terms, 
unless their tenure is extended by the Board.
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1.3 APPoINTMENT, INDuCTIoN AND TRAINING
The Board’s Nominations Committee sets and reviews the criteria 
for appointment of new directors having regard to the overall 
composition of the Board. The Committee can retain and supervise 
appropriate search firms to assist in the recruitment of new directors.

Each non-executive director receives a formal letter of appointment 
which outlines the key terms and conditions relative to their 
appointment. Senior executives, including the executive directors, 
have formal job descriptions and service contracts.

Directors’ induction and ongoing training and education programs 
are incorporated into the Board program. Directors are encouraged, 
and are given the opportunity, to broaden their knowledge of the 
Company’s business by visiting offices in different locations and to 
keep abreast of developments impacting the business.

1.4 DIRECToR INDEPENDENCE
The Board recognises that various principles and factors are relevant 
in determining independence, but considers that true independence 
is a matter of judgement in the particular circumstances and will be 
determined by the Board with due recognition to the existence of 
relationships capable of affecting a director’s independent status.

The Nominations Committee has been charged with the task of 
considering the independence of its non-executive directors in light 
of the commentary provided in the Principles, Australian corporations 
law and current corporate governance practice.

In assessing independence, the Board has regard to the form (for 
example, a shareholding, or adviser, supplier or customer relationship) 
and materiality of any identified interest, business or relationship. 
For these purposes, the Board considers “materiality” on an ongoing 
basis, having regard to the need to continually reassess corporate 
governance practices and requirements in light of the changing 
circumstances of the Company.

The Board recognises that the Accounting Standards provide a 
useful guide to what is or is not material in a quantitative sense 
(and regards an interest of more than 10% of the relevant base 
(whether revenue, equity or expenses) as material, with interests 
between 5% and 10% of the base as potentially material, 
depending on the circumstances). However, the Board considers 
that a qualitative assessment of whether there are any factors or 
considerations which may mean that the director’s interest, business 
or relationship could, or could reasonably be perceived to, materially 
interfere with the director’s ability to act in the best interests of 
WorleyParsons is a more relevant consideration when assessing 
materiality.

The Board has considered the various positions and relationships 
of each of the six non-executive directors and has formed the view 
that all six non-executive directors are independent. The Board is 
of the opinion that each non-executive director is independent of 
WorleyParsons’ management and is free of any business or other 
relationship that could interfere with the exercise of their free 
and unfettered judgement, to the detriment of the Company, its 
shareholders or other stakeholders.

Mr Erich Fraunschiel, the Chairman of the Company’s Audit and Risk 
Committee, is a director of Woodside Petroleum Limited which is a 
material customer of WorleyParsons in Australia. Mr Eric Gwee is a 
director of Singapore Power Limited, which is a material customer 
of one of the Company’s Singaporean subsidiaries, WorleyParsons 
(DRPL) Pte Limited. Both Mr Fraunschiel and Mr Gwee are considered 
by the Board to be independent after application of the principles 
stated above. In the opinion of the Board, the judgement of Messrs 
Fraunschiel and Gwee has not been impaired or conflicted by virtue 
of their directorships of these other entities.

Mr Grahame Campbell and Mr John Green are regarded as 
independent notwithstanding they each served on WorleyParsons’ 
Advisory Board prior to the Company’s initial public offering in 2002.

1.5 NoTIFICATIoN oF INTERESTS AND TREATMENT 
oF CoNFLICTS
Directors are required to notify the Chairman of any contracts, offices 
(including other directorships) held, and interests in other companies 
or transactions which might involve a potential conflict. In the event 
of a real or potential conflict, the Board acts appropriately and 
minutes its actions accordingly. The Corporate Governance Code 
and Board Charter details the process that WorleyParsons applies 
in the event that a conflict arises for one or more of its directors. 
In particular, a director who has a material personal interest will 
not, without the Chairman’s approval, receive relevant Board papers 
and/or be present during any discussion or vote on the matter.

1.6 INDEPENDENT ADvICE
Each director is entitled to take independent professional advice at 
the Company’s expense, with the prior approval of the Chairman.

1.7 PERFoRMANCE REvIEW
WorleyParsons encourages excellence from all its personnel and the 
directors recognise that the performance of all personnel, including 
directors, is enhanced by a structured performance review process.

Review of Board Performance
The Nominations Committee oversees the conduct of a review of 
Board performance, policies and practice every 12 months.

The review includes:

•  comparing Board performance against agreed criteria; and

•  examining the effectiveness and composition of the Board.

Informal reviews are conducted as necessary and any director may 
suggest that the Board conduct an additional formal review earlier 
than the regular annual review.

From time to time, the Board engages external consultants to 
undertake an independent review of the Board and an individual 
directors’ performance and effectiveness.

The internal and external review processes complement each 
other and ensure that the Board, its Committees and the individual 
directors are subject to appropriate review mechanisms.
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Review of the Performance of Senior Management
The Nominations Committee establishes performance criteria for the 
Chief Executive Officer and conducts a performance review of the 
Chief Executive Officer at least annually. In turn, the Chief Executive 
Officer conducts annual performance reviews of senior executives 
and reports on their performance to the Remuneration Committee. 
The performance and reward of senior executives were reviewed in 
this manner during the year.

PART 2 – oPERATIoN AND RESPoNSIBILITIES oF THE BoARD 
AND BoARD CoMMITTEES
Relevant policies and charters – Corporate Governance Code 
(see www.worleyparsons.com)  and Board Charter 
 – Nominations Committee  
  Charter 
 – Remuneration Committee  
  Charter  
 – Audit and Risk Committee  
  Charter  
  – Continuous Disclosure Policy

2.1 BoARD RESPoNSIBILITIES AND DELEGATIoN To SENIoR 
MANAGEMENT
The Board’s responsibilities and those matters delegated to senior 
management are encompassed in the Corporate Governance Code 
and Board Charter.

The Board is responsible for approving the strategic direction 
and objectives of WorleyParsons. It monitors all aspects of 
WorleyParsons’ performance. The Board works with senior executives 
to formulate strategic direction, to set goals, budgets, plans and 
policies and to identify and mitigate risk.

The deliberations of the directors in the Board meetings and the 
application of WorleyParsons’ policies are aimed at allowing the 
Board to critically and objectively review management’s performance 
and to ensure that senior management’s activities are aligned with 
the expectations of shareholders.

The Board has delegated certain of its powers relating to the 
management of the Company’s operations to the Chief Executive 
Officer, with the mandate to drive the Company’s strategic direction 
and meet the goals determined by the Board.

The Chief Executive Officer is supported in his role by a number of 
management committees, including the CEO’s Committee and the 
Regional Management Committees. The CEO’s Committee supports 
the Chief Executive Officer by formulating and reviewing Group 
policies and initiatives which affect the global business, and also 
reviews items that are to be referred to the Board for approval. The 
five Regional Management Committees have an operational focus 
and are responsible for managing the business of specific geographic 
regions. These Committees are also responsible for monitoring 
compliance with WorleyParsons’ codes and policies.

2.2 BoARD MEETINGS
The Board meets formally at least six times a year, with additional 
meetings held as required. Senior executives are invited to attend 
Board meetings on a regular basis, even if they are not members of 
the Board. This provides a direct line of communication between the 
directors and management. However, non-executive directors meet 
at least twice a year in the absence of management.

Details of the Board and Committee meetings held and attendances 
at those meetings are set out in the Directors’ Report on page 19. 
Details of the qualifications of Committee members are included on 
pages 19 to 21 in the Directors’ Report.

2.3 BoARD CoMMITTEES
To ensure the Board is well equipped to discharge its responsibilities 
and to assist the Board in carrying out its responsibilities, it 
has established three standing committees: the Audit and Risk 
Committee, Nominations Committee and the Remuneration 
Committee.

Each Committee has a non-executive director as Chairman and only 
non-executive directors can be members of the Committees. Each 
Committee has a Charter, which is reviewed annually by the relevant 
Committee and the Board.

Members of senior management may attend Committee meetings 
upon invitation from the relevant Chairman.

Audit and Risk Committee
The Audit and Risk Committee assists the Board in its oversight of 
the integrity of financial reporting, the Company’s risk management 
framework and internal controls. The Committee has an important 
role in supervising and monitoring the progress of both the 
internal audit and risk management functions. It also manages the 
relationship with the external auditor including the appointment, 
removal and evaluation of the auditor and approval of the auditor’s 
contract, fees and audit plan.

The Audit and Risk Committee also reviews and makes 
recommendations on the strategic direction, objectives and 
effectiveness of the Company’s financial and operational risk 
management processes. This includes consideration of the 
effectiveness of risk management processes in mitigating material 
business risks, compliance and internal control systems.

The following directors were members of the Audit and Risk 
Committee during the year:

NAME PoSITIoN DuRATIoN

Erich Fraunschiel  Chairman of the Committee 
and Non-Executive  
Director Whole year

Grahame Campbell Non-Executive Director Whole year

John Green Non-Executive Director  July 2007 – 
August 2007

Catherine Livingstone, AO Non-Executive Director Whole year
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The Audit and Risk Committee, on behalf of the Board, ensures the 
integrity of the external audit function by not permitting:

•  the partner managing the audit for the external auditor to serve for 
more than five consecutive years; and/or

•  the external auditor to be retained for non-audit work where such 
retainer may detract, or be perceived to detract, from the auditor’s 
independence or impartiality.

The Committee is responsible for nominating the external auditor to 
the Board.

In accordance with the Company’s external audit rotation policy, the 
external audit partner was changed in the 2007 financial year.

Fees paid to the external auditor for non-audit work are disclosed in 
the financial statements.

Nominations Committee
From August 2007, the Nominations and Remuneration Committee 
was split into two separate committees: the Nominations Committee 
and the Remuneration Committee.

The role of the Nominations Committee is to assist and advise the 
Board on matters relating to the composition and performance of 
the Board, including director independence, and the appointment, 
performance review and remuneration of the Chief Executive Officer. 
The Committee reviews, assesses and advises the Board in relation 
to the necessary and desirable competencies of the Board and the 
Committee. It also oversees the selection and appointment practices 
for non-executive directors.

All of the non-executive directors are members of the Nominations 
Committee:

NAME PoSITIoN DuRATIoN

Ron McNeilly  Chairman of the  
Committee and Chairman  
of the Board and  
Non-Executive Director From August 2007

Grahame Campbell Non-Executive Director From August 2007

Erich Fraunschiel Non-Executive Director From August 2007

John Green Non-Executive Director From August 2007

Eric Gwee Non-Executive Director From August 2007

Catherine Livingstone,  
AO Non-Executive Director From August 2007

Remuneration Committee
The role of the Remuneration Committee is to assist and advise the 
Board on matters relating to the remuneration of the Board, and 
the performance and remuneration of the Chief Executive Officer’s 
direct reports. The Committee is responsible for ensuring that 
WorleyParsons has and observes coherent remuneration policies and 
practices which enable it to:

•  attract and retain executives, directors and employees who will 
create value for shareholders;

•  generate sustained business performance; and

•  support WorleyParsons’ objectives, goals and values.

Further details as to the operation of the Committee are set out in 
the Remuneration Report at page 21 of the annual report.

The following directors were members of the Remuneration 
Committee during the year:

NAME PoSITIoN DuRATIoN

John Green  Chairman of the  
Committee and  
Non-Executive Director From August 2007

Ron McNeilly Non-Executive Director From August 2007

Grahame Campbell Non-Executive Director  July 2007

Eric Gwee Non-Executive Director From August 2007

2.4 oTHER MANAGEMENT CoMMITTEES
In addition to the CEO’s Committee and the Regional Management 
Committees, a number of management committees assist the Board 
in monitoring and overseeing the Company’s policies and codes, with 
a view to reinforcing the Board’s commitment to a culture of good 
corporate governance and strong ethical standards and integrity.

Disclosure Committee
The Continuous Disclosure Policy provides for a Disclosure 
Committee to meet to consider issues which may be of interest to 
shareholders and the market in general. The role of the Disclosure 
Committee is to consider issues which are potentially material and 
price sensitive and to determine whether the matter needs to be 
disclosed to the market.

Ethics Committee
The role of the Ethics Committee is to:

•  assess, develop, implement and oversee Company ethics on a global 
basis;

•  provide the oversight necessary to guide senior management and 
employees in their collaborative efforts to adhere to activities that 
encourage and reinforce good business practices and maintenance 
of regulatory requirements; and

•  recommend to the Chief Executive Officer and the CEO’s 
Committee the objectives, policies and procedures that best serve 
the Company’s interests in maintaining a business environment 
committed to high standards of ethics and integrity, corporate 
responsibility and legal compliance.

The Ethics Committee provides a centralised function through which 
ethical issues may be reported and investigated.
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PART 3 – GovERNANCE PoLICIES APPLyING To THE 
WoRLEyPARSoNS GRouP
Relevant policies and charters – Corporate Governance Code 
(see www.worleyparsons.com)  and Board Charter 
 – Nominations Committee  
  Charter 
 – Remuneration Committee  
  Charter 
 – Audit and Risk Committee 
  Charter 
 – Code of Conduct 
 – Securities Dealing Policy 
 – Continuous Disclosure Policy 
 – Risk Management Policy

3.1 ETHICAL DECISIoN MAkING – THE CoDE oF CoNDuCT
The Board has published various policies and codes to promote 
WorleyParsons’ approach to ethical and responsible decision making.

The WorleyParsons Code of Conduct guides WorleyParsons personnel 
as to the standards of behaviour expected of all directors, executives, 
management, employees, contractors and agents of the Company. 
The Code has been translated into Chinese, Bulgarian, Russian, 
Kazakh, Romanian, Spanish, French, Arabic and Vietnamese.

While the Code of Conduct seeks to prescribe standards of behaviour 
for all personnel to observe, it does not, and understandably cannot, 
identify every ethical issue that a director or employee might face. 
The objective of the Code is to provide a benchmark for professional 
behaviour throughout the Company, to support WorleyParsons’ 
reputation and make directors, employees and others aware of the 
consequences if they breach the Code.

The Code of Conduct deals with many ethical issues, including:

•  WorleyParsons’ commitment to a safe and harassment-free 
workplace;

•  good corporate citizenship and compliance with laws;

•  acting with professional integrity; and

•  protecting WorleyParsons’ reputation, assets, resources, information 
and records.

The Code is provided to employees of WorleyParsons upon 
commencement of their employment and is accessible on the 
Company’s intranet or via their human resources representative.

The Board regularly reviews the Code of Conduct and each of the 
policies which underlie and expand on the Code’s requirements to 
ensure they remain appropriate.

3.2 PREvENTING INSIDER TRADING AND HEDGING
The Board has approved a Securities Dealing Policy that applies to 
all directors, employees and contractors of the Company and its 
subsidiaries. The Policy is designed to:

•  explain the type of conduct in relation to dealings in securities that 
is prohibited under the relevant law and by WorleyParsons; and

•  establish a best practice procedure for buying, selling or otherwise 
acquiring WorleyParsons securities by only allowing trading during 
specified trading windows or with prior approval from the Chief 
Executive Officer or Chief Financial Officer.

Directors and executives are not generally permitted to hedge their 
shareholdings except as prescribed in the Securities Dealing Policy. 
Performance rights may not be hedged.

“Hedging” includes entering into any transaction or arrangement 
in financial products which operates to limit the economic risk of 
a security holding in the Company, including equity swaps and 
contracts for difference. Details of the Company’s policy in relation 
to hedging are contained in the Remuneration Report on page 21 
of the annual report.

During 2008, the Securities Dealing Policy (SD Policy) was 
reviewed. Following the review, the SD Policy was updated to 
include amendments which address the application of the Policy to 
exchangeable shares, the determination of trading windows and 
the application of the Policy to margin loans. In relation to margin 
loans, the Company has a policy that where there is, or the director 
or executive reasonably believes there will be, an unmet margin call, 
an event of default or another similar occurrence in relation to the 
arrangements, the director or executive must immediately disclose 
to the Company Secretary or Chief Financial Officer the necessary 
information so the Company can comply with its continuous 
disclosure obligations. Any dealings for the purposes of a margin 
loan arrangement must be in accordance with the SD Policy.

3.3 MANAGEMENT oF MATERIAL BuSINESS RISkS
During the year, the Company applied a codified approach to risk 
management across the enterprise via its Global Risk Management 
Policy and Framework. The Risk Management Framework supports 
the Risk Management Policy and describes the objectives, strategies, 
resources and responsibilities for managing risk.

WorleyParsons’ enterprise-wide risk management approach is based 
on Australian Standard AS/NZS 4360:2004 (Risk Management). This 
approach adopts best practice in risk management so far as it relates 
to WorleyParsons’ requirements. The Company’s Risk Management 
systems are mature and embedded throughout the operations via 
WorleyParsons Electronic Management System.

WorleyParsons has processes to systematically identify, assess, and 
report on both financial and non-financial material business risks. 
A Strategic and Operational Corporate Risk Management report is 
prepared and analysed by both Management and the Board. This 
process enables the Board to consider the effectiveness of the 
Company’s risk management of its material business risks. The Board 
has also received a written assurance from the Chief Executive 
Officer and the Chief Financial Officer that the declaration provided 
by them in accordance with section 295A of the Corporations Act is 
founded on a sound system of risk management and control and that 
the system is functioning effectively in relation to financial reporting 
and other operating risks.
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3.4 INTERNAL AuDIT
The Internal Audit function is independent from management and 
is overseen by the Audit and Risk Committee. It provides assurance 
that WorleyParsons’ material business risks are being managed 
appropriately and that its internal control framework is operating 
effectively. In addition to its ongoing audit reports, the General 
Manager of Internal Audit provides an annual assessment of the 
adequacy and effectiveness of WorleyParsons’ control processes and 
risk management procedures in light of the nature, function and size 
of the Company’s operations to the Audit and Risk Committee.

3.5 CoNTINuouS DISCLoSuRE
The Board is committed to ensuring that WorleyParsons complies 
with its continuous disclosure obligations and has approved a 
Continuous Disclosure Policy that applies to all WorleyParsons 
personnel. The Board seeks to promote investor confidence by 
ensuring that trading in WorleyParsons’ shares takes place in an 
informed and competitive market. The Policy provides for a Disclosure 
Committee to meet to consider issues which may be of interest to 
shareholders and the market in general.

The Continuous Disclosure Policy is designed to ensure that all 
WorleyParsons personnel are aware of WorleyParsons’ obligations 
and to ensure accountability at a senior management level for timely 
disclosure of material information. This means that shareholders 
and the market in general are kept properly informed of material 
price sensitive information affecting the Company, on a timely basis. 
WorleyParsons discharges this obligation by releasing material price 
sensitive information to the ASX in the form of an ASX release and 
disclosure in other documents distributed to shareholders, such as 
the annual or half year report.

3.6 CoMMuNICATING WITH SHAREHoLDERS
The Board aims to ensure that the shareholders are fully informed of 
all material information relating to WorleyParsons by communicating 
to shareholders through:

•  continuous disclosure reporting to the ASX;

•  the annual report;

•  the half year report; and

•  media releases and other investor relations publications on the 
Company’s website.

The comprehensive Continuous Disclosure Policy outlines the 
procedures for disclosure of relevant information to the market 
(see above) and incorporates the Company’s communications policy.

The Board encourages the full participation of shareholders at the 
Annual General Meeting to ensure a high level of accountability and 
discussion of the Company’s performance and goals. The Chairman 
encourages questions and comments from shareholders and 
seeks to ensure that shareholders are given ample opportunity to 
participate. The Chief Executive Officer and/or the Chief Financial 
Officer along with other executives occasionally meet with analysts 
and investors. Any presentations made to these groups are released 
to the market via the ASX and published on the investor section of 
the Company’s website.

The external auditor attends the Annual General Meeting and is 
available to answer shareholder questions about the conduct of the 
audit and the preparation and content of the auditor’s report.

3.7 REMuNERATIoN oF DIRECToRS AND SENIoR EXECuTIvES
WorleyParsons seeks to attract and retain directors and executives 
with the appropriate expertise and the ability to create value for 
shareholders.

The remuneration structure for the non-executive directors is not 
related to performance; non-executive directors receive fees which 
reflect their skills, responsibilities and the time commitments required 
from the non-executive director in the discharge of their duties. The 
remuneration structure for senior executives reflects the Company’s 
performance culture: there is a direct correlation between the 
executive’s reward and individual and Company performance.

Further details of the remuneration policies and practices of 
the Company (including those regarding retirement benefits for 
non-executive directors and the Company’s hedging policy) and the 
remuneration paid to directors and senior executives are set out in 
the Remuneration Report on pages 21 to 27 of the annual report.
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The directors present their report on the consolidated entity consisting 
of WorleyParsons Limited (Parent Entity or Company) and the entities it 
controlled (consolidated entity or Group) at the end of, or during, the financial 
year ended 30 June 2008.

DIRECTORS

The following persons were directors of the Company during the financial 
year and until the date of this report:

Ron McNeilly (Chairman)

Grahame Campbell

Erich Fraunschiel

John Green

John Grill (Chief Executive Officer)

Eric Gwee

William Hall

David Housego

Catherine Livingstone, AO

Larry Benke (alternate executive director for William Hall)

As at the date of this report, the interests of the directors in the shares of 
the Company were:

DIRECTORS NUMBER OF SHARES AND 
 PERFORMANCE RIGHTS

Ron McNeilly 382,291

Grahame Campbell 505,914

Erich Fraunschiel 166,262

John Green 942,851

John Grill 33,102,629

Eric Gwee 4,582

William Hall 16,138

David Housego 175,175

Catherine Livingstone, AO 5,315

Larry Benke (alternate executive director) 1,177,475

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

During the financial year, the principal activities of the consolidated entity 
consisted of:

(a)  provision of engineering design and project services to the following 
sectors:

	 •	 	Hydrocarbons

	 •	 	Power

	 •	 	Minerals	&	Metals

	 •	 	Infrastructure	&	Environment;

(b)  provision of maintenance and reliability support services to these 
sectors;	and

(c) infrastructure developments.

DIVIDENDS – WORLEYPARSONS LIMITED

Details of dividends paid in respect of the financial year were as follows:

 2008 2007 
 $’M $’M

Interim ordinary dividend for the financial year ended  
30 June 2008 of 38.0 cents per ordinary share paid on  
11 April 2008# 91.9 –

Final ordinary dividend for the financial year ended  
30 June 2007 of 32.5 cents per ordinary share paid on  
25 September 2007# 78.2 –

Interim ordinary dividend for the financial year ended  
30 June 2007 of 28.0 cents per ordinary share paid on  
14 March 2007# – 57.5

Final ordinary dividend for the financial year ended  
30 June 2006 of 22.5 cents per ordinary share paid on  
29 September 2006# – 46.1

Total dividends paid 170.1 103.6

# Partly franked dividend.

Since the end of the financial year, the directors have declared a final 
dividend of 47.5 cents per fully paid ordinary share, including exchangeable 
shares, partly franked based on tax paid at 30%. In accordance with 
AASB 137 “Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets”, the 
aggregate amount of the proposed final dividend of $114.8 million is not 
recognised as a liability as at 30 June 2008.

REVIEW OF OPERATIONS

A detailed review of the operations for the financial year of the Group and 
the results of those operations are contained in the Chairman’s Letter and 
Chief Executive Officer’s Report.

A summary of the consolidated revenues and results is as follows:

  CONSOLIDATED

 2008 2007 
 $’M $’M

Revenue 4,670.1 3,512.5

EBITDA margin on statutory revenue 12.6% 10.1%

EBITDA 587.0 353.4

Depreciation (23.4) (17.0)

Amortisation (43.6) (17.3)

EBIT 520.0 319.1

Net interest expense (31.7) (12.9)

Profit before income tax expense 488.3 306.2

Income tax expense (141.0) (79.9)

Profit after income tax expense 347.3 226.3

Profit attributable to minority interests (3.4) (1.5)

Profit attributable to members of  
WorleyParsons Limited 343.9 224.8

Revenue 4,670.1 3,512.5

Procurement services revenue (196.1) (357.8)

Revenue excluding procurement services revenue 4,474.0 3,154.7

Share of revenue from associates 855.9 691.8

Procurement services revenue of associates (392.7) (292.2)

Net revenue from associates 463.2 399.6

Share of net profits of associates (36.5) (19.7)

Aggregated revenue1 4,900.7 3,534.6

EBITDA margin on aggregated revenue 12.0% 10.0%

1  Aggregated revenue is defined as statutory revenue plus share of revenue from associates less 
procurement services revenue at nil margin. The directors believe the disclosure of revenue 
attributable to associates provides additional information in relation to the financial performance 
of WorleyParsons.
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 AGGREGATED REVENUE EBITDA EBITDA MARGIN

 2008 2007 2008 2007 2008 2007 
 $’M $’M $’M $’M % %

Hydrocarbons 3,612.5 2,585.0 436.3 264.4 12.1 10.2

Power 469.2 437.4 66.1 63.3 14.1 14.5

Minerals  
&	Metals	 471.1	 292.7	 86.3	 43.7	 18.3	 14.9

Infrastructure  
&	Environment	 342.6	 219.6	 49.9	 22.3	 14.6	 10.2

Other 18.3 11.8 – – – –

Unallocated/ 
eliminations (13.0) (11.9) (51.6) (40.3) – –

 4,900.7 3,534.6 587.0 353.4 12.0 10.0

Aggregated revenue was $4,900.7 million, an increase of 38.6% on the prior 
year. EBITDA of $587.0 million was up 66.1% from the prior year result of 
$353.4 million.

The EBITDA margin for the Group increased to 12.0% compared with 10.0% 
in 2007. After tax, the Company earned a net margin on aggregated revenue 
of 7.0%, compared to the 2007 net margin of 6.4%. The effective tax rate 
was 28.9% compared with 26.1% in 2007.

The Group retains a strong cash position and low level of gearing with 
net debt to net debt + equity at year end of 31.4% (2007: 22.3%). 
Cash including cash held for sale as at 30 June 2008 was $86.0 million 
(2007: $118.6 million). EBITDA interest cover for 2008 was 12 times 
(2007: 16 times).

Operating cash flow for the period was $198.8 million, compared to 
$195.9 million in 2007. Cash outflow from investing activities was 
$325.6 million (2007: $905.8 million).

EARNINGS PER SHARE
 2008 2007 
 CENTS CENTS

Basic earnings per share 142.5 101.8

Diluted earnings per share 140.8 100.4

Basic earnings per share were 142.5 cents per share, an increase of 40.0% 
from the previous financial year result of 101.8 cents per share.

SIGNIFICANT CHANGES IN THE STATE OF AFFAIRS
Effective 1 July 2007, the Group acquired 100% of Sydney based Patterson 
Britton and Partners Pty Ltd and Brisbane based John Wilson and Partners Pty 
Ltd and John Wilson and Partners (Services) Pty Ltd for consideration of 
$32.5 million. Patterson Britton and Partners and John Wilson and Partners 
are regarded as two of the leading consultants in the water and 
environmental services market in Australia with specific capabilities in the 
coastal and marine, water resources and waste water, environmental, civil 
and structural and power markets.

Effective 31 August 2007, the Group acquired 100% of Polestar Applied 
Technology Inc for $12.7 million. The acquisition of Polestar increases 
WorleyParsons’ capability in nuclear power consulting and analysis segment 
of the international nuclear power industry. The acquisition is considered to 
be of strategic significance as it extends the Group’s capabilities in the 
nuclear power industry. Polestar has offices in the UK and USA.

Effective 1 November 2007, the Group acquired 100% of UniField 
Engineering Inc. for $17.9 million. The acquisition will expand the Group’s 
power business in western USA and increase asset services in the 
Hydrocarbons sector.

Effective 16 April 2008, the Group acquired INTEC Engineering for 
consideration of $117.6 million. INTEC Engineering provides engineering and 
project services to the offshore exploration and production and transportation 
sectors of the oil and gas industry, with a particular focus on deepwater. 
Headquartered in Houston, INTEC has over 500 professional staff with offices 
in London, Delft, Rio de Janeiro, Kuala Lumpur, Perth and Lagos.

Effective 30 June 2008, the Group acquired Westmar Consultants Inc 
(Westmar) for $49.5 million. Westmar is a leading Canadian based marine and 
port facility, resource and mining infrastructure, bulk material handling and 
transportation specialist with over 275 professional staff. Westmar operates 
in Canada and on the northwest coast of North America.

In April 2008, unsecured notes payable were issued in the United States 
private debt market. The issue comprised US$144.5 million maturing in 2018 
with a fixed coupon of 6.5% per annum.

MATTERS SUBSEQUENT TO THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR
There has not arisen in the period between 30 June 2008 and the date of 
this report any item, transaction or event of a material and unusual nature 
likely in the opinion of the directors of the Company to affect significantly 
the operations of the Group, the results of those operations or the state of 
affairs of the Group, in future financial years.

LIKELY DEVELOPMENTS AND EXPECTED RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
We expect the markets for WorleyParsons’ services will remain strong. Our 
key markets and sectors continue to experience positive conditions and we 
are well positioned to respond to these opportunities. Subject to conditions 
remaining favourable, we expect to achieve increased earnings in 2009.

The Company continues to evaluate opportunities for new business growth 
that will add to our existing capabilities and provide value for our shareholders.

ENVIRONMENTAL REGULATION
In the majority of WorleyParsons’ business situations, WorleyParsons is not the 
owner or operator of plant and equipment requiring environmental licences. 
WorleyParsons typically assists its customers with the management of their 
environmental responsibilities, rather than holding those responsibilities 
directly. However, WorleyParsons has environmental responsibilities in terms 
of compliance with environmental controls and in exercising reasonable care 
and skill in its design, construction management and supervision activities. 
The risks associated with environmental issues are managed through 
WorleyParsons’ risk management and quality assurance systems.

WorleyParsons Komex is a division of WorleyParsons Canada which provides 
environmental consulting and monitoring services to industrial customers. 
WorleyParsons Komex is also involved in remediation of contaminated sites 
for its customers and in the past acquired and remediated a site which it 
still owns.

WorleyParsons has ownership interests in pipeline and power station assets 
that hold appropriate environmental licences. Compliance with these licences 
is managed through the operational systems which control and monitor the 
operation and maintenance of these assets. The licences are monitored and 
approved by independent experts on an annual basis.

The Company is not aware of any breaches by WorleyParsons of any 
environmental regulations under the laws of the Commonwealth of Australia, 
or of a State or Territory.

MANAGEMENT STRUCTURE
WorleyParsons has undergone strong growth since listing on the ASX in 2002 
and	the	subsequent	acquisitions	of	Parsons	E&C	in	2004	and	the	Colt	Group	
in 2007. The Company has a leadership position in many of its markets.

To ensure the Company remains well positioned for current and future 
opportunities and to ensure the ongoing development of the executive 
management team, an evolved organisation structure will be implemented 
by the end of September 2008.

The new structure increases to five the number of operating regions and also 
recognises the increasing importance of both mega‑projects (projects with 
capital cost in excess of US$1 billion) and EcoNomics™ by allocating separate 
executive responsibility for these initiatives. The new structure will involve 
relocation and changes in responsibility for a number of key executives.

CORPORATE RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT
WorleyParsons recognises that responsible, sustainable corporate 
performance is essential to the long term success of our business and 
desirable to all of our stakeholders. We adhere to the following principles:

•	 	Environment
 –  We work with our clients to assist in developing and implementing 

best practice in environmental performance in the design and 
delivery of all of their projects

 –  We take a leadership role in profitable sustainability through our 
EcoNomics™ initiative both for our clients and ourselves

 –  We are identifying the source of the carbon footprint of our business 
and we aim to reduce it

 –  We tax ourselves on our emissions, donating the funds raised to the 
WorleyParsons Technology Fund that develops and commercialises 
technologies that bring climate, social and wider environmental benefits

 –  We are vigilant about changing ecological and regulatory 
environments and adapt to meet these changing needs

•	 	Integrity	and	Ethics
 –  We uphold the standards of behaviour outlined in our Code of Conduct
 –  We maintain the highest standards of corporate governance and we 

report our governance performance annually
 –  We deal fairly with all suppliers, partners, customers and other 

parties we encounter in our business and we develop productive, 
co‑operative relationships

 –  We ensure bids are conducted with integrity and transparency
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 –  We apply and strive to improve our risk management procedures and 
protocols

•	 	Our	people
 –  We respect human rights and have as our goal to create a work 

environment that is positive and safe for all employees and enables 
optimal performance. We have developed a number of comprehensive 
policies that set high standards of performance in the following areas 
and we implement them rigorously

  – Personnel Policy
  – Equal Opportunity Policy
  – Prevention of Harassment Policy
  – Work and Life Balance Policy
 – We do not employ, nor cause to be employed, forced or child labour
 – We are committed to ongoing education and training of our people
•	 	Health	&	Safety
 –  We have a comprehensive, global Health, Safety and Environment 

policy and are committed to continuous improvement in this area
 –  We are committed to our target of Zero Harm
•	 	Community
 –  We support the development of local businesses and we use local 

people and other resources wherever possible
 –  We support local communities in which we work through charitable 

contributions
 –  We encourage the giving of time and money by our employees and 

have policies in place to match or support these endeavours
•	 	Performance
 –  We commit to delivering outstanding corporate performance 

delivering value to our customers, returns to our shareholders and 
prosperity to our people

NON‑AUDIT SERVICES
During	the	year,	Ernst	&	Young,	the	Company’s	auditor,	has	performed	certain	
other services in addition to its statutory duties:
 $

Acquisition related assurance services 167,923

Total non‑audit services provided by the external auditor 453,156

The Board has adopted a formal policy outlining the provision of non‑audit 
services. The Board has considered the position and, in accordance with the 
advice received from the Audit and Risk Committee, is satisfied that the 
provision of the non‑audit services is compatible with the general standard 
of independence for auditors imposed by the Corporations Act 2001. The 
directors are satisfied that the provision of non‑audit services by the auditor, 
as set out above, did not compromise the auditor independence requirements 
of the Corporations Act 2001 for the following reasons:

•	 		all	non‑audit	services	have	been	reviewed	by	the	Audit	and	Risk	
Committee to ensure they do not impact the integrity and objectivity of 
the	auditor;	and

•	 		none	of	the	services	undermine	the	general	principles	relating	to	auditor	
independence as set out in APES 110 Code of Ethics for Professional 
Accountants, including reviewing and auditing the auditor’s own work, 
acting in a management or decision‑making capacity for the Company, 
acting as advocate for the Company or jointly sharing economic risk 
and rewards.

A copy of the auditor’s independence declaration as required under 
section 307C of the Corporations Act 2001 is set out below.

AudItoR’S INdEPENdENCE dEClARAtIoN to tHE dIRECtoRS of 
WoRlEyPARSoNS lImItEd
In relation to our audit of the financial report of WorleyParsons Limited for 
the year ended 30 June 2008, to the best of my knowledge and belief, there 
have been no contraventions of the auditor independence requirements of 
the Corporations Act 2001 or any applicable code of professional conduct.

Ernst	&	Young

Jeff Chamberlain
Partner
Sydney, 19 August 2008

MEETINGS OF DIRECTORS
The number of meetings of Directors (including meetings of committees of 
Directors) held during the financial year and the number of meetings attended 
by each director were as follows:

  AUDIT AND  NOMINATIONS REMUNERATION 
 BOARD RISK COMMITTEE COMMITTEE COMMITTEE*

 MEETINGS   MEETINGS  MEETINGS  MEETINGS 
 HELD  HELD  HELD  HELD 
 WHILE  WHILE  WHILE  WHILE 
 A NUMBER A NUMBER A NUMBER A NUMBER 
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR ATTENDED MEMBER ATTENDED MEMBER ATTENDED MEMBER ATTENDED

Ron McNeilly 11 10 – – 1 1 6 6

Grahame Campbell 11 11 6 6 1 1 1 1

Erich Fraunschiel 11 11 6 6 1 1 – –

John Green 11 11 1 1 1 1 6 6

John Grill 11 11 – – – – – –

Eric Gwee 11 11 – – 1 1 6 6

William Hall 11 9 – – – – – –

David Housego 11 11 – – – – – –

Catherine  
Livingstone, AO 11 10 6 6 1 1 – –

* Includes one Nominations and Remuneration Committee meeting held in July 2007.

INFORMATION ON DIRECTORS

RoN mcNEIlly
CHAIRmAN ANd NoN‑EXECutIVE dIRECtoR
Ron is Chairman of the Board and the Nominations Committee and is a 
member of the Remuneration Committee. Ron is currently the Deputy 
Chairman of BlueScope Steel Limited (previously BHP Steel) and has over 
30 years’ experience in the steel industry. Ron joined BHP Billiton in 1962 
and held positions with BHP Billiton including executive director and 
President BHP Minerals, Chief Operating Officer, Executive General Manager 
and Chief Executive Officer BHP Steel, General Manager Transport, General 
Manager Long Products Division and General Manager Whyalla Works. Ron is 
the Chairman of the Melbourne Business School Limited and a director of 
Alumina Limited. He is a former Chairman of Ausmelt Limited and a former 
director of BHP and BHP Billiton, QCT Resources and Tubemakers of Australia.

Australian listed company directorships
 NATURE OF  
LISTED COMPANY NAME DIRECTORSHIP DATE OF COMMENCEMENT DATE OF CESSATION

Alumina Limited Non‑executive  11 December 2002 n/a 
 director

BlueScope Steel  Deputy Chairman 10 May 2002 n/a 
Limited and non‑executive  
 director

GRAHAmE CAmPBEll
NoN‑EXECutIVE dIRECtoR
Grahame is a member of the Audit and Risk Committee and the Nominations 
Committee.	Grahame	was	Managing	Director	of	CMPS&F	from	1987	to	1995,	
at the time one of the largest engineering and project management groups 
in Australia. Grahame has over 30 years’ experience in the management of 
major Australian and offshore infrastructure projects including oil, gas, road, 
rail, mining and minerals projects. Grahame was previously a director of Iluka 
Resources Limited and a past President of the Association of Consulting 
Engineers Australia and the Australian Pipeline Industry Association. Prior 
to his appointment as a non‑executive director of the Company on listing in 
2002, Grahame was a member of the advisory board for four years.

Australian listed company directorships
 NATURE OF  
LISTED COMPANY NAME DIRECTORSHIP DATE OF COMMENCEMENT DATE OF CESSATION

Iluka Resources  Non‑executive 17 December 1998 21 May 2008 
Limited director

Liability limited by a scheme approved 
under Professional Standards Legislation
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ERICH fRAuNSCHIEl
NoN‑EXECutIVE dIRECtoR
Erich is the Chairman of the Audit and Risk Committee and a member of 
the Nominations Committee. Erich is a non‑executive director of Woodside 
Petroleum Limited, West Australian Newspapers Holdings Limited and 
Rabobank Australia Limited. He is Chairman of Wesfarmers Federation 
Insurance Limited and Lumley General Insurance Limited (all members of 
the Wesfarmers Insurance Division) and of The Western Australian Opera 
Company. Erich’s early business career was in the petroleum marketing 
and management consulting industries. In 1981, he joined the Australian 
Industry Development Corporation where he was involved in project lending, 
investment banking and venture capital investment. In 1984, he joined 
Wesfarmers to start the Company’s projects and business development 
function. In 1988, he became General Manager of the Group’s Commercial 
Division and from 1992 until his retirement in July 2002 was an executive 
director and Chief Financial Officer of the Group.

Australian listed company directorships
 NATURE OF  
LISTED COMPANY NAME DIRECTORSHIP DATE OF COMMENCEMENT DATE OF CESSATION

West Australian  Non‑executive 2 May 2002 n/a 
Newspapers  director 
Holdings Limited

Woodside  Non‑executive 1 December 2002 n/a 
Petroleum Limited director

JoHN GREEN
NoN‑EXECutIVE dIRECtoR
John is the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a member of the 
Nominations Committee. John is a company director, and writer. Until August 
2006, he was an investment banker at Macquarie Bank, where he was an 
executive director for 13 years. His professional career before investment 
banking was 17 years in law, including as a partner in law firms Freehills and 
Dawson Waldron. John is director of three not‑for‑profits: Macquarie Group 
Foundation, the General Sir John Monash Foundation and The Centre for 
Independent Studies. In past years, he was a member of the ASX National 
Listings Committee and held a number of posts in the Securities Institute of 
Australia (now Finsia). Prior to his appointment as non‑executive director of 
the Company on listing in 2002, John was a member of the advisory board 
for nine years prior to listing, including a period as its Chairman.

JoHN GRIll
CHIEf EXECutIVE offICER
John joined ESSO Australia in 1968 and in 1971 became Chief Executive of 
the entity that ultimately became WorleyParsons Limited, Wholohan Grill and 
Partners. This specialised consulting practice acquired the business of Worley 
Engineering Pty Limited in Australia in 1987. Following Group restructuring, 
in 2002 Worley Group Limited listed on the Australian Stock Exchange. In 
2004,	Worley	Group	Limited	acquired	Parsons	E&C	Corporation,	a	US‑based	
global project services company, and changed its name to WorleyParsons 
Limited. In March 2007, WorleyParsons then acquired the Colt Group in 
Canada substantially increasing the Group’s capability in the upstream and 
downstream components of oil sands. John has personal expertise in every 
aspect of project delivery for projects in the resources and energy industries. 
He has been directly involved with most of WorleyParsons’ major clients and 
remains closely involved at Board level with WorleyParsons’ joint ventures.

ERIC GWEE
NoN‑EXECutIVE dIRECtoR
Eric joined the Board in February 2005 and is a member of the Remuneration 
Committee and the Nominations Committee. Eric is a Singaporean national 
with extensive international experience in the hydrocarbons and power 
industries, including a career spanning more than 31 years with the 
ExxonMobil Group. Eric is currently a non‑executive director of Singapore 
Power Limited and Chairman of SP Services Limited. He is a non‑executive 
director of SP Australia Networks (Distribution) Limited, SP Australia Networks 
(Transmission) Limited and SP Australia Networks (RE) Limited. Eric is a 
director of the Melbourne Business School Limited. Previously, he was the 
Chairman of CPG Corporation Pte Ltd and was a director of ExxonMobil 
Singapore Pte Ltd. For his many years of dedicated service to the Singapore 
community, Mr Gwee was awarded The Public Service Star in 1994 and The 
Public Service Star (BAR) in 2004, and The Meritorious Service Medal in 2007.

Australian listed company directorships
 NATURE OF  
LISTED COMPANY NAME DIRECTORSHIP DATE OF COMMENCEMENT DATE OF CESSATION

SP Australia  Director 31 May 2005 n/a 
Networks  
(Distribution)  
Limited

SP Australia Director 9 September 2005 n/a 
Networks (RE)  
Limited

SP Australia  Director 26 October 2005 n/a 
Networks  
(Transmission)  
Limited

WIllIAm HAll
EXECutIVE dIRECtoR
William (Bill) joined the Board in 2004 following the Company’s acquisition of 
Parsons	E&C	Corporation.	Bill	was	with	the	Parsons	Group	for	25	years.	He	
became	Chairman	and	CEO	of	Parsons	Energy	&	Chemicals	Group	Inc.	in	2002.	
Prior	to	this	position	he	served	as	President	of	Parsons	Energy	&	Chemicals	
Group Inc. (1997‑2001), President of The Ralph M. Parsons Company 
(1992‑1995),	and	Senior	Vice	President	and	Manager	of	the	Petroleum	&	
Chemical	(P&C)	Division	with	the	Company	(1989‑1991).	Bill	has	39	years’	
experience in the global engineering field, holding a number of key project 
and other US and international management positions with Parsons. Bill has 
bachelor and master’s degrees in Chemical Engineering at Virginia Polytechnic 
Institute and has completed the Executive Program at Stanford University. 
He is also on the Board of Directors of the US‑Saudi Arabian Business Council.

dAVId HouSEGo
CHIEf fINANCIAl offICER
David joined the Company in July 1999 as Chief Financial Officer. He led 
the corporate reorganisation and initial public offering and listing on the 
Australian Stock Exchange of Worley Group Limited (now WorleyParsons 
Limited) in 2002 and the subsequent capital raisings for the acquisition of 
Parsons	E&C	in	2004	and	the	Colt	Group	in	2007.	He	joined	the	Board	as	an	
executive director in 2002. David’s finance experience covers a broad range 
of operational and corporate finance roles including business development, 
corporate strategic planning, investment evaluation, accounting systems 
development and investor and stakeholder relations.

CAtHERINE lIVINGStoNE, Ao
NoN‑EXECutIVE dIRECtoR
Catherine joined the Board on 1 July 2007 and is a member of the 
Nominations Committee and the Audit and Risk Committee. She is currently 
a director of Macquarie Bank Limited and Macquarie Group Limited, Telstra 
Corporation Limited, Macquarie Graduate School of Management, Future 
Directions International, The Royal Institution of Australia Inc. and is the 
President of Chief Executive Women. Catherine continues to support the 
Australian Business Foundation (an independent business‑sponsored 
research think tank focused on the concept of innovation led growth) of 
which she was Chairman from 2002‑2005. She was Chairman of CSIRO from 
2001 to 2006 and has also served on the boards of Goodman Fielder Limited 
and Rural Press Limited. Catherine was the Managing Director of Cochlear 
Limited from 1994 to 2000, taking it through to an initial public offering in 
1995. Prior to that she was the Chief Executive of Finance at Nucleus 
Limited and before that held a variety of finance and accounting roles 
including having been with chartered accountants, Price Waterhouse. In 
2000, Catherine received the Chartered Accountant in Business Award for 
that year and in 2002 was elected a Fellow of the Australian Academy of 
Technological Sciences and Engineering. She was further awarded in 2003 
the Centenary Medal for service to Australian Society in Business Leadership 
and the 2006 Macquarie University Alumni Award for Distinguished Service 
(Professional). In 2008, Catherine was awarded an Officer in the Order of 
Australia for service to the development of Australian science, technology 
and innovation policies for the business sector through leadership and 
management roles and as a contributor to professional organisations. 
Catherine has a BA (Hons) in Accounting, is a Chartered Accountant and 
was the Eisenhower Fellow for Australia in 1999.
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Australian listed company directorships
 NATURE OF  
LISTED COMPANY NAME DIRECTORSHIP DATE OF COMMENCEMENT DATE OF CESSATION

Macquarie Bank  Director November 2003 n/a 
Limited

Macquarie Group  Director August 2007 n/a 
Limited

Telstra  Director November 2000 n/a 
Corporation Limited

lARRy BENKE
AltERNAtE EXECutIVE dIRECtoR
Larry joined the Board as alternate director for Bill Hall in March 2007 
following the Company’s acquisition of the Colt Companies. He joined Colt 
Edmonton as a design engineer in 1977 and has undertaken engineering 
design, project management and other management roles within the 
business. In 1988, Larry established the Toronto and Sarnia offices as 
General Manager before returning to Calgary in 1999 as President of Colt. 
He has been successful in leading Colt through a period of substantial growth 
and expansion into the new disciplines of pipelines, power generation and 
geomatics. Larry graduated from the University of Alberta in 1973 with a 
Bachelor of Science in Electrical Engineering (Honours Standing).

SHARoN SIllS
ComPANy SECREtARy
Sharon Sills is a member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in 
Australia, the Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators, Chartered 
Secretaries Australia Ltd and the Taxation Institute of Australia. In 2004, 
Sharon completed the Graduate Diploma in Company Secretarial Practice 
and has just completed her Master of Laws at the University of Sydney. 
She is Chair of the Company’s Superannuation Policy Committee and a 
member of the Ethics Committee. Sharon’s background is in taxation, both in 
the profession and in commerce. Sharon joined WorleyParsons in May 2000 
as Group Taxation Manager and was appointed Company Secretary in 2003.

INSURANCE OF OFFICERS

During the financial year, WorleyParsons Limited paid insurance premiums to 
insure the directors, secretaries and executive officers of the Company and 
its subsidiary companies. The contracts of insurance prohibit the disclosure of 
the amounts of premiums paid.

The liabilities insured are legal costs that may be incurred in defending civil 
or criminal proceedings that may be brought against the directors and 
officers in their capacity as directors and officers of WorleyParsons Limited 
and its subsidiary companies, and any other payments arising from liabilities 
incurred by the officers in connection with such proceedings, other than 
where such liabilities arise out of conduct involving a wilful breach of duty 
by the officers or the improper use by the officers of their position or of 
information to gain advantage for themselves or someone else or to cause 
detriment to the Company. It is not possible to apportion the premium 
between amounts relating to the insurance against legal costs and those 
relating to other liabilities.

ROUNDING OF AMOUNTS

The Company is of a kind referred to in Class Order 98/0100 issued by the 
Australian Securities and Investments Commission, relating to the “rounding 
off” of amounts in the Directors’ Report and financial statements. Amounts 
have been rounded off to the nearest hundred thousand dollars in accordance 
with that Class Order. Amounts less than $50,000 that have been rounded 
down are represented by 0.0.

REMUNERATION REPORT

EXECutIVE SummARy
At WorleyParsons our reputation and our people are our key 
assets. We pride ourselves on our employees who are not only experts 
in their fields, but are empowered, engaged and passionate about their 
work and contribution to our success.

We compete in a global market, where finding and keeping such 
exceptional people is a constant challenge. Our executives are directly 
accountable for results, and the ability to offer them the opportunity to 
participate in a rapidly developing business and entrepreneurial culture, 
is a key element of our executive engagement strategy.

The central theme of our remuneration strategy is fairness. We balance 
the interests of customers, shareholders and executives through a 
strategy that ensures that executives are equitably paid, without 
compromising our commitment to our shareholders.

The directors of the Company present the Remuneration Report prepared in 
accordance with section 300A of the Corporations Act for the Company and 
the Group for the year ended 30 June 2008. The information provided in 
pages 21 to 27 of this Remuneration Report has been audited as required 
by section 308(3C) of the Corporations Act. This Remuneration Report forms 
part of the Directors’ Report.

For the purposes of this report, we use the term “executives” to refer to 
the five highest remunerated Group and Company executives and all other 
executives who fall within the definition of key management personnel 
(“KMP”) (i.e. the persons with the authority and responsibility for planning, 
directing and controlling the activities of the Group). KMP also includes all 
non‑executive and executive directors. Note that all information relates to 
the 2008 financial year, unless otherwise stated.

The report is presented in three sections:

Section 1:	Overview	of	Company	performance	and	remuneration;

Section 2:	Executive	director	and	executive	remuneration;	and

Section 3: Non‑executive directors’ remuneration.

SECTION 1: OVERVIEW OF COMPANY PERFORMANCE AND 
REMUNERATION

WorleyParsons’ performance since it became a listed company in 2002 
has included:

•	 	earnings	growth	of	64.0%	per	annum	compound	growth;

•	 	a	2,127%	increase	in	the	Company’s	share	price;

•	 	Earnings	Per	Share	(EPS)	growth	of	51.9%	on	an	annualised	basis;	and

•	 	Total	Shareholder	Return	(TSR)	of	2,425%.

The graph below shows:

•	 	WorleyParsons’	TSR	over	the	period	from	1	July	2004	to	30	June	2008;	
and

•	 	ASX	100	index	companies’	TSR	over	the	same	time	period.
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fIVE yEAR ComPANy PERfoRmANCE
FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008

Closing share price ($) 2.88 7.89 20.10 34.00 37.86

Dividends paid1 (cents) 12.0 20.0 41.0 60.5 85.5

Basic EPS2 (cents) 21.6 35.1 66.3 101.8 142.5

EBIT ($m) 40.4 102.3 199.5 319.1 520.0

1  The 2008 final dividend has been announced and is scheduled to be paid on 29 September 2008.

2  Basic EPS for the financial years to 2006 have been adjusted to be comparable to that for 2007 
and 2008 as a result of the rights issue in March 2007 where shares were issued at a discount to 
market price.

SECTION 2: EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR AND EXECUTIVE REMUNERATION

EXECutIVE REmuNERAtIoN StRAtEGy
The key principle underpinning our executive remuneration policy 
is fairness.

The principle of remuneration fairness responsibly meets the needs of our 
employees, customers and shareholders. Employees can be satisfied that 
they are being paid equitably compared with their peers both internally 
within the Company and externally in the marketplace. Customers and 
shareholders can be satisfied that the underlying employee cost base that 
determines customer pricing and returns to shareholders is fairly determined.

Combining our fair level and structure of pay with an environment that 
encourages employee engagement, entrepreneurship, learning and career 
advancement ensures that we continue to attract, retain, develop and 
increase the capacity of our employees to add value to our customers 
while returning to them development opportunities and enhancing their 
earnings potential.

The objectives of our executive remuneration strategy are to:

•	 		retain	and	attract	employees	by	providing	a	fair	level	of	reward;

•	 		enhance	a	culture	of	achievement	by	providing	a	transparent	link	
between	reward	and	performance;	and

•	 		align	employee	and	shareholder	interests	through	participation	in	
employee equity plans.

EXECutIVE REmuNERAtIoN PolICy PRoCESS ANd KEy CHANGES
To ensure our remuneration outcomes are fair, we set our executive fixed 
remuneration around the market median, with the level of individual fixed 
remuneration based on the executive’s responsibilities, performance, 
qualifications and experience.

The market is defined as organisations that we compete against for talent 
and are considered as peers in the markets in which we operate. Some of 
our global comparators include AMEC, Fluor Corporation, Foster Wheeler, 
Jacobs Engineering Group, Wood Group and URS Corporation. Whilst locally, 
our comparators include publicly listed Australian companies of a comparable 
size and market capitalisation.

Market remuneration data is sourced from independent consultants, 
The Hay Group and PriceWaterhouseCoopers, and is reviewed by the Board 
Remuneration Committee annually. The Committee recommends to the Board 
all amendments to executive remuneration policies.

During 2007/08, an extensive review of the executive reward strategy 
has been undertaken to ensure that it supports the alignment between 
shareholder and executive interests and positions the Company competitively 
to retain and attract leadership talent in the medium to longer term.

This review has resulted in the refinement of the total reward (i.e. fixed pay 
plus short term incentive (STI) plus long term incentive (LTI)) strategy, 
whereby executives who achieve outstanding business results will now be 
positioned around the 75th percentile, and competently performing 
executives will continue to be remunerated around the market median.

A number of amendments have also been made to the STI plan to support 
the objective of greater alignment between performance and reward. These 
amendments include providing the Board and Chief Executive Officer with 
greater discretion to differentiate individual performance and a greater 
emphasis on the achievement of Company wide business performance. 

Where extraordinary performance is achieved, executives will have the 
opportunity to receive up to 160% of their STI target. This will ensure 
that exceptional performers are recognised and rewarded through the 
achievement of a total reward market positioning around the 75th percentile.

Key features of the current STI scheme, such as the criticality of health, 
safety and environment, remain unchanged. These amendments will be 
implemented for the 2008/09 financial year.

An in depth review of the LTI plan is scheduled for the forthcoming 
12 months. The focus of this strategic review will be to ensure that the LTI 
plan continues to motivate and retain executives by providing a long term 
financial incentive that links executive and shareholders’ interests through 
sustained growth in shareholder value.

EXECutIVE REmuNERAtIoN mIX
Executive remuneration comprises:

•	 		fixed	remuneration,	which	consists	of	cash	(or	base)	salary,	
superannuation/retirement contributions and any salary sacrifice 
components;	and

•	 		variable	incentive	remuneration,	which	may	be	comprised	of	cash,	
superannuation or equity and is dependent on corporate, regional and 
individual performance assessment.

The executive remuneration mix of fixed and variable incentive remuneration 
is determined with reference to the global market in which we operate.

The targeted annual remuneration mix of each of the executive directors and 
executives is outlined below:

 % OF TOTAL TARGET ANNUAL 
 REMUNERATION

   SHORT TERM LONG TERM 
  FIXED INCENTIVE INCENTIVE 
  REMUN‑ REMUN‑ REMUN‑ 
  ERATION ERATION ERATION 
 TITLE % % %

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

John Grill Chief Executive Officer 38 29 33

William Hall^ Managing Director, US,  
 Latin America and Europe 36 36 28

Larry Benke* Managing Director, Canada 45 32 23

David Housego Chief Financial Officer 44 22 34

EXECUTIVES

Stuart Bradie** Managing Director, Asia,  
 Middle East and Africa 44 22 34

Robert Edwardes Managing Director,  
 Corporate Services 48 21 31

Peter Meurs Managing Director, Australia and  
 New Zealand 44 22 34

Iain Ross Managing Director, Hydrocarbons 47 23 30

Andrew	Wood	 Managing	Director,	Mergers	&	 
 Acquisitions 44 22 34

^ Resides in the USA.

* Resides in Canada and is an alternate executive director for William Hall.

** Resides in Malaysia.

Target incentive remuneration refers to the incentive pay provided 
for meeting performance requirements. Actual incentive remuneration 
can vary for individuals depending on the extent that they meet 
performance requirements.

RElAtIoNSHIP BEtWEEN REmuNERAtIoN PolICy ANd PERfoRmANCE
A proportion of incentive remuneration is payable for short term performance, 
while the remainder is payable for long term performance. The short term 
performance period is 12 months. Long term performance is a minimum of 
three years.

Directors’ Report



WorleyParsons Annual Report 2008     23

Short term Incentive (StI) Plan
The STI Plan links specific 12 month targets or key performance indicators 
(KPIs) with the opportunity to earn cash incentives. The maximum value of 
the award for executive directors and executives ranges from 50% to 100% 
of their fixed remuneration, depending on the nature of their role.

Reflecting the importance of performance and its link with reward, the STI 
Plan provides for no payment where net profit after tax (NPAT) is less than 
90% of the budget approved by the Board. In addition to this hurdle, the 
executive directors and executives are subject to pre‑agreed KPIs which are:

•	 	critical	to	the	Company’s	success	over	the	forthcoming	12	months;

•	 	reflective	of	the	key	behaviours	or	results	the	Company	seeks	to	attain;	
and

•	 	capable	of	measurement.

These KPIs consist of both financial and non financial measures as outlined 
below:

FINANCIAL KPIs NON‑FINANCIAL KPIs

Weighting 60% 40%

KPIs •	 	NPAT	applicable	to	all	
executives;

•	 	Regional	earnings	
before interest and tax 
(EBIT), applicable to 
executives with regional 
accountability;	and/or

•	 	Customer	Sector	Group	
EBIT, applicable to 
executives with 
customer sector 
accountability.

These may vary with 
executive responsibility, 
but may include:

•	 	performance	in	health,	
safety	and	environment;

•	 	people	management	
and	development;	and

•	 	successful	
implementation of the 
business plan for the 
business unit, location 
or function.

Method of 
assessment

Based upon audited financial 
statements.

Based upon an assessment 
of effectiveness against a 
set of agreed objectives. 
For example, performance 
against the health, safety 
and environment KPI is 
measured by the level of 
reduction in the number 
of reportable injuries and 
environmental incidents, and 
the completion of advanced 
safety audits.

Tenure and 
forfeiture 
conditions

To be eligible for an STI payment, executives must have 
been employed for at least three months of the financial 
year and remain in employment at the date of payment.

The percentage of the maximum STI payment that was awarded for the 
2008 year is outlined in the table below:

  PERCENTAGE 
  OF MAXIMUM 
  STI AWARDED

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

John Grill  95.0%

William Hall  95.0%

Larry Benke  94.0%

David Housego  78.5%

EXECUTIVES

Stuart Bradie  97.5%

Robert Edwardes  83.6%

Peter Meurs  91.0%

Iain Ross  100.0%

Andrew Wood  92.0%

long term Incentive (ltI) Plan
The LTI Plan links specific three year targets with the opportunity to earn 
equity incentives. The maximum value of the award for executive directors 
and executives ranges from 65% to 85% of their fixed remuneration, 
depending on the nature of their role.

There are two specific targets. Each is based on a different measure and each 
is rewarded independently. The measures are:

•	 	relative	TSR;	and

•	 	EPS	growth.

The Remuneration Committee believes it is appropriate to assess executive 
performance‑based on both a relative hurdle linked to shareholder value and 
an absolute hurdle more within the executive’s control.

TSR results can determine 60% of the maximum LTI reward, while EPS 
growth can determine 40% of the maximum LTI reward.

Equity Grant: Performance rights (rights) are granted under the LTI Plan. 
Each right entitles the holder to one fully paid ordinary share in the Company 
at a nil exercise price (i.e. a zero priced option). The number of rights issued is 
based on the executive’s target long term incentive. This target long term 
incentive is expressed as a percentage of fixed remuneration, and varies 
based upon the executive’s role and responsibilities. Rights can only be 
exercised after a three year period, subject to at least minimum performance 
hurdles being satisfied.

Relative TSR: Relative TSR has been chosen as a performance hurdle 
because it provides the most direct link between executive reward and 
shareholder return. Executives will not receive any reward for grants made in 
the 2007/08 financial year unless the Company’s TSR performance is at least 
at the median of companies ranked 50 to 150 by market capitalisation in the 
ASX index at the start of the performance period.

From the 2009 financial year the peer comparison group will comprise of 
companies that compete more directly for customers, people and capital. 
This revised peer group would be subject to similar challenges, opportunities, 
and market sentiment and should reflect a fairer assessment of our 
performance, and so be better aligned with our remuneration philosophy. 
This peer group will be likely to be comprised of AECOM, Aker Kvaerner, 
Amec, Fluor, FosterWheeler, Jacobs Engineering, John Wood Group, KBR, 
SNC‑Lavalin and URS Corporation.

The vesting schedule of the rights subject to the Relative TSR hurdle 
is below:

 PERCENTAGE OF RIGHTS THAT MAY BE EXERCISED  
RELATIVE TSR PERCENTILE RANKING IF THE RELATIVE TSR HURDLE IS MET

Less than 50th percentile 0%

At 50th percentile 30%

Greater than the 50th percentile  Pro‑rated vesting between 31% and 60% 
but less than the 75th percentile 

At 75th percentile or greater  60% (i.e. maximum available under 
the plan)

The initial test date of the rights subject to the Relative TSR hurdle is at the 
end of year three. At the end of year three, the executive can either exercise 
their rights in accordance with the “exercise” provisions outlined below or 
they can choose to have their rights retested at the end of year four.

If the executive chooses to retest their rights at the end of year four, they 
will forgo any portion of the rights that met the Relative TSR hurdle in year 
three. If the hurdle is not met at the end of year four, the rights subject to 
the Relative TSR hurdle (being 60% of total rights allocated) will be forgone. 
The retest period covers the entire four year period from the date the rights 
were granted and therefore maintains alignment with shareholder interests. 
The Remuneration Committee believes that applying one retest is fair given 
the volatile nature of the industry.

Basic EPS: EPS has been chosen as a performance hurdle because it 
provides a clear line of sight between executive performance and Company 
performance. It is also a well recognised and understood measure of 
performance from both within and outside the organisation. Results are 
reported and audited. The vesting schedule of the rights subject to the EPS 
hurdle is as follows:
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AVERAGE COMPOUND GROWTH IN EPS OVER THE  PERCENTAGE OF RIGHTS THAT MAY BE EXERCISED 
THREE YEAR PERFORMANCE PERIOD IF THE EPS HURDLE IS MET

Less than 10% pa 0%

At 10% pa 20%

More than 10% pa, but less than 20% pa Pro‑rated vesting between 21% and 40%

At 20% pa or greater  40% (i.e. maximum available under 
the plan)

Basic EPS is determined by dividing the operating profit attributable to 
members of WorleyParsons by the weighted average number of ordinary 
shares outstanding during the financial year. Growth in EPS will be measured 
by comparing the EPS in the base year and the measurement years. To 
ensure consistency across the three year performance period, EPS will be 
adjusted for the years before the Company’s transition to the Australian 
equivalents of International Financial Reporting Standards to remove any 
anomalies under different accounting rules.

Exercise: To the extent that the performance hurdles have been satisfied, 
executives can exercise their rights and acquire shares in the Company at a 
nil exercise price. The rights must be exercised within 10 years from the date 
of grant. If they are not exercised within this time, they will expire.

Release: The Board will approve the release of half of the shares on the first 
anniversary after the end of the performance period and will approve the 
release of the remaining shares on the second anniversary after the end of 
the performance period.

Sale: Upon release, the executive can sell their shares, subject to compliance 
with the Company’s Securities Dealing Policy.

Cash settled rights: The LTI Plan contains additional rules for executives 
located in certain overseas jurisdictions. These rules ensure the executive 
is rewarded for their contribution, while at the same time catering for local 
restrictions on the issue of securities in some jurisdictions, such as differing 
securities laws and taxation treatments. The terms and conditions for the 
cash settled rights are the same as for the LTI Plan described above, except 
that rather than receiving one fully paid ordinary share in the Company at a 

nil exercise price, the executive would receive the value of one fully paid 
ordinary share in the Company in cash.

During the 2008 financial year, no new cash settled rights were issued to 
executive directors or executives.

Share trading and margin loans by directors and Executives
Directors and executives are not permitted to hedge their shareholdings or 
performance rights except where each of the following requirements has 
been satisfied:

•	 	permission	has	been	obtained	from	the	Chairman;

•	 	the	shares	have	fully	vested	and	are	not	subject	to	any	hurdles	or	
transfer	restriction;

•	 	the	hedge	transaction	is	treated	as	a	sale	or	purchase	of	shares	by	the	
director or executive and the relevant approvals, disclosures (to the ASX, 
as	appropriate)	and	notifications	are	made	on	this	basis;

•	 	the	hedge	transaction	may	not	be	entered	into,	renewed,	altered	or	
closed out when the director or executive is in possession of price 
sensitive	information;	and

•	 	all	costs	or	expenses	associated	with	any	hedging	arrangement	are	to	
the director’s or executive’s own account.

WorleyParsons treats compliance with this policy as a serious issue and takes 
appropriate measures to ensure the policy is adhered to. Breaches of the 
policy will be subject to appropriate sanctions, which could include 
disciplinary action or termination of employment.

This requirement is confirmed by way of an annual certification by directors.

In relation to margin loans, the Company has a policy that where there is 
(or the director or executive reasonably believes there will be) an unmet 
margin call, an event of default or another similar occurrence, the director or 
executive must immediately disclose to the Company Secretary or Chief 
Financial Officer the necessary information so the Company can comply with 
its continuous disclosure obligations.

Directors’ Report

REmuNERAtIoN of tHE EXECutIVE dIRECtoRS ANd EXECutIVES foR tHE fINANCIAl yEAR‑ENdEd 30 JuNE 2008
  POST OTHER 
  EMPLOYMENT LONG TERM 
 SHORT TERM EMPLOYEE BENEFITS BENEFITS BENEFITS SHARE‑BASED PAYMENTS

  CASH SHORT TERM NON‑MONETARY SUB SUPER‑ LONG EQUITY CASH % OF TOTAL 
  SALARY INCENTIVES BENEFITS1 TOTAL ANNUATION SERVICE LEAVE SETTLED2 SETTLED3 REMUNERATION TOTAL

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
John Grill 2008 1,427,256 1,033,125 – 2,460,381 13,129 301,326 816,194 – 22.7% 3,591,030
 2007 1,057,858 864,000 – 1,921,858 12,199 83,790 566,770 – 21.9% 2,584,617
William Hall 2008 684,852 623,704 43,751 1,352,307 18,026 39,761 414,248 305,090 33.8% 2,129,432
 2007 697,777 643,237 42,983 1,383,997 14,273 74,063 225,744 698,056 38.6% 2,396,133
Larry Benke 2008 660,336 410,353 – 1,070,689 – 9,847 76,624 – 6.6% 1,157,160
 2007 198,159 448,912 451 647,522 – 1,780 – – – 649,302
David Housego 2008 636,141 255,125 – 891,266 13,129 95,267 340,392 – 25.4% 1,340,054
 2007 464,956 443,788 – 908,744 12,199 28,231 244,985 – 20.5% 1,194,159
EXECUTIVES
Stuart Bradie4 2008 843,710 257,043 961,894 2,062,647 – – 231,400 398,328 23.4% 2,692,375
 2007 645,931 184,262 306,413 1,136,606 – – 98,656 1,005,539 45.0% 2,240,801
Robert Edwardes 2008 481,871 187,988 – 669,859 13,129 48,710 185,195 – 20.2% 916,893
 2007 354,825 92,225 – 447,050 12,199 – 96,231 – 17.3% 555,480
Peter Meurs 2008 581,191 273,000 – 854,191 13,129 175,906 313,512 – 23.1% 1,356,738
 2007 409,654 152,280 – 561,934 14,473 23,558 226,906 – 27.4% 826,871
Iain Ross 2008 608,217 312,500 – 920,717 13,129 94,377 299,883 – 22.6% 1,328,106
 2007 497,417 328,960 – 826,377 12,199 – 226,536 – 21.3% 1,065,112
Andrew Wood 2008 581,487 276,000 – 857,487 13,129 76,480 306,091 – 24.4% 1,253,187

 2007 425,481 425,950 – 851,431 12,199 – 223,908 – 20.6% 1,087,538
Total 2008 6,505,061 3,628,838 1,005,645 11,139,544 96,800 841,674 2,983,539 703,418  15,764,975
remuneration 2007 4,752,058 3,583,614 349,847 8,685,519 89,741 211,422 1,909,736 1,703,595  12,600,013

1  Non‑monetary benefits includes benefits such as health insurance, company cars or car allowances, fringe benefits tax, tax advisory services, life insurance and club memberships.

2  Remuneration includes a proportion of the fair value of equity compensation granted or outstanding during the year. The fair value of equity instruments which do not vest during the reporting period is 
determined as at the grant date and is allocated progressively over the vesting period. The amount included as remuneration is not related to, or indicative of, the benefit (if any) that individual executives may 
ultimately realise should the equity instruments vest.

3  The value disclosed as remuneration, relating to cash settled performance rights granted to executive, directors and executives, is the fair value at grant date and adjusted for the movement in the fair value of the 
liability during the reporting period.

4  The level of remuneration received by Stuart Bradie is influenced by two additional specific factors. Firstly, his location and expatriate status has greatly influenced the level of benefits received. Secondly, the 
securities requirements in his location meant that his performance rights have had to be delivered as cash‑settled performance rights.
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Terms and conditions of outstanding equity settled performance rights:

    FAIR VALUE  
   FAIR VALUE OF RIGHTS AT 
  NUMBER PER RIGHT2 GRANT DATE VESTING 
 DATE OF GRANT GRANTED1 $ $ DATE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

John Grill

Tranche 4 30 Dec 05 78,657 9.32 733,197 30 Sep 08

Tranche 5 2 Mar 07 52,500 16.35 858,442 30 Sep 09

Tranche 6 2 Oct 07 32,546 30.48 992,156 30 Sep 10

William Hall

Tranche 4 30 Dec 05 47,788 9.32 445,453 30 Sep 08

Tranche 5 2 Mar 07 28,000 16.35 457,836 30 Sep 09

Tranche 6 2 Oct 07 14,847 30.48 452,607 30 Sep 10

Larry Benke

Tranche 6 2 Oct 07 9,105 30.48 277,564 30 Sep 10

David Housego

Tranche 4 30 Dec 05 35,075 9.32 326,947 30 Sep 08

Tranche 5 2 Mar 07 21,500 16.35 351,553 30 Sep 09

Tranche 6 2 Oct 07 12,873 30.48 392,450 30 Sep 10

EXECUTIVES

Stuart Bradie

Tranche 4 30 Dec 05 18,400 9.32 171,520 30 Sep 08

Tranche 5 2 Mar 07 15,034 16.35 245,825 30 Sep 09

Tranche 6 2 Oct 07 12,109 30.48 369,140 30 Sep 10

Robert Edwardes

Tranche 4 30 Dec 05 15,423 9.32 143,764 30 Sep 08

Tranche 5 2 Mar 07 11,543 16.35 188,743 30 Sep 09

Tranche 6 2 Oct 07 8,582 30.48 261,620 30 Sep 10

Peter Meurs

Tranche 4 30 Dec 05 30,746 9.32 286,601 30 Sep 08

Tranche 5 2 Mar 07 20,420 16.35 333,893 30 Sep 09

Tranche 6 2 Oct 07 11,883 30.48 362,250 30 Sep 10

Iain Ross

Tranche 4 30 Dec 05 30,721 9.32 286,369 30 Sep 08

Tranche 5 2 Mar 07 19,541 16.35 319,520 30 Sep 09

Tranche 6 2 Oct 07 10,727 30.48 327,010 30 Sep 10

Andrew Wood

Tranche 4 30 Dec 05 29,851 9.32 278,253 30 Sep 08

Tranche 5 2 Mar 07 19,569 16.35 319,978 30 Sep 09

Tranche 6 2 Oct 07 11,883 30.48 362,250 30 Sep 10

Total  599,323  9,544,941

1  The service and performance criteria for the rights are discussed above. Shareholders approved the 
2007 grant of performance rights to Messrs Grill, Hall and Housego at the 2007 Annual General 
Meeting. The Board has determined to seek shareholder approval for annual grants of rights to all 
executive directors, despite the wording of ASX Listing Rule 10.14, and to apply restrictions on the 
transfer of shares allocated upon exercise of those rights.

2  Fair values at grant date are independently determined using an appropriate option pricing model in 
accordance with AASB 2 “Share Based Payment” that takes into account the exercise price, the term 
of the right, the vesting and performance criteria, the impact of dilution, the non‑tradable nature of 
the right, the share price at grant date and expected price volatility of the underlying share, the 
expected dividend yield and the risk‑free interest rate for the term of the right.

Rights that vested and were exercised during the 2008 and 2007 financial years:

    NUMBER 

   NUMBER VESTED AND VESTING 
  DATE OF GRANT GRANTED EXERCISED1 DATE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

John Grill

Tranche 3  29 Oct 04 163,551 163,551 30 Sep 07

Tranche 2  31 Jan 04 66,117 66,117 30 Sep 06

David Housego

Tranche 3  29 Oct 04 70,093 70,093 30 Sep 07

Tranche 2  31 Jan 04 29,808 29,808 30 Sep 06

EXECUTIVES

Robert Edwardes

Tranche 3  29 Oct 04 38,941 38,941 30 Sep 07

Tranche 2  31 Jan 04 16,026 16,026 30 Sep 06

Peter Meurs

Tranche 3  29 Oct 04 70,093 70,093 30 Sep 07

Tranche 2  31 Jan 04 25,779 25,779 30 Sep 06

Iain Ross

Tranche 3  29 Oct 04 70,093 70,093 30 Sep 07

Tranche 2  31 Jan 04 30,987 30,987 30 Sep 06

Andrew Wood

Tranche 3  29 Oct 04 70,093 70,093 30 Sep 07

Tranche 2  31 Jan 04 30,987 30,987 30 Sep 06

Total   682,568 682,568

1  100% of the rights granted in the 2004 and 2005 financial years vested (i.e. the percentage of 
the grant forfeited was nil) and were exercised for a nil exercise price. No other rights granted to 
executive directors or executives vested or were exercised during the 2007 and 2008 financial years.

Cash settled performance rights that vested during the 2008 and 2007 
financial years:

    FAIR VALUE 
  NUMBER FAIR VALUE OF RIGHTS AT 
  OF RIGHTS PER RIGHT GRANT DATE VESTING 
 DATE OF GRANT GRANTED1 $ $ DATE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

William Hall

Tranche 3B 28 Jan 05 41,756 $5.61 234,481 30 Sep 07

Stuart Bradie

Tranche 2 31 Jan 04 27,224 $1.27 34,763 30 Sep 06

Tranche 3B 29 Oct 04 54,517 $5.61 306,141 30 Sep 07

Total  123,497  575,385

(a)  Executive directors and executives have no outstanding cash settled rights.

(b)  The amounts disclosed as remuneration relating to cash settled rights granted to executive directors 
and executives is the fair value at grant date. The fair value of the liability is calculated initially at 
the grant date and is re measured at each reporting date and at the date of each settlement until 
the liability is fully settled. Fair values at reporting date are determined using an appropriate pricing 
model for cash settled equity rights in accordance with AASB 2 “Share Based Payment”.

1  100% of the rights granted in the 2004 and 2005 financial years vested (i.e. the percentage of 
the grant forfeited was nil) and were exercised for a nil exercise price. No other rights granted to 
executive directors or executives vested or were exercised during the 2007 and 2008 financial years.
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EmPloymENt CoNtRACtS
The key conditions of executive director and executive service agreements 
are outlined below:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS 
AND EXECUTIVES CONTRACT DURATION NON‑COMPETE CLAUSES NOTICE PERIODS

John Grill Unlimited duration 6 months 12 months

William Hall 5 October 2009 Remainder of 
the term of the 
contract

6 months

Larry Benke 9 March 2010 2 years after 
contract expiration

Through contract 
duration, then 
3 months for any 
extended term

David Housego Unlimited duration 6 months 6 months

Stuart Bradie Unlimited duration 3 months 6 months

Robert Edwardes1 Unlimited duration Nil 1 month

Peter Meurs Unlimited duration 6 months 6 months

Iain Ross1 Unlimited duration Nil 6 months

Andrew Wood Unlimited duration 6 months 6 months

1  The non‑compete clause reflects the terms of the original contract of employment.

WorleyParsons has not paid sign‑on payments to any executive directors 
or executives during the financial year. In relation to long term incentives, 
where an executive leaves the Company, the Board may exercise its 
discretion and allow a proportion (if any) of the rights to vest and be 
exercised, provided appropriate performance hurdles have been met and 
taking into account the performance and contribution that the executive 
has made. In instances of fraudulent or dishonest behaviour, the Board will 
exercise its discretion to deem any or all rights to have lapsed.

SECTION 3: NON‑EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The key principle underpinning our non‑executive directors’ remuneration 
philosophy is the need to set fees at a level that fairly reflects the calibre 
of directors required to address the significant strategic and operational 
challenges faced by the Company.

The Board determines individual fee levels for non‑executive directors. 
In setting the fee level, the following factors are taken into account:

•	 	the	size,	global	spread	and	complexity	of	the	Company’s	operations;

•	 	fees	paid	to	non‑executive	directors	in	companies	of	similar	market	
capitalisation;

•	 	the	level	of	fees	necessary	to	attract	and	retain	directors	of	a	suitable	
calibre;	and

•	 	the	responsibilities	and	workload	requirements	of	Board	members.

The non‑executive directors do not receive performance‑related payments.

NoN‑EXECutIVE dIRECtoR SHARE PlAN
In recognising that ownership of Company shares aligns directors’ interests 
with those of shareholders, the Non‑Executive Director Share Plan (the Plan) 
was implemented in the 2003 financial year. Under the terms of the Plan, 
non‑executive directors must sacrifice a minimum of 25% of their gross 
annual fees and may choose to sacrifice up to a maximum of 60% of their 
fees. In return, the Company will acquire an equivalent value of shares at the 
prevailing market price. These shares are subject to a restriction on dealing 
which expires on the earliest of:

•	 	10	years	from	the	date	the	shares	were	granted;

•	 	the	time	the	director	ceases	to	hold	office;	or

•	 	the	time	the	Board	decides	in	its	discretion	that	any	restrictions	cease.

It is proposed to amend the Plan so that non‑executive directors may choose 
to sacrifice up to a maximum of 100% of their fees. The proposed revision 
will be put to shareholders for approval at the 2008 Annual General Meeting, 
so that the Company retains the flexibility to issue shares under the Plan 
if required.

NoN‑EXECutIVE dIRECtoR fEES
Non‑executive director fees, including committee fees, are set within the 
maximum aggregate amount of $1,750,000 per annum, which was approved 
by shareholders at the 2007 Annual General Meeting. The fees received by 
the non‑executive directors in the 2008 financial year are set out below:

  SHORT TERM POST 
  EMPLOYEE EMPLOYMENT SHARE BASED 
  BENEFITS BENEFITS PAYMENTS

    NON‑EXECUTIVE 
  FEES AND SUPER‑ DIRECTOR 
  ALLOWANCES1 ANNUATION2 SHARE PLAN TOTAL 
  $ $ $ $

Ron McNeilly 2008 304,033 27,092 109,375 440,500

 2007 180,000 15,930 59,000 254,930

Catherine  
Livingstone, AO3 2008 135,454 11,921 48,125 195,500

Eric Gwee 2008 167,250 – 46,750 214,000

 2007 102,000 – 27,000 129,000

Erich Fraunschiel 2008 123,413 37,087 52,500 213,000

 2007 3,000 93,750 31,250 128,000

Grahame Campbell 2008 134,711 12,664 48,125 195,500

 2007 142,625 12,566 29,875 185,066

John Green 2008 49,250 100,000 48,750 198,000

 2007 6,000 89,625 29,875 125,500

Total 2008 914,111 188,764 353,625 1,456,500

 2007 433,625 211,871 177,000 822,496

1  Includes travel and similar allowances.

2  Superannuation contributions are made on behalf of the non‑executive directors in accordance 
with the Company’s statutory superannuation obligations. The superannuation figures also include 
additional (i.e. non‑statutory) contributions to superannuation and pension plans.

3  Catherine Livingstone’s appointment took effect on 1 July 2007.

Non‑executive directors are eligible to receive travel allowances and fees for 
special duties. During the 2008 financial year, the non‑executive directors 
received a travel allowance for attendance at Board meetings held overseas 
during the financial year.

Non‑executive directors are also entitled to be reimbursed for all business 
related expenses, including travel, incurred in the discharge of their 
obligations. Superannuation contributions are made on their behalf in 
accordance with the Company’s statutory obligations. WorleyParsons does 
not pay retirement benefits to non‑executive directors.

fEES foR tHE 2009 fINANCIAl yEAR
The fees (inclusive of superannuation) for the 2009 financial year remain 
unchanged. After undertaking a comprehensive review of the external 
market practice amongst Australian based global companies, the travel 
allowance for attendance at overseas meetings will be increased from 
$3,000 to $5,000 per trip. This increase is effective from 1 July 2008. 
The proposed fees (inclusive of superannuation) for the 2009 financial year 
are detailed below:

ROLE 2009 FINANCIAL YEAR FEES

Chairman $437,500

Non‑executive director $175,000

Chairman of Audit and Risk Committee $35,000

Member of Audit and Risk Committee $17,500

Chairman of Remuneration Committee $20,000

Member of Remuneration Committee $12,000

Chairman/Member of Nominations Committee Nil

Directors’ Report
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At the 2007 Annual General Meeting (AGM), shareholders approved an 
increase in the aggregate non‑executive director fee pool to $1,750,000 
per annum. It is not expected that this fee cap will be exceeded in the 2009 
financial	year;	however,	given	the	continued	growth	of	the	Company	the	
Board considers it appropriate to seek an increase to $2,000,000 at the 
2008 AGM for the following reasons:

•	 	to	allow	for	the	future	growth	of	non‑executive	directors’	remuneration	
to ensure that it remains competitively positioned to continue to retain 
high	calibre	and	talented	directors;	and

•	 	to	provide	the	Board	with	the	flexibility	to	review	its	current	size	and	
composition and ensure that it maintains appropriate director skill and 
experience levels, and has an effective succession plan in place.

DIRECTORS’ SHAREHOLDINGS

Particulars of directors’ beneficial interests in shares of WorleyParsons 
Limited as at the date of this report are set out in note 33 to the financial 
statements.

The directors and remuneration report is made in accordance with a 
resolution of the directors.

RON McNEILLY

Chairman

Sydney, 19 August 2008
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 CONSOLIDATED PARENT ENTITY

  2008 2007 2008 2007 
 NOTES $’M $’M $’M $’M

REVENUE AND OTHER INCOME

Services  4,604.7 3,467.8 – –

Sale of goods  2.4 10.0 – –

Total revenue  4,607.1 3,477.8 – –

Interest  18.3 9.2 0.8 0.7

Dividends from controlled entities  – – 294.5 133.4

Other  8.2 5.8 – 2.0

Share of net profits of associates accounted for using the equity method 24(C) 36.5 19.7 – –

Revenue and other income  4,670.1 3,512.5 295.3 136.1

EXPENSES

Staff costs  (2,635.6) (1,877.0) – –

Contract related reimbursable costs  (959.8) (911.9) – –

Depreciation  (23.4) (17.0) – –

Amortisation  (43.6) (17.3) – –

Borrowing costs  (50.0) (22.1) (0.2) (0.2)

Office and administration costs  (272.3) (198.0) – –

Other costs  (197.1) (163.0) – –

Profit before income tax expense  488.3 306.2 295.1 135.9

Income tax expense 5 (141.0) (79.9) (0.2) (1.4)

Profit after income tax expense  347.3 226.3 294.9 134.5

Profit attributable to minority interests  (3.4) (1.5) – –

Profit attributable to members of WorleyParsons Limited  343.9 224.8 294.9 134.5

Basic earnings per share (cents) 21 142.5 101.8

Diluted earnings per share (cents) 21 140.8 100.4

The above income statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Income Statement For the financial year ended 30 June 2008
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 CONSOLIDATED PARENT ENTITY

  2008 2007 2008 2007 
 NOTES $’M $’M $’M $’M

ASSETS

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents 6 82.2 118.6 5.3 –

Trade and other receivables 7 1,217.2 821.1 340.9 187.9

Inventories  0.4 0.9 – –

Prepayments  51.7 25.1 – –

Income tax benefit  – – – 1.3

Derivatives 37 5.9 5.0 – –

Assets held for sale 8 59.0 – – –

Total current assets  1,416.4 970.7 346.2 189.2

Non‑current assets

Equity accounted associates 24(A) 91.8 86.2 – –

Shares in controlled entities at cost 23(B) – – 1,062.5 1,062.5

Property, plant and equipment 9 81.7 63.3 – –

Intangible assets 10 1,562.4 1,487.9 – –

Finance lease receivable 28 – 31.5 – –

Deferred tax assets 11 60.7 43.4 0.5 1.1

Derivatives 37 1.3 – – –

Other non‑current assets  3.2 1.3 – –

Total non‑current assets  1,801.1 1,713.6 1,063.0 1,063.6

TOTAL ASSETS  3,217.5 2,684.3 1,409.2 1,252.8

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables 12 595.7 400.0 0.5 7.7

Interest bearing loans and borrowings 13 38.5 28.4 – 2.4

Income tax payable  53.1 33.4 27.1 –

Provisions 14 245.8 208.5 – –

Derivatives 37 0.2 0.5 – –

Liabilities held for sale 8 27.4 – – –

Total current liabilities  960.7 670.8 27.6 10.1

Non‑current liabilities

Interest bearing loans and borrowings 15 672.9 488.4 – –

Deferred tax liabilities 16 124.9 100.4 0.3 0.7

Provisions 17 32.1 37.0 – –

Derivatives 37 10.4 – – –

Total non‑current liabilities  840.3 625.8 0.3 0.7

TOTAL LIABILITIES  1,801.0 1,296.6 27.9 10.8

NET ASSETS  1,416.5 1,387.7 1,381.3 1,242.0

EQUITY

Issued capital 18 1,132.5 1,128.5 1,132.5 1,128.5

Reserves 19 (157.8) (7.9) 22.7 12.0

Retained profits 20 438.8 265.0 226.1 101.5

Parent entity interest  1,413.5 1,385.6 1,381.3 1,242.0

Minority interests  3.0 2.1 – –

TOTAL EQUITY  1,416.5 1,387.7 1,381.3 1,242.0

The above balance sheet should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Balance Sheet As at 30 June 2008
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 CONSOLIDATED PARENT ENTITY

  2008 2007 2008 2007 
 NOTES $’M $’M $’M $’M

Total equity at the beginning of the financial year  1,387.7 475.3 1,242.0 403.6

Net movement in foreign currency translation reserve 19(A) (152.3) (22.9) – –

Net movement in hedge reserve 19(B) (8.3) 4.0 – –

Net expense recognised directly in equity  (160.6) (18.9) – –

Profit after income tax expense  347.3 226.3 294.9 134.5

Total recognised income and expense for the financial year  186.7 207.4 294.9 134.5

Performance rights expense  14.4 8.1 14.4 8.1

Dividends paid  (170.1) (103.6) (170.3) (103.7)

Contribution of equity  0.3 800.1 0.3 800.1

Minority interest movement  (2.5) (1.0) – –

Purchase of shares to satisfy performance rights, net of tax  – (0.6) – (0.6)

Asset revaluation of existing investments on acquisition  – 2.0 – –

Total equity at the end of the financial year  1,416.5 1,387.7 1,381.3 1,242.0

Total recognised income and expense for the financial year is attributable to:

Members of WorleyParsons Limited  185.0 206.8 294.9 134.5

Minority interests  1.7 0.6 – –

  186.7 207.4 294.9 134.5

The above statement of changes in equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Statement of Changes in Equity For the Financial Year Ended 30 June 2008



WorleyParsons Annual Report 2008     31

 CONSOLIDATED PARENT ENTITY

  2008 2007 2008 2007 
 NOTES $’M $’M $’M $’M

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Receipts from customers (inclusive of goods and services tax)  4,407.3 3,512.9 0.1 2.3

Payments to suppliers and employees (inclusive of goods and services tax)  (4,079.4) (3,255.1) (0.1) (3.8)

  327.9 257.8 0.0 (1.5)

Dividends received from associates 24(B) 8.3 4.7 – –

Dividends received from controlled entities  – – 294.5 133.5

Purchase of shares to satisfy performance rights 18(A) – (0.7) – (0.7)

Interest received  17.9 9.1 0.8 0.7

Borrowing costs paid  (47.6) (19.9) (0.2) (0.2)

Income taxes paid  (107.7) (55.1) (14.8) (5.8)

Net cash inflow from operating activities 26 198.8 195.9 280.3 126.0

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Payments for purchase of equity accounted associates, net of return of capital  (3.6) (13.1) – –

Proceeds from disposal of investments  – 4.6 – –

Payments for acquisition of controlled entities  (252.0) (860.9) – (477.9)

Cash balances in controlled entities acquired, net of overdraft  9.0 3.5 – –

Payments for purchase of property, plant and equipment and computer software  (79.5) (33.6) – –

Payments for assets under construction  – (6.5) – –

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment  0.5 0.2 – –

Net cash outflow from investing activities  (325.6) (905.8) – (477.9)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Equity raising  – 481.3 – 481.3

Costs associated with equity raising  – (11.1) – (11.1)

Repayment of borrowings  (417.3) (823.4) – –

Proceeds from borrowings  699.3 1,217.0 – –

Costs of bank facilities and proceeds from finance leases  (0.3) (1.6) – –

Loans to controlled entities  – – (199.3) (190.4)

Loans from controlled entities repaid  – – 88.5 172.8

Net loans to related parties  (6.4) (4.0) – –

Dividends paid to the Company’s shareholders 22(B) (170.1) (103.6) (161.8) (103.7)

Dividends paid to minority interests  (3.8) (1.6) – –

Net cash inflow/(outflow) from financing activities  101.4 753.0 (272.6) 348.9

Net (decrease)/increase in cash  (25.4) 43.1 7.7 (3.0)

Cash at the beginning of the financial year  108.0 70.3 (2.4) 0.6

Effects of exchange rate changes on cash  (6.3) (5.4) – –

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the financial year 6 76.3 108.0 5.3 (2.4)

The above cash flow statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Cash Flow Statement For the Financial Year Ended 30 June 2008
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Notes to the Financial Statements For the Financial Year Ended 30 June 2008

1 CORPORATE INFORMATION

The financial report of WorleyParsons Limited (Company) for the financial 
year ended 30 June 2008 was authorised for issue in accordance with a 
resolution of the Directors on 12 August 2008.

WorleyParsons Limited is a company limited by shares incorporated in 
Australia whose shares are publicly traded on the Australian Securities 
Exchange (ASX: WOR).

The nature of the operations and principal activities of the Group is described 
in note 34.

2 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(A) BASIS of ACCouNtING
 (i) Basis of preparation
   This general purpose financial report has been prepared in 

accordance with the Corporations Act 2001, Australian Accounting 
Standards (AAS) and other authoritative pronouncements of the 
Australian Accounting Standards Board.

   The Company is of a kind referred to in Class Order 98/0100 issued 
by the Australian Securities and Investments Commission, relating to 
the “rounding off” of amounts in the Directors’ Report and financial 
statements. Amounts have been rounded off to the nearest hundred 
thousand dollars in accordance with that Class Order.

 (ii) Historical cost convention
   The financial report has been prepared on a historical cost basis, 

except for derivative financial instruments and available‑for‑sale 
financial assets that have been measured at fair value. The carrying 
values of recognised assets and liabilities that are hedged with fair 
value hedges are adjusted to record changes in the fair values 
attributable to the risks that are being hedged.

 (iii) Critical accounting estimates
   In the application of AAS, management is required to make 

judgements, estimates and assumptions about carrying values 
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other 
sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on 
historical experience and various other factors that are believed to 
be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which form 
the basis of making judgements.

   The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an 
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in 
the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects 
only that period or in the period of the revision and future periods 
if the revision affects both current and future periods.

   Management has identified the following critical accounting policies 
for which significant judgements, estimates and assumptions are 
made:

	 	 •	 goodwill	and	intangibles	with	identifiable	useful	lives;

	 	 •	 warranty	provisions;

	 	 •	 recovery	of	deferred	taxes;	and

	 	 •	 share	based	payments.

   Actual results may differ from these estimates under different 
assumptions and conditions and may materially affect financial 
results or the financial position reported in future periods.

   Further details of the nature of these assumptions and conditions 
may be found in the relevant notes to the financial statements.

 (iv) Adoption of new accounting standards
   Since 1 July 2007, the consolidated entity has adopted the following 

standards and interpretations which are mandatory for annual 
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2007.

	 	 1.	 	AASB	7	“Financial	Instruments:	Disclosure”;

  2.  AASB 2005‑10 “Amendments to Australian Accounting 
Standards (AASB 132, 101, 114, 117, 133, 139, 1, 4, 1023 and 
1038);	and

  3.  AASB 2007‑4 “Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards 
arising from ED151 and Other Amendments”.

   Adoption of these standards affected only disclosures and did not 
have any effect on the financial position or performance of the 
consolidated entity.

 (v) New standards not yet applicable
   Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations that have 

recently been issued or amended but are not yet effective have not 
been adopted by the Group for the annual reporting period ended 
30 June 2008. These are not expected to have a material impact on 
the Group’s financial report in subsequent reporting periods.

(B) StAtEmENt of ComPlIANCE
  The consolidated financial report of the Group and the financial report 

of the Company comply with International Financial Reporting Standards 
(IFRS) and interpretations issued by the International Accounting 
Standards Board.

(C) BASIS of CoNSolIdAtIoN
  The consolidated financial statements incorporate the assets and 

liabilities of all entities controlled by WorleyParsons Limited as at 30 June 
2008 and the results of all controlled entities for the financial year then 
ended. WorleyParsons Limited and its controlled entities together are 
referred to in this financial report as the consolidated entity or the 
Group. Interests in associates are equity accounted and are not part of 
the consolidated group (see note (C)(iv) below).

  The effects of all transactions between entities in the consolidated 
entity are eliminated in full. Minority interests in the results and equity 
of controlled entities are shown separately in the consolidated income 
statement and consolidated balance sheet respectively.

 (i) Controlled entities
   Where control of an entity is obtained during a financial year, its 

results are included in the consolidated income statement from the 
date on which control commences. Where control of an entity ceases 
during a financial year, its results are included for that part of the 
year during which control existed.

 (ii) Jointly controlled operations and assets
   The proportionate interests in the assets, liabilities and expenses of 

jointly controlled operations and jointly controlled assets have been 
incorporated in the financial statements under the appropriate 
headings. Details of the jointly controlled operations have been set 
out in note 25.

 (iii) Joint ventures
   The interest in joint ventures is carried at the lower of the equity 

accounted amount and the recoverable amount in the consolidated 
financial statements. The share of profits or losses of the entities 
is recognised in the consolidated income statement, and the share 
of movements in reserves is recognised in the consolidated 
balance sheet.

   Profits or losses on transactions establishing joint ventures and 
transactions with the joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of 
the consolidated entity’s ownership interest until such time as they 
are realised by the joint ventures on consumption or sale.

 (iv) Associates
   Investments in associates are accounted for in the consolidated 

financial statements using the equity method of accounting. Under 
this method, the consolidated entity’s share of the post acquisition 
profits or losses of associates is recognised in the consolidated 
income statement, and its share of post acquisition movements 
in reserves is recognised in consolidated reserves. The cumulative 
post acquisition movements are adjusted against the cost of 
the investment. Associates are those entities over which the 
consolidated entity exercises significant influence, but not control. 
Details of the associates have been set out in note 24.

 (v) minority interests
   Minority interests not held by the Group are allocated their share 

of net profit after tax in the consolidated income statement and 
are presented within equity in the consolidated balance sheet, 
separately from parent entity interest.
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(d) EmPloyEE BENEfItS
  Provision is made for employee benefits accumulated as a result of 

employees rendering services up to the reporting date. These benefits 
include wages and salaries, annual leave, sick leave and long service leave.

  Liabilities arising in respect of wages and salaries, annual leave, sick 
leave and any other employee benefits expected to be settled within 
12 months of the reporting date are measured at their nominal amounts 
based on remuneration rates which are expected to be paid when the 
liability is settled. All other employee benefits or liabilities are measured 
at the present value of the estimated future cash outflows to be made in 
respect of services provided by the employees up to the reporting date. 
In determining the present value of future cash outflows, the market 
yield as at the reporting date on national government bonds, which have 
terms to maturity approximating the terms of the related liability, is used.

  Employee benefits expenses and revenues arising in respect of wages 
and salaries, non‑monetary benefits, leave entitlements and other types 
of entitlements are charged against profits on a net basis in their 
respective categories.

  Equity based compensation scheme – performance rights
  Performance rights (rights) over the ordinary shares of WorleyParsons 

Limited are granted to executive directors and other executives of the 
consolidated entity for nil consideration in accordance with performance 
guidelines approved by the Board. The fair values of the rights are 
being amortised on a straight line basis over their performance period. 
For share settled rights, the fair values of the rights are the share price 
at grant date adjusted for the impact of performance hurdles and other 
vesting or exercise criteria attached to the right. For cash settled rights, 
the fair values of the rights are recalculated at the end of each reporting 
period and amortised on a straight line basis over their vesting period. 
The accounting estimates and assumptions relating to rights would have 
no impact on the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the 
next annual reporting period but may impact expenses and equity.

(E) tAXES
 (i) Income tax
   The income tax expense or revenue for the period is the tax payable 

on the current period’s taxable income based on the income tax rate 
for each jurisdiction adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets and 
liabilities attributable to temporary differences between the tax 
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the 
financial statements, and to unused tax losses.

   Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised for temporary 
differences at the tax rates expected to apply when the assets are 
recovered or liabilities are settled, based on those tax rates which 
are enacted or substantially enacted for each jurisdiction. The 
relevant tax rates are applied to the cumulative amounts of 
deductible and taxable temporary differences to measure the 
deferred tax asset or liability. An exception is made for certain 
temporary differences arising from the initial recognition of an asset 
or a liability. No deferred tax asset or liability is recognised in 
relation to these temporary differences if they arose in a 
transaction, other than a business combination, that at the time did 
not affect either accounting profit or taxable profit or loss.

   Deferred tax assets are recognised for deductible temporary 
differences and unused tax losses only if it is probable that future 
taxable amounts will be available to utilise those temporary 
differences.

   Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not recognised for temporary 
differences between the carrying amount and tax bases of 
investments in controlled entities where the parent entity is able 
to control the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences 
and it is probable that the differences will not reverse in the 
foreseeable future.

   Current and deferred tax amounts relating to items recognised 
directly in equity are also recognised in equity and not in the 
income statement.

 (ii) tax consolidation
   WorleyParsons Limited and its wholly owned Australian entities 

elected to form a tax consolidated group from 1 July 2003. On 
formation of the tax consolidated group, the entities in the tax 
consolidated group entered into a tax sharing agreement which, 
in the opinion of the directors, limits the joint and several liability 
of the wholly owned entities in the case of a default by the head 
entity, WorleyParsons Limited.

   The entities have also entered into a tax funding agreement under 
which the wholly owned entities fully compensate WorleyParsons 
Limited for any current tax payable assumed and are compensated 
by WorleyParsons Limited for any current tax loss, deferred tax 
assets and tax credits that are transferred to WorleyParsons Limited 
under the tax consolidation legislation. The tax consolidated current 
tax liability or current year tax loss and other deferred tax assets are 
required to be allocated to the members of the tax consolidated 
group in accordance with UIG 1052. The Group uses a group 
allocation method for this purpose where the allocated current tax 
payable, current tax loss, deferred tax assets and other tax credits 
for each member of the tax consolidated group are determined as 
if the Company is a stand‑alone taxpayer but modified as necessary 
to recognise membership of a tax consolidated group. The funding 
amounts are determined by reference to the amounts recognised 
in the wholly owned entities’ financial statements which are 
determined having regard to membership of the tax consolidated 
group. The amounts receivable/payable under the tax funding 
agreement are due upon receipt of the funding advice from the head 
entity, which is issued as soon as practicable after the end of each 
financial year. The head entity may also require payment of interim 
funding amounts to assist with its obligations to pay tax 
instalments. The funding amounts are recognised as current 
intercompany receivables or payables.

   For WorleyParsons Limited, there were no amounts recognised as 
tax consolidation contributions during the financial year (2007: $nil).

 (iii) Goods and services tax (GSt)
   Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of 

GST except where the GST incurred on a purchase of goods and 
services is not recoverable from the taxation authority. In these 
circumstances, the GST is recognised as part of the cost of 
acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense.

   Receivables and payables are stated with the amount of GST included.

   The net amount of GST recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation 
authority is included as part of receivables or payables in the 
balance sheet.

   Cash flows are included in the cash flow statement on a gross basis. 
The GST component of cash flows arising from investing and 
financing activities, which is recoverable from, or payable to, the 
taxation authority, is classified as an operating cash flow.

   Commitments and contingencies are disclosed net of the amount of 
GST recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority.

(f) foREIGN CuRRENCy tRANSlAtIoN
 (i) functional and presentation currency
   Items included in the financial statements of each of the Group’s 

entities are measured using the currency of the primary economic 
environment in which the entity operates (functional currency). 
The consolidated financial statements are presented in Australian 
dollars, which is WorleyParsons’ functional and presentation currency.

 (ii) translation of foreign currency transactions
   Transactions denominated in a foreign currency are converted at 

the exchange rate at the date of the transaction. Foreign currency 
receivables and payables at balance date are translated at exchange 
rates at balance date. Exchange gains and losses are brought to 
account in determining the profit and loss for the financial year.

 (iii) Specific hedges
   Hedging is undertaken to avoid or minimise potential adverse 

financial effects of movements in foreign currency exchange rates. 
Gains or costs arising upon entry into a hedging transaction intended 
to hedge the purchase or sale of goods or services, together 
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with subsequent exchange gains or losses resulting from those 
transactions, are deferred up to the date of the purchase or sale 
and included in the measurement of the purchase or sale. Note 37 
provides specific details on the calculation of these gains or losses.

   At each balance date the Group measures the effectiveness of its 
cash flow hedges. The effective portion of the gain or loss on the 
hedging instrument is recognised directly in equity, while the 
ineffective portion is recognised in the income statement.

 (iv) Group companies
   Assets and liabilities of overseas branches, controlled entities and 

associates that have a functional currency other than Australian 
dollars are translated at exchange rates prevailing on the balance 
date. Income and expenses are translated at average exchange 
rates prevailing during the period. Other equity balances are 
translated at historical exchange rates. Exchange differences 
arising on translation are taken directly to the foreign currency 
translation reserve.

   On consolidation, exchange differences and the related tax effect 
arising from the translation of borrowings and other currency 
instruments designated as hedges of the net investment in overseas 
branches and controlled entities are reflected in the foreign currency 
translation reserve.

   When an overseas branch, controlled entity or associate is sold or 
net investment borrowings are repaid, a proportionate share of such 
exchange differences is recognised in the income statement as part 
of the gain or loss on sale or repayment of borrowing.

   Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a 
foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign 
entity and translated at the closing exchange rate.

(G) ACQuISItIoN of ASSEtS ANd BuSINESS ComBINAtIoNS
  The purchase method of accounting is used to account for all business 

combinations regardless of whether equity instruments or other assets 
are acquired. Cost is measured as the fair value of the assets given up, 
shares issued or liabilities undertaken or assumed at the date of 
acquisition plus costs directly attributable to the acquisition. Where 
equity instruments are issued in a business combination, the value of the 
instruments is their market price as determined by market valuation at 
the acquisition date. Transaction costs arising on the issue of equity 
instruments are recognised directly in equity.

  Except for non‑current assets or disposal groups classified as held for 
sale (which are measured at fair value less costs to sell), all identifiable 
assets acquired and liabilities and contingent liabilities assumed in a 
business combination are measured initially at their fair values at the 
acquisition date, irrespective of the extent of any minority interest. 
The excess of the cost of the business combination over the net fair 
value of the Group’s share of the identifiable net assets acquired is 
recognised as goodwill. If the cost of acquisition is less than the 
Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable net assets of 
the subsidiary, the difference is recognised as a gain in the income 
statement, but only after a reassessment of the identification and 
measurement of the net assets acquired.

  Where settlement of any part of the consideration is deferred, the 
amounts payable in the future are discounted to their present value 
as at the date of exchange. The discount rate used is the Company’s 
incremental borrowing rate, being the rate at which a similar borrowing 
could be obtained from an independent financier under comparable terms 
and conditions.

(H) REVENuE RECoGNItIoN
  Amounts disclosed as revenue are net of returns, trade allowances, 

duties and taxes paid. Revenue is recognised and measured at the fair 
value of the consideration received or receivable to the extent that it 
is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group and the 
revenue can be reliably measured. The following specific recognition 
criteria must be met before revenue is recognised:

 (i) Engineering design and project services
   Contract revenue and expenses are recognised in accordance with 

the percentage of completion method unless the outcome of the 
contract cannot be reliably estimated. Where it is probable that a 

loss will arise from a construction contract, the excess of total costs 
over revenue is recognised as an expense.

   Where the outcome of a contract cannot be reliably estimated, 
contract costs are recognised as an expense as incurred, and where 
it is probable that the costs will be recovered, revenue is recognised 
to the extent of costs incurred. Incentive payments on contracts are 
recognised as part of total contract revenue where it is probable 
that specified performance standards are met or exceeded and the 
amount of the incentive payment can be reliably measured.

   For fixed price contracts, the stage of completion is measured by 
reference to labour hours incurred to date as a percentage of 
estimated total labour hours for each contract.

   Revenue from cost plus contracts is recognised by reference to the 
recoverable costs incurred during the reporting period plus the 
percentage of fees earned.

 (ii) Sale of goods
   Revenue is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of 

ownership of the goods have passed to the buyer and the costs 
incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be 
measured reliably. Risks and rewards of ownership are 
considered passed to the buyer at the time of delivery of the 
goods to the customer.

 (iii) Interest
   Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the effective 

interest rate method.

 (iv) dividends
   Revenue is recognised when the Group’s right to receive the 

payment is established.

(I) tRAdE ANd otHER RECEIVABlES
  All trade receivables are recognised at the original amounts less an 

allowance for any uncollectible debts. An allowance for doubtful debts is 
made when there is objective evidence that the Group will not be able to 
collect debts. The recoverable amount of trade receivables is reviewed 
on an ongoing basis.

  Accrued receivables are stated at the aggregate of contract costs 
incurred to date plus recognised profits less recognised losses and 
progress billings. Contract costs include all costs directly related to 
specific contracts, costs that are specifically chargeable to the customer 
under the terms of the contract and an allocation of overhead expenses 
incurred in connection with the consolidated entity’s activities in general.

(J) INVENtoRIES
 (i) Raw materials and finished goods
   Raw materials and finished goods are stated at the lower of cost and 

net realisable value. Cost comprises direct materials, direct labour 
and an appropriate proportion of variable and fixed overhead 
expenditure, the latter being allocated on the basis of normal 
operating capacity. Costs are assigned to individual items of 
inventory on the first‑in, first‑out basis. Net realisable value is the 
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the 
estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary 
to make the sale.

 (ii) Consumables and stores
   Consumables and stores are stated at the lower of cost and net 

realisable value and charged to specific contracts when used.

 (iii) Work in progress
   Work in progress is valued at the lower of cost and net realisable 

value. Cost comprises staff salary costs and direct expenses 
together with an appropriate proportion of overheads. Net realisable 
value is based on estimated selling prices less further costs 
expected to be incurred to completion.

(K) RECoVERABlE AmouNt
  Where the carrying amount of a non‑current asset is greater than its 

recoverable amount, the asset is written down to its recoverable amount. 
In determining the recoverable amount, the expected cash flows have 
been discounted to their present value using a market determined risk 
adjusted discount rate.
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(l) PRoPERty, PlANt ANd EQuIPmENt
  Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated 

depreciation and impairment, if any. Depreciation is calculated on a 
straight line basis to write off the net cost or revalued amount of each 
item of property, plant and equipment (excluding land) over its expected 
useful life to the consolidated entity. The expected useful lives for plant 
and equipment range from three to 10 years. The estimated useful lives, 
residual values and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each 
annual reporting period.

(m) ImPAIRmENt of ASSEtS
  Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to amortisation 

and are tested annually for impairment. Assets that are subject to 
amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in 
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount exceeds its recoverable 
amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less 
costs to sell, and value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, 
assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately 
identifiable cash flows (cash generating units).

(N) lEASEHold ImPRoVEmENtS
  The cost of improvements to or on leasehold properties is amortised over 

the unexpired period of the lease or the estimated useful life of the 
improvement to the consolidated entity, whichever is the shorter.

(o) lEASES
  The determination of whether an arrangement is or contains a lease is 

based on the substance of the arrangement and requires an assessment 
of whether the fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use 
of a specific asset or assets and the arrangement conveys a right to use 
the asset.

 (i) Group as a lessee
   Finance leases, which transfer to the Group substantially all the 

risks and benefits incidental to ownership of the leased item, are 
capitalised at the inception of the lease at the fair value of the 
leased asset or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease 
payments. Lease payments are apportioned between the finance 
charges and reduction of the lease liability so as to achieve a 
constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. 
Finance charges are recognised as an expense in profit or loss.

   The minimum lease payments of operating leases, where the lessor 
effectively retains substantially all of the risks and benefits of 
ownership of the leased item, are recognised as an expense on a 
straight line basis. Lease incentives are recognised in the income 
statement as an integral part of the total lease expense.

 (ii) Group as a lessor
   Leases where the Group transfers substantially all the risks and 

rewards incidental to ownership of an asset to the lessee or a third 
party are classified as finance leases. A receivable at an amount 
equal to the present value of the lease payments, including any 
guaranteed residual value, is recognised.

   Income on finance leases is recognised on a basis reflecting a 
constant periodic return based on the lessor’s net investment 
outstanding in respect of the finance lease.

   Leases where the Group retains substantially all the risk and rewards 
incidental to ownership of an asset are classified as operating 
leases. Operating lease rental revenue is recognised on a straight 
line basis.

(P) INtANGIBlE ASSEtS
 (i) Goodwill
   Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase consideration over 

the fair value of identifiable net assets acquired at the time of 
acquisition of a business or shares in a controlled entity or an 
associate. Goodwill on acquisition of controlled entities is included 
in intangible assets and goodwill on acquisition of associates is 
included in investments in associates. Gains and losses on the 
disposal of an entity include the carrying amount of goodwill relating 
to the entity sold.

	 	 	Goodwill	is	not	amortised;	instead	it	is	tested	annually	for	any	
impairment in the carrying amount or more frequently if events 
or changes in circumstances indicate that it might be impaired. 
Goodwill is carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses.

   Goodwill is allocated to cash generating units for the purpose of 
impairment testing. Where the recoverable amount of the cash 
generating unit is less than the carrying amount, an impairment 
loss is recognised.

 (ii) Identifiable intangible assets
   Intangible assets acquired separately or in a business combination 

are initially measured at cost. The cost of an intangible asset 
acquired in a business combination is its fair value as at the date of 
acquisition. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried 
at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any accumulated 
impairment losses. Internally generated intangible assets, excluding 
capitalised development costs, are not capitalised and expenditure 
is recognised in profit and loss in the year in which the expenditure 
is incurred.

   The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either 
finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised 
over the useful life and tested for impairment whenever there 
is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The 
amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible 
asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least each financial 
year end. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected 
pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the 
asset are accounted for prospectively by changing the amortisation 
period or method, as appropriate, which is a change in accounting 
estimate. The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite 
lives is recognised in profit or loss. The amortisation period is 
between three to 15 years.

   Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for 
impairment annually either individually or at the cash generating unit 
level. Such intangible assets are not amortised. The useful life of an 
intangible asset with an indefinite life is reviewed each reporting 
period to determine whether indefinite life assessment continues to 
be supportable. If not, the change in the useful life assessment from 
indefinite to finite is accounted for as a change in an accounting 
estimate and is thus accounted for on a prospective basis.

   Research costs are expensed as incurred. An intangible asset arising 
from development expenditure on an internal project is recognised 
only when the Group can demonstrate the technical feasibility of 
completing the intangible asset so that it will be available for use 
or sale, its intention to complete and its ability to use or sell the 
asset, how the asset will generate future economic benefits, the 
availability of resources to complete the development and the ability 
to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to the intangible 
asset during its development.

(Q) tRAdE ANd otHER PAyABlES
  Liabilities for trade payables and other amounts are carried at cost which 

is the fair value of the consideration to be paid in the future for goods 
and services received, whether or not billed to the Company.

  Payables to related parties are carried at principal amount. Interest, when 
charged by the lender, is recognised as an expense on an accrual basis.

(R) INtERESt BEARING loANS ANd BoRRoWINGS
  Loans are initially recognised at fair value, net of transaction costs 

incurred. Loans are subsequently measured at amortised cost. Any 
difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the 
redemption amount is recognised in the income statement over the 
period of the loan using the effective interest rate method.

(S) PRoVISIoNS
  Provisions are recognised when the consolidated entity has a legal, 

equitable or constructive obligation to make a future sacrifice of 
economic benefits to other entities as a result of past transactions or 
other past events, it is probable that a future sacrifice of economic 
benefits will be required and a reliable estimate can be made of the 
amount of the obligation.



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS For the Financial Year Ended 30 June 2008

36     WorleyParsons Annual Report 2008

 (i) dividends payable
   Provision is made for the amount of any dividends declared, 

determined or publicly recommended by the directors at or before 
the end of the financial year but not distributed at balance date.

 (ii) Insurance
   Provision for insurance liabilities is recognised in line with actuarial 

calculations of unsettled professional indemnity claims, net of 
insurance recoveries. The provision is based on the aggregate 
amount of individual claims incurred but not reported that are lower 
in value than the insurance deductible of the consolidated entity. 
It is based on the ultimate cost of settling claims and consideration 
is given to the ultimate claim size, future inflation as well as the 
levels of compensation awarded through the courts.

 (iii) Warranties
   Provision is made for the estimated liability on all products and 

services still under warranty at balance date. This provision is 
estimated having regard to prior service warranty experience. 
In calculating the liability at balance date, amounts were not 
discounted to their present value as the effect of discounting was 
not material. In determining the level of provision required for 
warranties, the Group has made judgements in respect of the 
expected performance and the costs of fulfilling the warranty. 
Historical experience and current knowledge have been used in 
determining this provision.

 (iv) Insurance claims on acquisition
   Provisions for insurance claims on acquisition are recognised based 

on the estimated liability at the date of acquisition.

 (v) deferred revenue
   The Group at times receives payment for services prior to revenue 

being recognised in the financial statements. Revenue is classified 
as deferred due to the criteria required for its recognition not being 
met as at the reporting date, in line with the accounting policy set 
out in note 2(H).

 (vi) Expected losses on contracts
   Where the outcome for a services contract is expected to result in 

an overall loss over the life of the contract, this loss is provided for 
when it first becomes known that a loss will be incurred.

 (vii) Restructurings
   Provisions for restructurings are recognised when the consolidated 

entity has developed a detailed formal plan for the restructuring and 
has raised a valid expectation in those affected that it will carry out 
the restructuring by:

	 	 (a)	 	starting	to	implement	the	plan;	or

  (b)  announcing its main features to those affected by it.

(t) REPAIRS ANd mAINtENANCE
  Repairs, minor renewals and improvements, and the purchase of minor 

items of tools and equipment are charged to expense as incurred. 
Major renewals and improvements are capitalised to the respective asset 
and depreciated.

(u) BoRRoWING CoStS
  Borrowing costs are recognised as expenses in the period in which they 

are incurred, except when they are included in the costs of qualifying 
assets. Borrowing costs include:

 (i)  interest on bank overdrafts, and short term and long term 
borrowings;

	 (ii)	 	amortisation	of	discounts	or	premiums	relating	to	borrowings;	and

 (iii) finance lease charges.

(V) CASH ANd CASH EQuIVAlENtS
  Cash and cash equivalents in the balance sheet comprise cash at bank 

and in hand and short term deposits with an original maturity of three 
months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash 
and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

  For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents 
consist of cash and cash equivalents as defined above, net of outstanding 

bank overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are included within interest bearing 
loans and borrowings in current liabilities on the balance sheet.

(W) otHER INVEStmENtS
  All other non‑current investments are carried at the lower of cost or 

recoverable amount.

(X) ISSuEd CAPItAl
  Issued and paid up capital is recognised at the fair value of the 

consideration received by the Company. Any transactions costs arising 
on the issue of ordinary shares are recognised directly in equity as a 
reduction of the share proceeds received.

(y) EARNINGS PER SHARE
 (i) Basic earnings per share
   Basic earnings per share is determined by dividing the profit 

attributable to members of WorleyParsons Limited by the weighted 
average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the financial 
year.

 (ii) diluted earnings per share
   Diluted earnings per share is calculated as profit attributable to 

members of WorleyParsons Limited adjusted for:

	 	 (a)	 costs	of	servicing	equity	(other	than	dividends);

  (b)  the after tax effect of dividends and interest associated with 
dilutive potential ordinary shares that have been recognised as 
expenses;	and

  (c)  other non‑discretionary changes in revenues or expenses during 
the period that would result from the dilution of potential 
ordinary shares,

   divided by the weighted average number of ordinary shares and 
dilutive potential ordinary shares, adjusted for any bonus element.

(Z) SEGmENt REPoRtING
  A business segment is a group of assets and operations engaged in 

providing products or services that are subject to risks and returns that are 
different to those of other business segments. A geographical segment is 
engaged in providing products or services within a particular economic 
environment and is subject to risks and returns that are different from 
those of segments operating in other economic environments.

(AA) ASSEtS HEld foR SAlE
  Non‑current assets and disposal groups are classified as held for sale 

and measured at the lower of their carrying value and fair value less 
costs to sell if their carrying amount will be recovered principally 
through a sale transaction. They are not depreciated or amortised. 
For an asset or disposal group to be classified as held for sale, it must 
be available for immediate sale in its present condition and its sale 
must be highly probable.

  An impairment loss is recognised for any initial or subsequent write down 
of the asset (or disposal group) to fair value less costs to sell. A gain 
is recognised for any subsequent increases in fair value less costs to 
sell of an asset (or disposal group), but not in excess of any cumulative 
impairment loss previously recognised. A gain or loss not previously 
recognised by the date of the sale of the non‑current asset (or disposal 
group) is recognised at the date of derecognition.

  The assets and liabilities are presented separately on the face of the 
balance sheet.

(AB) dEtERmINAtIoN of fAIR VAluES
  A number of the Group’s accounting policies and disclosures require the 

determination of fair value, for both financial and non‑financial assets 
and liabilities. Fair values have been determined for measurement and/or 
disclosure purposes based on the following methods. When applicable, 
further information about the assumptions in determining fair values is 
disclosed in the notes specific to that asset or liability.

 (i) Property, plant and equipment
   The fair value of property, plant and equipment recognised as 

the result of a business combination is based on market values. 
The market value of property is the estimated amount for which a 
property could be exchanged on the date of valuation between a 
willing buyer and a willing seller in an arm’s length transaction of 
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proper marketing wherein the parties had each acted knowledgeably, 
prudently and without compulsion. The market value of plant, 
property, equipment, fixtures and fittings is based on quoted market 
prices for similar items.

 (ii) Investments in equity and debt securities
   The fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit and loss, 

held‑to‑maturity investments and available‑for‑sale financial assets 
is determined by reference to their quoted bid price at the reporting 
date. The fair value of held‑to‑maturity investments is determined 
for disclosure purposes only.

 (iii) derivatives
   The fair value of forward exchange contracts is estimated by 

discounting the difference between the contractual forward price 
and the current forward price and the current forward price for the 
residual maturity of the contract using a risk‑free interest rate 
(based on government bonds). The fair value of interest rate 
swaps is based on broker quotes. Those quotes are tested for 
reasonableness by discounting estimated cash flows based on the 
terms and maturity of each contract and using market interest rates 
for similar instruments at the measurement date.

 (iv) Non‑derivative financial liabilities
   Fair value, which is determined for disclosure purposes, is calculated 

based on the present value of future principal and interest cash 
flows, discounted at the market rate of interest at the reporting 
date. In respect of the liability component of convertible notes, 
the market rate of interest is determined by reference to similar 
liabilities that do not have a conversion option. For finance leases, 
the market rate of interest is determined by reference to similar 
lease agreements.

(AC) ComPARAtIVE fINANCIAl INfoRmAtIoN
  The balance sheet comparatives have been restated to show unbilled 

contract revenue within trade receivables rather than inventories as 
disclosed in the annual financial report for the year ended 30 June 2007, 
to align with industry practice.

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

(A) oVERVIEW
  The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise receivables, 

payables, bank loans and overdrafts, finance leases, cash and short term 
deposits and derivatives. The Group has exposure to the following risks 
from its use of financial instruments:

	 (i)	 credit	risk;

	 (ii)	 liquidity	risk;	and

 (iii) market risk.

  This note presents information about the Group’s exposure to each of 
the above risks, its objectives, policies and processes for measuring and 
managing risk, and the management of capital. Quantitative disclosures 
are included throughout this financial report.

  The Board has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight 
of the risk management framework. The Board has established the Audit 
and Risk Committee, which is responsible for approving and monitoring 
risk management policies. The Committee reports regularly to the Board 
on its activities.

  Risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the 
risks faced by the Group, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and 
to monitor risks and adherence to limits. Risk management policies and 
systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions 
and the Group’s activities. The Group, through its training and 
management standards and procedures, aims to develop a disciplined and 
constructive control environment in which all employees understand 
their roles and obligations.

  The Committee also oversees how management monitors compliance 
with the Group’s risk management policies and procedures and reviews 
the adequacy of the risk management framework in relation to the risks 
faced by the Group. The Committee is assisted in its oversight role by 
Internal Audit. Internal Audit undertakes both regular and ad hoc reviews 
of risk management controls and procedures, the results of which are 
reported to the Committee.

(B) CREdIt RISK
  Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Group if a customer or 

counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its contractual 
obligations, and arises principally from the Group’s receivables from 
customers and investment securities. For the Company, it arises from 
receivables due from subsidiaries.

 (i) trade and other receivables
   The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by the 

individual characteristics of each customer. The demographics of the 
Group’s customer base, including the default risk of the industry and 
country in which customers operate, have less of an influence on 
credit risk. Geographically and on a customer basis, there is no 
concentration of credit risk.

   The Group has a credit policy under which each new customer is 
analysed for creditworthiness before the Group’s payment and 
delivery terms and conditions are offered. The Group’s review 
includes external ratings, when available, and in some cases bank 
references. Customers that fail to meet the Group’s benchmark 
creditworthiness may transact with the Group only on a 
prepayment basis.

   Customers that are subsequently graded as “high risk” are placed 
on a restricted customer list, and future sales are made on a 
prepayment basis.

   The Group have established an allowance for impairment that 
represents their estimate of incurred losses in respect of trade 
and other receivables. The main components of this allowance 
are a specific loss component that relates to individually 
significant exposures.

 (ii) Guarantees
   Details of outstanding guarantees are provided in note 29. 

The Group is, in the normal course of business, required to provide 
guarantees and letters of credit on behalf of controlled entities, 
associates and related parties in respect of their contractual 
performance related obligations.

(C) lIQuIdIty RISK
  Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to meet its 

financial obligations as they fall due. The Group’s approach to managing 
liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient 
liquidity to meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed 
conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to 
the Group’s reputation.

  The Group ensures that is has sufficient cash on demand to meet 
expected operational expenses including the servicing of financial 
obligations;	this	excludes	the	potential	impact	of	extreme	circumstances	
that cannot reasonably be predicted, such as natural disasters.

(d) mARKEt RISK
  Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign 

exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices will affect the Group’s 
income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective 
of market risk management is to manage and control market risk 
exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimising the return.

  The Group enters into derivatives, and also incurs financial liabilities, 
in order to manage market risk. Generally, the Group seeks to apply 
hedge accounting in order to manage volatility in profit or loss.

 (i) Currency risk
   The Group is exposed to currency risk on sales, purchases and 

borrowings that are denominated in a currency other than the 
respective functional currencies of Group entities.

   The Group uses forward exchange contracts to hedge its currency 
risk, most with a maturity of less than one year from the reporting 
date. When necessary, forward exchange contracts are rolled over 
at maturity.

   Interest on borrowings is denominated in currencies that match the 
cash flows generated by the underlying operations for the Group, 
primarily AUD, CAD and USD. This provides an economic hedge and 
no derivatives are entered into.
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 (ii) Interest rate risk
   The Group enters into interest rate swaps to manage interest rate 

risk. The Group adopts a policy of ensuring that the majority of its 
exposure to interest rates on borrowings is on a fixed rate basis.

(E) CAPItAl mANAGEmENt
  The Board’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain 

investor, creditor and market confidence and to sustain future 
development of the business. The Board monitors the return on capital, 
which the Group defines as net operating income divided by total 
shareholders’ equity, excluding minority interests. The Board also 
monitors the level of dividends to ordinary shareholders. At present, 
employees hold approximately 38% of the issued ordinary shares in 
the Company.

  The Board seeks to maintain a balance between the higher returns that 
might be possible with higher levels of borrowings and the advantages 
and security afforded by a sound capital position. Management also 
measures the gearing position of Group to ensure that banking debt 
covenants are complied with.

  There were no changes in the Group’s approach to capital management 
during the year.

  Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries is subject to externally 
imposed capital requirements.

 CONSOLIDATED PARENT ENTITY

  2008 2007 2008 2007 
  $’M $’M $’M $’M

4 EXPENSES AND LOSSES/(GAINS)

Profit before income tax expense includes the following specific net gains 
and expenses:

NET GAINS

Gain on sale of investment – (2.3) – –

Ineffective hedges  5.3 – – –

OTHER EXPENSES AND LOSSES

Operating lease rentals –  
minimum lease payments  69.0 61.0 – –

Performance rights expense 19.9 12.5 – –

Provisions

Deferred revenue  29.5 5.9 – –

Warranties  7.5 5.4 – –

Insurance  1.4 7.8 – –

5 INCOME TAX

(A) INComE tAX EXPENSE
Current tax  157.3 75.7 0.2 (0.4)

Deferred tax  (12.5) 7.8 (0.8) 1.2

(Over)/under provision in  
previous financial periods  (3.8) (3.6) 0.8 0.6

Income tax expense  141.0 79.9 0.2 1.4

Deferred income tax  
expense/(revenue) included  
in income tax expense  
comprises:

(Increase)/decrease in  
deferred tax assets  (21.3) (10.8) (0.4) 0.5

Increase/(decrease) in  
deferred tax liabilities  8.8 18.6 (0.4) 0.7

Deferred tax  (12.5) 7.8 (0.8) 1.2

 CONSOLIDATED PARENT ENTITY

  2008 2007 2008 2007 
  $’M $’M $’M $’M

(B) NumERICAl RECoNCIlIAtIoN of INComE tAX EXPENSE to PRImA fACIE 
tAX PAyABlE
Profit before income tax  
expense  488.3 306.2 295.1 135.9

At the Group’s statutory  
income tax rate of 30%  
(2007: 30%)  146.5 91.9 88.5 40.8

Tax effect of amounts  
which are not  
(taxable)/deductible  
in calculating  
taxable income:

Rebateable dividends  – – (88.4) (40.1)

Non‑deductible performance  
rights  2.4 6.8 – –

Share of net profits of  
associates accounted for  
using the equity method  (10.0) (5.9) – –

Research and development  
concession  (2.1) (4.0) – –

Plant and machinery rebate (0.8) (0.6) – –

Benefit from tax losses  
not previously recognised  (0.1) (11.2) – –

(Over)/under provision in  
previous financial periods  (3.8) (3.6) 0.0 0.7

Difference in overseas tax rates* 9.5 6.1 – –

Other  (0.6) 0.4 0.1 –

Income tax expense  141.0 79.9 0.2 1.4

* Represents income tax expense for foreign tax rate differential and international withholding taxes.

(C) AmouNtS RECoGNISEd dIRECtly IN EQuIty
Aggregate amount of tax arising in the reporting period and not recognised in 
net profit or loss but directly (credited)/charged to equity:

Current tax – credited  
directly to equity  – 0.2 – 0.2

Deferred tax –  
(credited)/charged  
directly to equity  (16.8) (1.2) (1.0) (0.9)
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 CONSOLIDATED PARENT ENTITY

  2008 2007 2008 2007 
 NOTES $’M $’M $’M $’M

(d) tAX loSSES
The Group has tax losses for which no deferred tax asset is recognised on 
the balance sheet.

Unused tax losses for  
which no deferred tax  
asset has been recognised 12.4 11.5 – –

Potential tax benefit at 30% 3.7 3.4 – –

The benefit for tax losses will only be obtained if:

(i)  the consolidated entity derives future assessable income of a nature and 
of an amount sufficient to enable the benefit from the deductions for 
the	losses	to	be	realised;	or

(ii)	 	the	losses	are	transferred	to	an	eligible	entity	in	the	consolidated	entity;	
and

(iii)  the consolidated entity continues to comply with the conditions for 
deductibility	imposed	by	tax	legislation;	and

(iv)  no changes in tax legislation adversely affect the consolidated entity in 
realising the benefit from the deductions for the losses.

6 CURRENT ASSETS – CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash  
equivalents  82.2 118.6 5.3 –

The above figures are reconciled to cash at the end of the financial year as 
shown in the cash flow statement as follows:

Cash at bank and  
on hand  82.2 118.6 5.3 –

Cash and cash  
equivalents  82.2 114.8 5.3 –

Cash held for sale 8 3.8 – – –

Bank overdraft 13 (9.7) (10.6) – (2.4)

Balance per cash  
flow statement  76.3 108.0 5.3 (2.4)

7 CURRENT ASSETS – TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Trade receivables  704.1 437.4 – –

Unbilled contract  
revenue  408.0 313.4 – –

Retentions  13.5 7.6 – –

Allowance for  
doubtful debts  (16.5) (13.8) – –

  1,109.1 744.6 – –

Other receivables  47.9 29.1 0.2 0.3

Amounts owing by  
related parties and  
associates 32(C) 60.2 47.4 340.7 187.6

  1,217.2 821.1 340.9 187.9

The Group’s exposure to liquidity and currency risk for trade receivables and 
unbilled contract revenue is disclosed in notes 36 and 37. The Group has 
reclassified unbilled contract revenue such that this is no longer included in 
inventories, but rather shown separately in trade and other receivables.

otHER RECEIVABlES
These amounts generally arise from transactions outside the usual operating 
activities of the Group.

8 ASSETS AND LIABILITIES HELD FOR SALE

The Exmouth Power Station and equity investments in the Esperance Power 
Station and pipeline are presented as assets held for sale. It is expected that 
the sale of these investments will proceed within the next year.

  CONSOLIDATED

     2008 
     $’M

Cash     3.8

Trade and other receivables    3.4

Inventories     0.3

Finance lease receivable     31.8

Equity accounted investments    19.3

Deferred tax assets     0.4

     59.0

Trade and other payables     2.5

Interest bearing loans and borrowings1    23.6

Deferred tax liabilities     1.3

     27.4

 The above assets and liabilities are included in the Power business segment in note 34.

1 Interest bearing liabilities – Secured bank loan 
  The secured bank loan of $23.6 million is a fixed and floating interest rate term loan facility. 

This bank loan is secured by the assets of Exmouth Power Station Pty Limited. The terms of the loan 
facility precludes the assets from being used as a security for other debt within the Group. The loan 
facility requires the assets to be insured.

 CONSOLIDATED PARENT ENTITY

  2008 2007 2008 2007 
  $’M $’M $’M $’M

9 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

lANd ANd BuIldINGS

At cost  2.0 0.9 – –

Accumulated depreciation  (0.1) – – –

  1.9 0.9 – –

lEASEHold ImPRoVEmENtS

At cost  45.7 35.2 – –

Accumulated amortisation  (20.0) (18.1) – –

  25.7 17.1 – –

PlANt ANd EQuIPmENt

At cost  86.2 60.6 – –

Accumulated depreciation  (48.8) (33.5) – –

  37.4 27.1 – –

ComPutER EQuIPmENt

At cost  51.9 50.7 – –

Accumulated depreciation  (35.2) (32.5) – –

  16.7 18.2 – –

Total property, plant  
and equipment  81.7 63.3 – –
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9 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

RECoNCIlIAtIoNS
Reconciliations of the carrying amounts of each class of property, plant and equipment at the beginning and end of the current and previous financial years are 
set out below:

 CONSOLIDATED

 LAND AND LEASEHOLD PLANT AND COMPUTER  
 BUILDINGS IMPROVEMENTS EQUIPMENT EQUIPMENT TOTAL 
 $’M $’M $’M $’M $’M

Balance at 1 July 2007 0.9 17.1 27.1 18.2 63.3

Additions due to the acquisition of entities 1.2 1.4 4.5 1.4 8.5

Additions – 14.1 25.2 6.2 45.5

Disposals – (0.4) (0.4) – (0.8)

Depreciation (0.1) (5.2) (17.0) (6.3) (28.6)

Differences arising on translation of foreign controlled entities (0.1) (1.3) (2.0) (2.8) (6.2)

Balance at 30 June 2008 1.9 25.7 37.4 16.7 81.7

 CONSOLIDATED

 LAND AND LEASEHOLD PLANT AND COMPUTER CAPITAL WORK 
 BUILDINGS IMPROVEMENTS EQUIPMENT EQUIPMENT IN PROGRESS TOTAL 
 $’M $’M $’M $’M $’M $’M

Balance at 1 July 2006 1.0 7.2 14.7 11.4 26.4 60.7

Additions due to the acquisition of entities – 5.2 8.9 6.1 – 20.2

Additions – 9.8 18.7 2.5 6.5 37.5

Transfers – (0.5) 0.5 – – –

Disposals – – – (0.3) – (0.3)

Transfer to finance lease receivable – – – – (32.9) (32.9)

Depreciation – – (15.8) (1.2) – (17.0)

Amortisation – (4.3) – – – (4.3)

Differences arising on translation of foreign controlled entities (0.1) (0.3) 0.1 (0.3) – (0.6)

Balance at 30 June 2007 0.9 17.1 27.1 18.2 – 63.3
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 CONSOLIDATED PARENT ENTITY

  2008 2007 2008 2007 
  $’M $’M $’M $’M

10 NON‑CURRENT ASSETS – INTANGIBLE ASSETS

GoodWIll

At cost  1,395.8 1,332.6 – –

Accumulated impairment  (1.0) (1.0) – –

  1,394.8 1,331.6 – –

CuStomER CoNtRACtS ANd RElAtIoNSHIPS

At cost  90.9 79.4 – –

Accumulated amortisation  (20.4) (4.9) – –

  70.5 74.5 – –

tRAdE NAmES

At cost  68.3 66.0 – –

Accumulated amortisation  (19.6) (11.9) – –

  48.7 54.1 – –

ComPutER SoftWARE

At cost  64.7 30.9 – –

Accumulated amortisation  (26.2) (16.7) – –

  38.5 14.2 – –

fAVouRABlE PRoPERty lEASES

At cost  9.7 10.5 – –

Accumulated amortisation  (2.5) (0.7) – –

  7.2 9.8 – –

otHER

At cost  3.5 4.7 – –

Accumulated amortisation  (0.8) (1.0) – –

  2.7 3.7 – –

Total intangible assets  1,562.4 1,487.9 – –

RECoNCIlIAtIoNS
Reconciliations of intangible assets at the beginning and end of the current and previous financial years are set out below:

 CONSOLIDATED

  CUSTOMER 
  CONTRACTS AND  COMPUTER FAVOURABLE 
 GOODWILL RELATIONSHIPS TRADE NAMES SOFTWARE PROPERTY LEASES OTHER TOTAL 
 $’M $’M $’M $’M $’M $’M $’M

Balance at 1 July 2007 1,331.6 74.5 54.1 14.2 9.8 3.7 1,487.9

Additions due to the acquisition of entities 174.4 17.7 4.6 0.4 – – 197.1

Additions – – – 34.7 – – 34.7

Differences arising on translation of  
foreign controlled entities (111.2) (5.4) (1.8) (0.1) (0.6) (0.3) (119.4)

Amortisation – (16.3) (8.2) (10.7) (2.0) (0.7) (37.9)

Balance at 30 June 2008 1,394.8 70.5 48.7 38.5 7.2 2.7 1,562.4

Balance at 1 July 2006 377.2 – 26.8 3.9 – – 407.9

Additions due to the acquisition of entities 974.3 78.2 30.5 8.3 10.3 4.7 1,106.3

Additions – – – 3.9 – – 3.9

Differences arising on translation of  
foreign controlled entities (19.9) 1.2 0.5 (0.2) 0.1 0.1 (18.2)

Amortisation – (4.9) (3.7) (1.7) (0.6) (1.1) (12.0)

Balance at 30 June 2007 1,331.6 74.5 54.1 14.2 9.8 3.7 1,487.9



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS For the Financial Year Ended 30 June 2008

42     WorleyParsons Annual Report 2008

10 NON‑CURRENT ASSETS – INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)

Impairment testing
Identifiable intangible assets with finite lives are carried at cost less 
accumulated amortisation and adjusted for any accumulated impairment loss. 
The assets are assessed at each reporting date as to whether there is any 
indication that the asset may be impaired. Goodwill is an intangible asset 
which is tested annually for impairment. The recoverable amount test is 
based on a value in use calculation. These calculations use cash flow 
projections based on financial forecasts of how the business is expected to 
operate based on current performance and the business environment but 
taking into account expected future changes.

Key assumptions used for impairment testing for the year ended 30 June 
2008 include pre‑tax discount rates (11.6% to 18.4%) per annum, expected 
future profits and future nominal growth rates (5% to 10%) per annum 
without reinvestment. Sensitivity analysis is used to determine whether the 
carrying value is supported under different assumptions.

Goodwill is not impaired at reporting date. The business segments form the 
basis of the cash generating units. Intangible assets including goodwill are 
disclosed by segment in note 34.

 CONSOLIDATED PARENT ENTITY

  2008 2007 2008 2007 
  $’M $’M $’M $’M

11 NON‑CURRENT ASSETS – DEFERRED TAX ASSETS

The balance comprises temporary  
differences attributable to:

Amounts recognised in the  
income statement:

Allowance for doubtful debts 2.9 3.0 – –

Employee benefits provision 14.1 13.1 – –

Warranty provision  4.0 3.2 – –

Project provisions  2.3 1.5 – –

Interests in partnerships  9.8 7.6 – –

Fixed assets  2.5 4.2 – –

Sundry accruals  10.2 2.3 – –

Recognised tax losses  2.9 0.8 – –

Other  9.4 3.7 0.5 0.1

  58.1 39.4 0.5 0.1

Amounts recognised directly  
into equity:

Costs associated with 
Parsons	E&C	acquisition	 	 –	 1.0	 –	 1.0

Cash flow hedges  2.6 0.1 – –

Capital foreign  
exchange losses  – 2.9 – –

Net deferred tax assets  60.7 43.4 0.5 1.1

Balance at the beginning of  
the financial year  43.4 31.8 1.1 2.5

Differences arising on translation  
of foreign controlled entities (2.2) – – –

Credited/(charged) to the  
income statement  21.3 10.8 0.4 (0.5)

(Charged)/credited to equity (1.4) 0.8 (1.0) (0.9)

Transfer to assets held for sale  
(note 8)  (0.4) – – –

Balance at the end of the  
financial year  60.7 43.4 0.5 1.1

 CONSOLIDATED PARENT ENTITY

  2008 2007 2008 2007 
 NOTES $’M $’M $’M $’M

12 CURRENT LIABILITIES – TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Trade payables  173.8 133.5 – –

Accruals  261.2 174.1 – –

Payables to related  
parties and  
associates 32(C) 42.1 10.9 – –

Billings in advance  11.8 19.1 – –

Accrued staff costs  106.8 62.4 0.5 7.7

  595.7 400.0 0.5 7.7

The Group’s exposure to currency and interest rate risk for trade and other 
payables is disclosed in notes 37 and 38.

13 CURRENT LIABILITIES – INTEREST BEARING LOANS AND 
BORROWINGS

Bank overdraft  9.7 10.6 – 2.4

Bank loans

– Secured  – 1.0 – –

– Unsecured  18.2 5.9 – –

Promissory note  9.9 10.4 – –

Lease and hire purchase liabilities 0.7 0.5 – –

  38.5 28.4 – 2.4

BANK oVERdRAft
The bank overdraft facilities can be drawn at any time subject to the terms 
and conditions set out in the facility agreement. This instrument is subject to 
negative pledge arrangements which require WorleyParsons to comply with 
certain minimum financial requirements.

uNSECuREd BANK loAN
Refer to note 15 for terms and conditions.

PRomISSoRy NotE
The promissory note of 4.5 billion Chilean Pesos (A$9.9 million) is an 
unsecured fixed interest rate facility.

 CONSOLIDATED PARENT ENTITY

  2008 2007 2008 2007 
  $’M $’M $’M $’M

14 CURRENT LIABILITIES – PROVISIONS

Employee benefits  112.5 86.1 – –

Deferred revenue  78.9 56.9 – –

Insurance  15.1 16.1 – –

Warranties  26.9 22.8 – –

Deferred consideration  5.8 19.6 – –

Other  6.6 7.0 – –

  245.8 208.5 – –
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moVEmENtS IN PRoVISIoNS 2008
 CONSOLIDATED

     DEFERRED 
 EMPLOYEE DEFERRED   CONSID‑ 
 BENEFITS REVENUE INSURANCE WARRANTIES ERATION OTHER 
 $’M $’M $’M $’M $’M $’M

Carrying  
amount at  
1 July 2007 86.1 56.9 16.1 22.8 19.6 7.0

Provision  
from entities  
acquired 2.2 7.0 – – – –

Additional  
provision 38.0 29.5 1.4 7.5 1.3 0.3

Transfer from 
non‑current 
liability (note 17) – – – 0.2 5.1 0.7

Differences  
arising from  
translation  
of foreign  
controlled 
entities (4.1) (5.2) (1.5) (1.9) 0.1 (1.4)

Amounts utilised (9.7) (9.3) (0.9) (1.7) (20.3) –

Carrying  
amount at  
30 June 2008 112.5 78.9 15.1 26.9 5.8 6.6

moVEmENtS IN PRoVISIoNS 2007
 CONSOLIDATED

    DEFERRED 
 DEFERRED   CONSID‑ 
 REVENUE INSURANCE WARRANTIES ERATION OTHER 
 $’M $’M $’M $’M $’M

Carrying amount at  
1 July 2006 69.4 6.4 6.9 7.6 2.1

Provision from entities  
acquired 0.4 1.9 0.3 – –

Additional provision 5.9 7.8 5.4 9.3 5.2

Transfer from non‑current  
liability (note 17) – – 14.7 10.1 –

Differences arising from  
translation of foreign  
controlled entities (8.0) – (0.9) (0.7) (0.3)

Amounts utilised (10.8) – (3.6) (6.7) –

Carrying amount at  
30 June 2007 56.9 16.1 22.8 19.6 7.0

 CONSOLIDATED PARENT ENTITY

  2008 2007 2008 2007 
  $’M $’M $’M $’M

15 NON‑CURRENT LIABILITIES – INTEREST BEARING LOANS 
AND BORROWINGS

Notes payable  515.4 413.5 – –

Bank loan

– Secured bank loan  – 23.6 – –

–  Unsecured bank loan,  
net of borrowing costs  157.4 51.0 – –

Lease liabilities  0.1 0.3 – –

  672.9 488.4 – –

NotES PAyABlE IN uS$
Unsecured notes payable were issued in the United States private debt 
capital market in May 2007 and April 2008. The issue in April 2008 
comprised US$144.5 million maturing in 2018 with a fixed coupon of 6.5% 
per annum. The issue in May 2007 comprised US$40 million at floating rates 
maturing in May 2012, US$140.5 million maturing in May 2014 with a fixed 
coupon of 5.61% and US$169.5 million maturing in May 2017 with a fixed 
coupon of 5.75%.

SECuREd BANK loAN
The secured bank loan has been transferred to assets and liabilities held for 
sale as disclosed in note 8.

uNSECuREd BANK loAN
Unsecured bank loans are floating interest rate term loan facilities. These 
instruments are subject to negative pledge arrangements which require 
WorleyParsons to comply with certain minimum financial requirements.

Included in unsecured bank loans is a US$45.0 million (US$10 million current, 
US$35 million non‑current) facility that is repayable so that the aggregate 
facility commitment does not exceed the following amounts on the 
following dates:

3.5 years from 12 November 2004 US$45 million

4 years from 12 November 2004 US$40 million

4.5 years from 12 November 2004 US$35 million

5 years from 12 November 2004 –
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 CONSOLIDATED PARENT ENTITY

  2008 2007 2008 2007 
  $’M $’M $’M $’M

16 NON‑CURRENT LIABILITIES – DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

The balance comprises temporary  
differences attributable to:

Amounts recognised in the  
income statement:

Identifiable intangible assets  
and goodwill amortisation  52.4 59.5 – –

Unbilled contract revenue  43.5 33.1 – –

Unrealised foreign  
exchange gain  2.3 1.0 – –

Other  9.1 4.6 0.3 0.7

  107.3 98.2 0.3 0.7

Amounts recognised directly  
in equity:

Unrealised foreign exchange  
gain on currency loans not 
denominated in functional 
tax currency  16.9 1.0 – –

Other  0.7 1.2 – –

Deferred tax liabilities  124.9 100.4 0.3 0.7

Balance at the beginning  
of the financial year  100.4 35.2 0.7 –

Differences arising on translation  
of foreign controlled entities (2.8) – – –

Charged/(credited) to the  
income statement  8.8 18.6 (0.4) 0.7

Charged/(credited) to equity 15.4 2.0 – –

Acquisition of controlled entities 4.4 44.6 – –

Transfer to assets held for sale  
(note 8)  (1.3) – – –

Balance at the end of the  
financial year  124.9 100.4 0.3 0.7

17 NON‑CURRENT LIABILITIES – PROVISIONS

Employee benefits  8.5 5.7 – –

Claims acquired on acquisition 10.7 11.8 – –

Deferred revenue and warranties 12.5 13.3 – –

Deferred consideration  – 5.1 – –

Other  0.4 1.1 – –

  32.1 37.0 – –

NAtuRE ANd tImING of PRoVISIoNS
Employee benefits: Refer to note 2(D) for the relevant accounting policy and 
a discussion of the significant estimations and assumptions applied in the 
measurement of this provision.

Claims acquired on acquisition: The Group recognised a provision for claims 
acquired as a result of the acquisition of purchased entities.

Deferred revenue: The Group at times recovers payment for services prior to 
revenue being recognised in the financial statements. It is expected that this 
revenue will be accrued within two years of the balance sheet date.

Warranties: Provision is made for the estimated liability on all products and 
services still under warranty at balance date. It is expected that these costs 
will be incurred within two years of the balance sheet date.

moVEmENtS IN PRoVISIoNS 2008
  CLAIMS DEFERRED 
 EMPLOYEE ACQUIRED ON REVENUE AND DEFERRED 
 BENEFITS ACQUISITION WARRANTIES CONSIDERATION OTHER 
CONSOLIDATED $’M $’M $’M $’M $’M

Carrying amount at  
1 July 2007 5.7 11.8 13.3 5.1 1.1

Additional provision 2.8 – – – –

Transfer to current  
liability (note 14) – – (0.2) (5.1) (0.7)

Differences arising  
from translation of 
foreign controlled 
entities – (0.7) (0.6) – –

Amounts utilised – (0.4) – – –

Carrying amount at  
30 June 2008 8.5 10.7 12.5 – 0.4

moVEmENtS IN PRoVISIoNS 2007
 CLAIMS DEFERRED 
 ACQUIRED ON REVENUE AND DEFERRED 
 ACQUISITION WARRANTIES CONSIDERATION OTHER 
CONSOLIDATED $’M $’M $’M $’M

Carrying amount at  
1 July 2006 13.5 28.5 10.8 1.0

Additional provision – – 5.4 0.5

Transfer to current liability – (14.7) (10.1) –

Differences arising from  
translation of foreign  
controlled entities (1.7) (0.5) (1.0) –

Amounts utilised – – – (0.4)

Carrying amount at  
30 June 2007 11.8 13.3 5.1 1.1

18 ISSUED CAPITAL

 CONSOLIDATED

 2008 2007

  NUMBER  NUMBER 
  OF SHARES $’M OF SHARES $’M

Ordinary shares,  
fully paid1,2  241,779,455 1,132.5 240,572,286 1,128.5

Special voting share  1 – 1 –

  241,779,456 1,132.5 240,572,287 1,128.5

1  Included in ordinary shares are 10,114,322 (2007: 12,306,499) exchangeable shares. The issuance 
of the exchangeable shares and the attached special voting share replicate the economic effect of 
issuing ordinary shares in the Company. Accordingly, for accounting purposes, exchangeable shares 
are treated in the same single class of issued capital as ordinary shares. In addition, the Australian 
Securities Exchange (ASX) treats these exchangeable shares to have been converted into ordinary 
shares of the Company at the time of their issue for the purposes of the ASX Listing Rules.

2  The WorleyParsons Limited Plans Trust holds 283,964 (2007: 293,212) shares in the Company 
which has been consolidated and eliminated in accordance with the accounting standards.
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 CONSOLIDATED

 2008 2007

  NUMBER  NUMBER 
  OF SHARES $’M OF SHARES $’M

(A) moVEmENtS IN SHARES
Balance at the beginning  
of the financial year  240,572,287 1,128.5 204,558,651 327.1

Ordinary shares issued  9,248 0.3 22,985,426 481.4

Ordinary shares  
on redemption of  
exchangeable shares  2,192,177 58.3 – –

Exchangeable shares  
exchanged for ordinary  
shares  (2,192,177) (58.3) – –

Exchangeable shares  
redeemed  – – 12,306,499 329.8

Transaction costs,  
net of tax  – – – (11.1)

Purchase of shares to  
satisfy performance rights – – – (0.7)

Tax effect of purchase  
of shares to satisfy  
performance rights  – – – 0.1

Issuance of special voting share – – 1 –

Transfer from performance  
rights reserve on purchase  
and issuance of shares  1,197,921 3.7 721,7101 1.9

Balance at the end  
of the financial year  241,779,456 1,132.5 240,572,287 1,128.5

1  Includes 281,607 performance rights issued as deferred consideration on the acquisition of a 
controlled entity.

(B) tERmS ANd CoNdItIoNS of ISSuEd CAPItAl
ordinary shares
Ordinary shares have the right to receive dividends as declared and, in the 
event of the winding up of the Company, to participate in the proceeds from 
the sale of all surplus assets in proportion to the number of and amounts paid 
up on shares held. Ordinary shares entitle their holder to one vote, either in 
person or by proxy, at a meeting of the Company.

Exchangeable shares
The exchangeable shares were issued by WorleyParsons Canada SPV 
Limited, as part of the consideration for the acquisition of the Colt Group. 
Exchangeable shares may be exchanged into ordinary shares of the Company 
on a one for one basis (subject to adjustments) at any time by the 
exchangeable shareholders, subject to escrow arrangements.

Exchangeable shares have the right to receive the same cash dividends 
or cash distributions as declared on the ordinary shares into which they 
are convertible. In the event of the winding up of the Company, the 
exchangeable shares would convert to ordinary shares, which would 
participate in the proceeds from the sale of all surplus assets pro rata with 
other ordinary shares.

The exchangeable shares, through a voting trust which holds a special voting 
share in WorleyParsons, entitle their holders to vote at WorleyParsons’ 
general meetings as though they hold ordinary shares. During the financial 
year ended 30 June 2008, 2,192,177 (2007: nil) exchangeable shares were 
retracted.

Special voting share
The special voting share was issued to Computershare Trust Company of 
Canada Limited (Trustee) as part of the consideration for the acquisition of 
the Colt Group. The special voting share does not have the right to receive 
dividends as declared, and in the event of the winding up of the Company, 
is unable to participate in the proceeds from the sale of all surplus assets. 
The special voting share has a right to vote together as one class of share 
with the holders of ordinary shares in the circumstances in which shareholders 
have a right to vote, subject to WorleyParsons’ constitution and applicable 
law. The Trustee must vote in the manner instructed by an exchangeable 
shareholder in respect of the number of votes that would attach to the 

ordinary shares to be received by that exchangeable shareholder on exchange 
of its exchangeable shares. The special voting share has an aggregate number 
of votes equal to the number of votes attached to ordinary shares into which 
the exchangeable shares are retracted.

(C) PERfoRmANCE RIGHtS
The policy in respect of performance rights is outlined in note 2(D).

  NUMBER OF  
  PERFORMANCE RIGHTS

    2008 2007

Balance at the beginning of the financial year  3,153,851 2,782,064

Rights granted    895,492 865,391

Rights exercised    (1,197,921) (440,103)

Rights lapsed or expired    (25,795) (53,501)

Balance at the end of the financial year   2,825,627 3,153,851

 CONSOLIDATED PARENT ENTITY

  2008 2007 2008 2007 
  $’M $’M $’M $’M

19 RESERVES

Foreign currency  
translation reserve  (178.0) (25.7) – –

Hedge reserve  (3.7) 4.6 – –

Asset revaluation reserve  1.2 1.2 – –

Performance rights reserve 22.7 12.0 22.7 12.0

  (157.8) (7.9) 22.7 12.0

(A) foREIGN CuRRENCy tRANSlAtIoN RESERVE
The foreign currency translation reserve is used to record exchange 
differences arising from the translation of the financial statements of foreign 
controlled entities and associates, and the net investments hedged in these 
entities.

Balance at the beginning  
of the financial year  (25.7) (2.8) – –

Foreign exchange movement on  
translation of foreign controlled  
entities and associates  (191.8) (24.5) – –

Net investments hedged, net 
of tax  39.5 1.6 – –

Balance at the end of the  
financial year  (178.0) (25.7) – –

(B) HEdGE RESERVE
The hedge reserve is used to record gains or losses on hedging instruments 
used in the cash flow hedges that are recognised directly in equity, as 
described in note 2(F). Amounts are recognised in profit and loss when the 
associated hedged transaction affects profit and loss.

Balance at the beginning  
of the financial year  4.6 0.6 – –

Transfer of ineffective  
foreign exchange hedges,  
net of tax  (3.7) – – –

Net gain on foreign  
exchange hedges, net of tax 1.9 2.7 – –

Fair value loss on mark to  
market of cross currency hedge,  
net of tax  (7.5) – – –

Net gain on interest rate hedges,  
net of tax  0.5 0.6 – –

Share of interest rate hedges  
recognised in associates  0.5 0.7 – –

Balance at the end of the  
financial year  (3.7) 4.6 – –



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS For the Financial Year Ended 30 June 2008

46     WorleyParsons Annual Report 2008

19 RESERVES (continued)

 CONSOLIDATED PARENT ENTITY

  2008 2007 2008 2007 
  $’M $’M $’M $’M

(C) ASSEt REVAluAtIoN RESERVE
The asset revaluation reserve is used to record increments and decrements in 
the value of non‑current assets. The reserve can only be used to pay 
dividends in limited circumstances.

Balance at the beginning  
of the financial year  1.2 – – –

Asset revaluation reserve  
of existing investment  
on acquisition  – 2.0 – –

Transfer to retained profits  
on disposal of investment  – (0.8) – –

Balance at the end of the  
financial year  1.2 1.2 – –

(d) PERfoRmANCE RIGHtS RESERVE
The performance rights reserve is used to recognise the fair value of 
performance rights issued but not satisfied.

Balance at the beginning  
of the financial year  12.0 5.8 12.0 5.8

Performance rights expense 14.4 8.1 14.4 8.1

Transfer to issued capital on  
purchase and issuance of shares  
to satisfy performance rights (3.7) (1.9) (3.7) (1.9)

Balance at the end of the  
financial year  22.7 12.0 22.7 12.0

 CONSOLIDATED PARENT ENTITY

  2008 2007 2008 2007 
 NOTES $’M $’M $’M $’M

20 RETAINED PROFITS

Balance at the  
beginning of the  
financial year  265.0 143.0 101.5 70.8

Profit attributable  
to members of  
WorleyParsons  
Limited  343.9 224.8 294.9 134.4

Transfer from asset  
revaluation reserve  – 0.8 – –

Dividends paid 22 (170.1) (103.6) (170.3) (103.7)

Balance at the end  
of the financial year  438.8 265.0 226.1 101.5

  CONSOLIDATED

    2008 2007

21 EARNINGS PER SHARE

AttRIButABlE to mEmBERS

Basic earnings per share (cents)   142.5 101.8

Diluted earnings per share (cents)   140.8 100.4

The following reflects the income and security data used in the calculation of 
basic and diluted earnings per share:

Earnings used in calculating basic and diluted  
earnings per share ($’M)    343.9 224.8

Weighted average number of ordinary securities  
used in calculating basic earnings per share  241,410,336 220,812,863

Bonus element of performance rights which  
are considered dilutive    2,833,922 3,054,035

Adjusted weighted average number of  
ordinary securities used in calculating diluted  
earnings per share    244,244,258 223,866,898

The weighted average number of converted, lapsed or cancelled potential 
ordinary shares used in diluted earnings per share was 1,233,716 
(2007: 521,467).

 CONSOLIDATED PARENT ENTITY

  2008 2007 2008 2007 
  $’M $’M $’M $’M

22 DIVIDENDS

(A) fINAl dIVIdENd PRoPoSEd
Dividend in respect of the  
six months to 30 June 2008:

47.5 cents per share  
(33.7 cents franked)  114.8 – 114.9 –

Dividend in respect of the  
six months to 30 June 2007:

32.5 cents per share  
(9.5 cents franked)  – 78.2 – 78.3

Dividends will be paid on 10 October 2008. Dividends paid by the parent entity 
are franked at the corporate tax rate of 30%. The record date for the 2008 final 
dividend will be 12 September 2008.

(B) dIVIdENdS PAId duRING tHE yEAR
Dividends in respect of the  
six months to 31 December 2007:

38.0 cents per share  
(11.4 cents franked)  91.9 – 92.0 –

Dividend in respect of the  
six months to 30 June 2007:

32.5 cents per share  
(9.5 cents franked)  78.2 – 78.3 –

Dividends in respect of the  
six months to 31 December 2006:

28.0 cents per share  
(5.4 cents franked)  – 57.5 – 57.6

Dividend in respect of the  
six months to 30 June 2006:

22.5 cents per share  
(7.7 cents franked)  – 46.1 – 46.1

  170.1 103.6 170.3 103.7
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 CONSOLIDATED PARENT ENTITY

  2008 2007 2008 2007 
  $’M $’M $’M $’M

(C) fRANKING CREdIt BAlANCE of tHE PARENt ENtIty
The amount of franking credits  
available on a tax paid basis  
for future distributions is:

–  franking credits balance as at  
the end of the financial year  
at the corporate tax rate of  
30% (2007: 30%)  9.6 9.8 9.6 9.8

–  franking credits arising from  
the payment of income  
tax provided in this  
financial report  25.4 0.1 25.4 0.1

Franking credits available  
for distribution  35.0 9.9 35.0 9.9

Franking debits that will  
arise from the payment of  
the final dividend  (35.0) (9.8) (35.0) (9.8)

Franking credits available for  
future dividends  0.0 0.1 0.0 0.1

23 INVESTMENTS IN CONTROLLED ENTITIES

(A) WORLEYPARSONS LIMITED GROUP ACCOUNTS INCLUDE A CONSOLIDATION 
OF THE FOLLOWING ENTITIES:

  BENEFICIAL  
  INTEREST HELD BY 
  CONSOLIDATED ENTITY

  COUNTRY OF 2008 2007 
ENTITY  INCORPORATION % %

A.C.N. 009 009 643 Pty Limited1,5  Australia 100 100

A.C.N. 009 265 927 Pty Limited1,5  Australia 100 100

Australian Biodiesel Pty Limited1  Australia 51 51

Beijing MaisonParsons Engineer2  People’s Republic 
&	Technology	Co	Limited	 	 of	China	 75	 75

Braeside Properties Ltd  Canada 100 100

Cadskills Pte Limited  Singapore 100 100

Colt‑CGSL Partnership, The  Canada 100 100

Colt Companies LP, The  Canada 100 100

Colt Construction Inc1  Canada 100 100

Colt Engineering Corporation  Canada 100 100

Colt Engineering (International)  
Limited  Canada 100 100

Colt Engineering (Ontario) Corporation  Canada 100 100

Colt Engineering Inc3  USA 100 100

Colt Geomatic Solutions Ltd  Canada 100 100

Colt Technical Services Ltd  Barbados 100 100

Colt Technologies Inc  Canada 100 100

Cord Projects Ltd  Canada 100 100

CTR Solutions Pty Limited1  Australia 100 100

Damit WorleyParsons Engineering  
Sdn Bhd  Brunei 70 70

EFC Capital Limited1  Cyprus 100 100

Energy Resourcing Australia Pty  
Limited  Australia 100 100

Energy Resourcing Singapore Pte  
Limited  Singapore 100 100

EnergySkills Recruitment (Thailand)  
Limited5  Thailand 100 100

  BENEFICIAL  
  INTEREST HELD BY 
  CONSOLIDATED ENTITY

  COUNTRY OF 2008 2007 
ENTITY  INCORPORATION % %

Engineering Securities Pty Limited 
atf The Worley Limited Trust  Australia 100 100

Exmouth Power Station Pty Limited  Australia 100 100

Fraser Worley Pty Limited1,5  Australia 100 100

Heerema EPS1 LLC9  USA 100 –

Heerema EPS2 LLC9  USA 100 –

HEPS (US) Inc9  USA 100 –

Holbourn Pty Limited atf  
The WorleyParsons Limited  
Plans Trust  Australia 100 100

INTEC Asia Pacific Sdn Bhd9  Malaysia 100 –

INTEC	Consulting	&	Engineering	 
Services Nigeria Ltd9  Nigeria 100 –

INTEC do Brasil Limitada9  Brazil 100 –

INTEC Engineering (SEA) Sdn Bhd9  Malaysia 100 –

INTEC Engineering (UK) Limited9  United Kingdom 100 –

INTEC Engineering BV9  The Netherlands 100 –

INTEC Engineering Group BV9  The Netherlands 100 –

INTEC Engineering LLC9  USA 100 –

INTEC Engineering Mexico SA de CV9  Mexico 100 –

INTEC Engineering Partnership Ltd9  USA 100 –

INTEC Engineering Pty Limited9  Australia 100 –

INTEC Engineering Services Inc9  USA 100 –

John Thompson Engineering Pty  
Limited  Australia 100 100

John	Wilson	&	Partners	Pty	Limited8  Australia 100 –

John	Wilson	&	Partners	(Services)	 
Pty Limited8  Australia 100 –

Jones	&	Jones	Engineering	Design	 
Pty Limited  Australia 100 100

Komex (Cyprus) Limited  Cyprus 100 100

Komex Environmental (Ireland)  
Limited2  Ireland 100 100

Mar WorleyParsons, S.A. de C.V.  Mexico 55 55

Maxview Engineering Limited2  Hong Kong 100 100

MEG Plus Limited6  Canada – 100

Parsons	E&C	Construction	 
Services Inc6  USA – 100

Parsons	E&C	de	Mexico	SA	de	CV	 	 Mexico	 100	 100

Parsons	E&C	United	Limited	 	 Saudi	Arabia	 100	 100

Parsons	Energy	&	Chemicals	Group	 
Limited  Cayman Islands 100 100

Parsons Group International  
Zagreb d.o.o2  Croatia 100 100

Parsons Power Group Inc6  USA – 100

Parsons Proceso y Asociados SA1  Columbia 71 71

Parsons Tecnica de Venezuela, CA  Venezuela 100 100

Paterson	Britton	&	Partners	 
Pty Limited8  Australia 100 –

PCT Pollution Control Technologies  
Ltd  Canada 100 100

Perancang Lestari Sdn Bhd8  Malaysia 100 –

Perunding Utama Sdn Bhd8  Malaysia 100 –

Polestar Applied Technology Inc8  USA 100 –

Polestar GB Limited8  United Kingdom 100 –
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23 INVESTMENTS IN CONTROLLED ENTITIES (continued)

(A) WORLEYPARSONS LIMITED GROUP ACCOUNTS INCLUDE A CONSOLIDATION 
OF THE FOLLOWING ENTITIES (continued):

  BENEFICIAL  
  INTEREST HELD BY 
  CONSOLIDATED ENTITY

  COUNTRY OF 2008 2007 
ENTITY  INCORPORATION % %

Pollution Control Technologies Inc  USA 100 100

Pollution Control Technologies  
Limited  United Kingdom 100 100

PT WorleyParsons Indonesia  Indonesia 100 100

Sinn Phan Thavee Co Limited  Thailand 100 100

SIP Engineering Corporation6  USA – 100

SolarRem Corporation  USA 100 100

UniField Engineering Inc8  USA 100 –

Westmar Consultants Corp8  USA 100 –

Worley	&	Partners	Engineering	 
Consultancy LLC  Oman 60 60

Worley Astron Pty Limited  Australia 100 100

Worley International Inc  USA 100 100

Worley Maunsell Pty Limited1,10  Australia 100 50

Worley No 2 Pty Limited4  Australia 100 100

Worley SAFF Qeshm Limited1  Iran 60 60

Worley SPV1 Pty Limited  Australia 100 100

Worley SPV2 Pty Limited  Australia 100 100

Worley UK Finance Pty Limited  Australia 100 100

Worley US Finance Pty Limited  Australia 100 100

WorleyParsons (AES) Pte Limited  Singapore 100 100

WorleyParsons (DRPL) Pte Limited  Singapore 100 100

WorleyParsons (Thailand) Limited  Thailand 100 100

WorleyParsons Acquisitions  
Pty Limited7  Australia 100 –

WorleyParsons Africa Holdings  
Pty Limited7  Australia 100 –

WorleyParsons Angola Limitada  Angola 51 51

WorleyParsons Asset Management  
Pty Limited  Australia 100 100

WorleyParsons Australia Inc  USA 100 100

WorleyParsons Belgium NV7  Belgium 100 –

WorleyParsons Canada Callco Ltd  Canada 100 100

WorleyParsons Canada Finance  
Pty Limited  Australia 100 100

WorleyParsons Canada Finance  
No 2 Pty Limited  Australia 100 100

WorleyParsons Canada GP Ltd  Canada 100 100

WorleyParsons Canada Holdings  
Pty Limited  Australia 100 100

WorleyParsons Canada Ltd  Canada 100 100

WorleyParsons Canada LP Ltd  Canada 100 100

WorleyParsons Canada Pty Limited  Australia 100 100

WorleyParsons Canada SPV Ltd  Canada 100 100

WorleyParsons Canadian Finance  
Sub Limited7  Canada 100 –

WorleyParsons Construction  
Services of Louisiana Inc6  USA – 100

WorleyParsons Constructors Inc  USA 100 100

WorleyParsons Corporation  USA 100 100

WorleyParsons Developments  
Pty Limited  Australia 100 100

  BENEFICIAL  
  INTEREST HELD BY 
  CONSOLIDATED ENTITY

  COUNTRY OF 2008 2007 
ENTITY  INCORPORATION % %

WorleyParsons do Brasil Engenharia  
Limitada  Brazil 100 100

WorleyParsons	E&C	of	Canada	 
Limited  Canada 100 100

WorleyParsons EAMES Holdings  
Limited  United Kingdom 100 100

WorleyParsons Egypt Limited  Egypt 100 100

WorleyParsons Energy Services  
Company  USA 100 100

WorleyParsons Energy Services LLC6  USA – 100

WorleyParsons Engineering (India)  
Pvt Limited  India 100 100

WorleyParsons Engineering  
Pty Limited4  Australia 100 100

WorleyParsons Engineers Egypt  
Limited  Egypt 100 100

WorleyParsons Engineers Limited  Cayman Islands 100 100

WorleyParsons Environmental  
Sdn Bhda,8  Malaysia 100 –

WorleyParsons Europe Energy  
Services Limited2  Bulgaria 100 100

WorleyParsons Europe Limited  United Kingdom 100 100

WorleyParsons Financial Services  
Pty Limited4  Australia 100 100

WorleyParsons GCT Inc  USA 100 100

WorleyParsons Germany GmbH  Germany 100 100

WorleyParsons Global Pty Limited  Australia 100 100

WorleyParsons Group Inc  USA 100 100

WorleyParsons Gulf Coast  
Services Inc6  USA – 100

WorleyParsons HK Limited  Hong Kong 100 100

WorleyParsons Holding Pty Limited  
atf the WP Holding Trust5  Australia 100 100

WorleyParsons Infrastructure  
(M) Sdn Bhd  Malaysia 100 100

WorleyParsons Infrastructure  
Holdings Pty Limited  Australia 100 100

WorleyParsons International6  USA – 100

WorleyParsons International Inc  USA 100 100

WorleyParsons International  
Infrastructure Pty Limited  Australia 100 100

WorleyParsons Italy SRL  Italy 100 100

WorleyParsons Jamaica Limited7  Jamaica 100 –

WorleyParsons Kazakhstan LLP2  Republic of  
  Kazakhstan 100 100

WorleyParsons Komex Inc  USA 100 100

WorleyParsons Komex Limited  United Kingdom 100 100

WorleyParsons Komex SLb,2  Spain 100 100

WorleyParsons Kuwait WLL  Kuwait 75 75

WorleyParsons Limitada  Chile 100 100

WorleyParsons Malta Holdings  
Limited5  Malta 100 100

WorleyParsons Malta Limited5  Malta 100 100

WorleyParsons Netherlands BV7  The Netherlands 100 –

WorleyParsons North Africa  
Engineering	&	Project	 
Management JSC7  Libya 85 –
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  BENEFICIAL  
  INTEREST HELD BY 
  CONSOLIDATED ENTITY

  COUNTRY OF 2008 2007 
ENTITY  INCORPORATION % %

WorleyParsons of Michigan Inc  USA 100 100

WorleyParsons of New York, Inc  USA 100 100

WorleyParsons of North Carolina Inc1  USA 100 100

WorleyParsons of Virginia Inc1  USA 100 100

WorleyParsons Oman Engineering LLC  Oman 51 51

WorleyParsons PetroVietnam  
Engineering Joint Stock Company7  Vietnam 51 –

WorleyParsons Philippines Inc  Philippines 100 100

WorleyParsons Projects Pty Limited  Australia 100 100

WorleyParsons Project Services LLC7  Russia 100 –

WorleyParsons Pte Limited  Singapore 100 100

WorleyParsons Qatar WLL  Qatar 100 100

WorleyParsons Risk Management  
Limited  Bermuda 100 100

WorleyParsons Romania SRL7  Romania 100 –

WorleyParsons Sdn Bhd  Malaysia 100 100

WorleyParsons Sea, Inc  USA 100 100

WorleyParsons Sea India Pvt Limitedc  India 100 100

WorleyParsons SEA Pty Limited  Australia 100 100

WorleyParsons Services Inc  USA 100 100

WorleyParsons Services Pty Limited4  Australia 100 100

WorleyParsons Services Sdn Bhd  Malaysia 100 100

WorleyParsons Singapore Holding  
Pte Limited  Singapore 100 100

WorleyParsons South America  
Holdings Pty Limited  Australia 100 100

WorleyParsons South Carolina Inc1  USA 100 100

WorleyParsons Technologies  
Pty Limited  Australia 100 100

WorleyParsons Trinidad Limited  Trinidad 100 100

WorleyParsons Ukraine LLC7  Ukraine 100 –

WorleyParsons UK Finance  
Sub Limited7  United Kingdom 100 –

WorleyParsons US Finance  
Sub Limited7  USA 100 –

WorleyParsons US Holding  
Corporation  USA 100 100

WorleyParsons West Inc  USA 100 100

WP Infrastructure Developments  
Pty Limited  Australia 100 100

WP Management Pty Limited atf  
The WP Management Trust  Australia 100 100

WPES International LLC  USA 100 100

WPES Tecnica de Venezuela CA  Venezuela 100 100

1 Dormant company.
2 Balance date is 31 December, being the balance date at the time the entity was acquired.
3 Balance date is 31 January, being the balance date when the entity was acquired.
4 Entities subject to Class Order relief.
5 In liquidation.
6 Liquidated during the financial year.
7 Incorporated during the financial year.
8 Acquired during the financial year.
9 Acquired as part of the INTEC Engineering acquisition.
10 Acquired control during the financial year.
(a) Previously named MB Technology (Malaysia) Sdn Bhd.
(b) Previously named Komex Iberica Ambiental S.L.
(c) Previously named Sea Engineering India Pvt Limited.

(B) WORLEYPARSONS LIMITED PARENT ACCOUNTS INCLUDE INVESTMENTS IN THE 
FOLLOWING ENTITIES:

CoSt of PARENt ENtIty’S INVEStmENt
  COST OF PARENT  
  ENTITY’S INVESTMENT

  COUNTRY OF 2008 2007 
ENTITY  INCORPORATION $’M $’M

Engineering Securities Pty Limited  
atf The Worley Limited Trust  Australia 94.7 94.7

WorleyParsons Canada Callco Limited  Canada 329.8 329.8

WorleyParsons Canada Holdings  
Pty Limited  Australia 197.9 197.9

WorleyParsons Financial Services  
Pty Limited  Australia 440.1 440.1

Total   1,062.5 1,062.5

(C) CLOSED GROUP

Pursuant to Class Order 98/1418, relief has been granted to WorleyParsons 
Services Pty Limited, Worley No 2 Pty Limited, WorleyParsons Engineering 
Pty Limited and WorleyParsons Financial Services Pty Limited from the 
Corporations Act 2001 requirements for preparation, audit and lodgement 
of their financial reports. As a condition of the Class Order, WorleyParsons 
Limited together with the parties noted entered into a Deed of Cross 
Guarantee on 26 May 2003. The effect of the deed is that WorleyParsons 
Limited has guaranteed to pay any deficiency in the event of the winding up 
of the abovementioned controlled entities. The controlled entities have also 
given a similar guarantee in the event that WorleyParsons Limited is wound 
up. The consolidated income statement and balance sheet of the entities 
which are parties to the Deed of Cross Guarantee and The Worley Limited 
Trust (Closed Group) are as follows:

  CLOSED GROUP

    2008 2007 
    $’M $’M

INComE StAtEmENt

Profit before income tax expense   342.8 173.5

Income tax expense    (57.6) (26.9)

Profit after income tax expense   285.2 146.6

Profit attributable to members of WorleyParsons Limited 285.2 146.6

Retained profits at the beginning of the financial year  103.8 60.9

Dividends paid    (170.1) (103.7)

Retained profits at the end of the financial year  218.9 103.8
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23 INVESTMENTS IN CONTROLLED ENTITIES (continued)

(C) CLOSED GROUP (continued)

  CLOSED GROUP

    2008 2007 
    $’M $’M

BAlANCE SHEEt

ASSETS

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents    10.9 20.1

Trade and other receivables   1,000.5 820.1

Income tax benefit    – 7.9

Prepayments    23.5 4.7

Other current assets    0.6 –

Total current assets    1,035.5 852.8

Non‑current assets

Equity accounted associates   10.8 10.8

Property, plant and equipment   10.0 10.6

Intangible assets    92.5 62.1

Deferred tax assets    27.6 19.4

Other non‑current assets    1,524.6 1,158.3

Total non‑current assets    1,665.5 1,261.2

TOTAL ASSETS    2,701.0 2,114.0

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables    1,192.5 789.0

Provisions    57.9 40.3

Total current liabilities    1,250.4 829.3

Non‑current liabilities

Interest bearing loans and borrowings   28.9 –

Deferred tax liabilities    35.3 35.3

Provisions    7.0 5.1

Total non‑current liabilities   71.2 40.4

TOTAL LIABILITIES    1,321.6 869.7

NET ASSETS    1,379.4 1,244.3

EQuIty

Issued capital    1,132.5 1,128.5

Reserves    27.9 12.0

Retained profits    218.9 103.8

TOTAL EQUITY    1,379.4 1,244.3

(D) ACQUISITION OF CONTROLLED ENTITIES

Effective 1 July 2007, the Group acquired 100% of Sydney based Patterson 
Britton and Partners Pty Ltd and Brisbane based John Wilson and Partners 
Pty Ltd and John Wilson and Partners (Services) Pty Ltd for consideration of 
$32.5 million. Patterson Britton and Partners, and John Wilson and Partners 
are regarded as two of the leading consultants in the water and 
environmental services market in Australia with specific capabilities in the 
coastal and marine, water resources and waste water, environmental, civil 
and structural and power markets.

Effective 31 August 2007, the Group acquired 100% of Polestar Applied 
Technology Inc for $12.7 million. The acquisition of Polestar increases 
WorleyParsons’ capability in the nuclear consulting and analysis segment 
of the international nuclear industry. The acquisition is considered to be of 
strategic significance as it extends the Group’s capabilities in the nuclear 
industry. Polestar has offices in the UK and USA.

Effective 1 November 2007, the Group acquired 100% of UniField 
Engineering Inc. for $17.9 million. The acquisition will expand the Group’s 

power business in Western US and increase asset services in the 
Hydrocarbons sector.

Effective 16 April 2008 the Group acquired 100% of INTEC Engineering for 
consideration of $117.6 million. INTEC Engineering provides engineering 
and project services to the offshore exploration and production and 
transportation sectors of the oil and gas industry, with a particular focus on 
deepwater. Headquartered in Houston, INTEC has over 500 professional staff 
with offices in London, Delft, Rio de Janeiro, Kuala Lumpur, Perth and Lagos.

Effective 30 June 2008 the Group acquired 100% of Westmar Consultants Inc 
(Westmar) for $49.5 million. Westmar is a leading Canadian based marine and 
port facility, resource and mining infrastructure, bulk material handling and 
transportation specialist with over 275 professional staff. Westmar operates 
in Canada and on the northwest coast of North America.

The above acquisitions contribution to the Group’s reported after tax profit 
attributable to members was $7.0 million, and the reported contribution to 
revenue was $86.2 million. Had these acquisitions taken place at 1 July 2007, 
the contribution to the Group’s profit after income tax expense would have 
been $13.9 million and revenue would have been $182.6 million.

 INTEC OTHER 
 ACQUISITION ACQUISITIONS TOTAL 
 $’M $’M $’M

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents 1.9 7.9 9.8

Trade and other receivables 34.0 29.4 63.4

Prepayments 1.7 1.3 3.0

Property, plant and equipment 4.4 4.5 8.9

Other assets 0.8 0.2 1.0

Total assets 42.8 43.3 86.1

LIABILITIES

Trade and other payables 20.3 14.1 34.4

Income tax payable – 2.5 2.5

Interest bearing loans and borrowings – 0.8 0.8

Provisions – 6.1 6.1

Total liabilities 20.3 23.5 43.8

Net assets 22.5 19.8 42.3

Intangible assets 10.7 12.0 22.7

Deferred tax liability on intangible assets (3.7) (2.9) (6.6)

Goodwill arising on acquisition 88.1 85.0 173.1

Total consideration paid 117.6 113.9 231.5

Consideration:

Total cash consideration 117.6 113.9 231.5

Net cash effect:

Cash consideration (including costs) paid 117.6 113.9 231.5

Cash and overdrafts (1.9) (7.1) (9.0)

Net cash outflow 115.7 106.8 222.5

Goodwill represents the value of the assembled workforce and any premium 
for synergies and future growth opportunities that cannot be recognised 
separately. Except as indicated, the carrying value equals the fair value of 
net assets acquired.

The fair value of the acquisition balances are provisional due to the 
complexity and timing of the acquisitions. The review of the assets and 
liabilities will continue for 12 months from acquisition date.
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24 INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES

(A) DETAILS OF INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES ARE AS FOLLOWS:

 OWNERSHIP CARRYING 
 INTEREST VALUE 
 CONSOLIDATED CONSOLIDATED

  2008 2007 2008 2007 
ENTITY PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY % % $’M $’M

Ambar SA Infrastructure 
	 &	Environment	 35	 35	 –	 –

Aquara SA Infrastructure 
	 &	Environment	 45.5	 45.5	 –	 –

ARA Administracion  Infrastructure 
Limitada	 &	Environment	 50	 50	 –	 –

ARA Limitada Infrastructure 
	 &	Environment	 50	 50	 –	 –

ARA WorleyParsons  Infrastructure 
SA	 &	Environment	 50	 50	 11.4	 12.6

Bay Atlantic Limited7 Hydrocarbons 49 – – –

Beijing  
MaisonWorleyParsons  
Engineering	&	 
Technology Co  
Limited1 Hydrocarbons 50 50 16.1 13.0

Biovision 2020  Infrastructure 
Holdings Pty Limited6	 &	Environment	 –	 33.3	 –	 –

Biovision 2020  Infrastructure 
Pty Limited6	 &	Environment	 –	 33.3	 –	 –

CIARA	Limitada	 Minerals	&	Metals	 50	 50	 –	 –

Clyde‑WorleyParsons  
Pte	Limited	 Minerals	&	Metals	 50	 50	 –	 –

DeltaAfrik  
Engineering Limited Hydrocarbons 49 49 5.3 1.4

Esperance Pipeline  
Company Pty Limited Power 50 50 11.5 10.7

Esperance Power  
Station Pty Limited Power 50 50 7.8 7.3

Gazneft Engineering  
LLC1 Hydrocarbons 50 50 0.6 0.7

I&E	Systems	 
Pty Limited Hydrocarbons 50 50 1.6 1.3

KDPC Limited Hydrocarbons 50 50 – –

Motor	Rent	SA	 Minerals	&	Metals	 50	 50	 –	 –

NANA/Colt  
Engineering LLC3 Hydrocarbons 50 50 11.6 6.7

NWKC LLC Hydrocarbons 50 50 0.4 0.5

Pacific Waterworks  Infrastructure 
LLC	 &	Environment	 50	 50	 –	 –

Pangaea  
WorleyParsons  Power, 
(Pty) Limited7 Hydrocarbons 50 – 3.0 –

Perunding Ranhill  
Worley Sdn Bhd Hydrocarbons 50 50 0.8 0.7

Petrocon Arabia Co  
Limited1 Hydrocarbons 50 50 6.3 8.3

PFD International LLC Hydrocarbons 50 50 8.1 5.0

PFD (UK) Limited Hydrocarbons 50 50 – –

Protek Engineers  
Sdn Bhd Hydrocarbons 49 49 0.3 0.3

Ranhill Worley  
Engineering Sdn Bhd4 Hydrocarbons 40 40 0.1 0.1

Ranhill WorleyParsons  
Sdn Bhd Hydrocarbons 49 49 10.8 9.3

 OWNERSHIP CARRYING 
 INTEREST VALUE 
 CONSOLIDATED CONSOLIDATED

  2008 2007 2008 2007 
ENTITY PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY % % $’M $’M

Sakhneftegaz  
Engineering1 Hydrocarbons 49 49 0.2 0.2

Transfield Worley  
Limited2 Hydrocarbons 50 50 5.2 4.6

Transfield Worley  
Power Services  
Pty Limited Power 50 50 0.7 0.8

Transfield  
WorleyParsons  
Nouvelle Caledonie  
SAS5	 Minerals	&	Metals	 50	 –	 –	 –

Worley Maunsell  
Pty Limited8	 Minerals	&	Metals	 –	 50	 –	 –

WorleyParsons  
Arabia Limited  
Company Hydrocarbons 50 50 8.9 2.3

WorleyParsons  
Bahrain WLL7 Hydrocarbons 50 – – –

WorleyParsons  
Kirpalaney  
Engineering  
Pvt Limited Hydrocarbons 50 50 0.4 0.4

WorleyParsons  
Momin Sdn Bhd Dormant 50 50 – –

    111.1 86.2

Equity accounted  
investments  
transferred to 
assets held for sale    (19.3) –

Equity accounted  
associated    91.8 86.2

1 Balance date is 31 December, which was the balance date when the entity was acquired.

2 Balance date is 31 March, which was the balance date when the entity was acquired.

3 Balance date is 30 September, which was the balance date when the entity was acquired.

4 In liquidation.

5 Incorporated joint venture during the financial year.

6 Interest divested during the financial year.

7 Acquired interest during financial year.

8 Acquired control during financial year.

  CONSOLIDATED

    2008 2007 
    $’M $’M

(B) CARRYING AMOUNT OF INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES

Carrying amount at the beginning of the financial year 86.2 46.3

Addition of new investments   3.6 32.3

Capital repayment    – (0.6)

Change in accounting to controlled entities  – (3.4)

    89.8 74.6

Net profits of associates    36.5 19.0

Dividends received    (8.3) (4.7)

Movement in hedge reserves of associates  0.5 0.7

Movement in foreign currency translation reserve  
of associates    (7.4) (3.4)

    111.1 86.2

Equity accounted investments transferred to assets  
held for sale    (19.3) –

Carrying amount at the end of the financial year  91.8 86.2
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24 INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

  CONSOLIDATED

    2008 2007 
    $’M $’M

(C) NET PROFITS ATTRIBUTABLE TO ASSOCIATES1

Profits before income tax expense   50.0 24.2

Income tax expense    (13.5) (4.5)

Share of net profits of associates accounted for using  
the equity method    36.5 19.7

Capitalised losses relating to operations with a subsidiary – (0.7)

Net profits of associates    36.5 19.0

(D) RESERVES ATTRIBUTABLE TO ASSOCIATES1

foREIGN CuRRENCy tRANSlAtIoN RESERVE

Balance at the beginning of the financial year  (5.6) (2.2)

Effect of decrease in reserve   (7.4) (3.4)

Balance at the end of the financial year   (13.0) (5.6)

(E) RETAINED PROFITS ATTRIBUTABLE TO ASSOCIATES1

Balance at the beginning of the financial year  39.0 24.7

Share of net profits of associates accounted for using  
the equity method    36.5 19.0

Dividends paid    (8.3) (4.7)

Balance at the end of the financial year   67.2 39.0

(F) SHARE OF ASSOCIATES’ CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Performance related guarantees issued   10.3 3.8

(G) SHARE OF ASSOCIATES’ EXPENDITURE COMMITMENTS

Operating lease commitments   7.5 7.1

Finance lease commitments   9.3 9.6

Capital expenditure commitments   0.5 0.4

    17.3 17.1

(H) SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF ASSOCIATES

The consolidated entity’s share of aggregate assets and  
liabilities of associates is:

Current assets    209.2 194.7

Non‑current assets    16.8 55.2

Current liabilities    (150.9) (146.3)

Non‑current liabilities    (0.5) (36.1)

Net assets    74.6 67.5

Fair value adjustment to tangible assets on  
stepped acquisitions    – 3.4

Identifiable intangible assets, net of amortisation  0.9 1.6

Goodwill at the end of the financial year   16.3 13.7

Carrying amount at the end of the financial year  91.8 86.2

1 Includes associates disclosed as held for sale in note 8.

25 INTERESTS IN JOINT VENTURE OPERATIONS AND ASSETS

Controlled entities have entered into the following joint venture operations:

 OWNERSHIP 
 INTEREST 
 CONSOLIDATED

  2008 2007 
JOINT VENTURE ENTITY PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY % %

AMEC‑Colt Joint Venture Hydrocarbons 50 50

AMEC‑Colt (Fort Hills) Joint Venture Hydrocarbons 50 50

ANSTO	WorleyParsons	Joint	Venture	 Infrastructure	&	 
 Environment 50 50

APE Joint Venture Hydrocarbons 50 50

ARUP‑WorleyParsons Joint Venture Hydrocarbons 50 –

Bechtel	WorleyParsons	Joint	Venture	 Minerals	&	Metals	 50	 50

Colt/KBR Joint Venture1 Hydrocarbons 50 50

EOS Joint Venture Hydrocarbons 50 50

Foster Wheeler WorleyParsons  
Joint Venture (Browse LNG) Hydrocarbons 50 50

Foster Wheeler WorleyParsons  
(BPV) Joint Venture Hydrocarbons 50 50

Foster Wheeler WorleyParsons  
(LNG Phase V) Joint Venture Hydrocarbons 25 25

Foster Wheeler Energy WorleyParsons  
(Pluto LNG) Joint Venture Hydrocarbons 40 –

FWP Joint Venture1 Hydrocarbons 50 50

G*UB*MK Constructors Joint Venture Power 34 34

Hazco/Komex	Grande	Prairie	Joint	Venture	 Infrastructure	&	 
 Environment 50 50

Iraq Power Alliance Joint Venture Power 50 50

John	Holland	BRW	Joint	Venture	 Infrastructure	&	 
 Environment 50 50

MMM WorleyParsons Joint Venture Power 50 50

MG Joint Venture2	 Minerals	&	Metals	 –	 50

NLP AMEC‑Colt Joint Venture Hydrocarbons 50 50

Parsons Iraq Joint Venture Hydrocarbons 85 85

Select‑Granherne (B2B) Joint Venture Hydrocarbons 50 –

Transfield Worley Joint Venture Hydrocarbons 50 50

Transfield Worley TRAGS Joint Venture Hydrocarbons 27.5 27.5

TW	Water	Joint	Venture	 Infrastructure	&	 
 Environment 50 –

WorleyParsons Arabian Industries 
Joint Venture Hydrocarbons 50 50

Worley Dome Joint Venture Hydrocarbons 51 51

Worley	Maunsell	Joint	Venture	 Minerals	&	Metals	 50	 50

WorleyParsons	SNC‑Lavalin	Joint	Venture	 Minerals	&	Metals	 50	 50

1 Balance date is 31 December.

2 Closed.
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The consolidated entity’s interests in the assets and liabilities employed in 
the joint ventures are included in the consolidated balance sheet under the 
following classifications:

  CONSOLIDATED

    2008 2007 
    $’M $’M

ASSETS

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents    12.8 20.0

Trade and other receivables   147.8 95.8

Other financial assets    0.2 0.2

Total current assets    160.8 116.0

Non‑current assets

Plant and equipment    0.6 0.9

Other non‑current assets    0.1 0.1

Total non‑current assets    0.7 1.0

TOTAL ASSETS    161.5 117.0

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables    124.3 84.3

Provisions    10.1 6.4

Total current liabilities    134.4 90.7

Non‑current liabilities

Other non‑current liabilities   0.9 0.9

Total non‑current liabilities   0.9 0.9

TOTAL LIABILITIES    135.3 91.6

NET ASSETS    26.2 25.4

 CONSOLIDATED PARENT ENTITY

  2008 2007 2008 2007 
  $’M $’M $’M $’M

26 NOTE TO THE CASH FLOW STATEMENT

Reconciliation of profit after income tax expense to net cash inflow from operating 
activities:

Profit after income  
tax expense  347.3 226.3 294.9 134.5

NoN‑CASH ItEmS

Depreciation  23.4 17.0 – –

Amortisation  43.6 17.3 – –

Performance rights  
expense  19.9 12.5 – –

Share of associates profit 
in excess of dividends 
received  (28.2) (15.0) – –

Other  3.5 (5.6) – (2.0)

Cash flow adjusted  
for non‑cash items  409.5 252.5 294.9 132.5

CHANGES IN ASSEtS ANd  
lIABIlItIES AdJuStEd foR  
EffECtS of PuRCHASE of  
CoNtRollEd ENtItIES

(Increase)/decrease  
in trade and other  
receivables  (448.4) (98.7) (43.3) 2.0

Decrease/(increase)  
in inventories  0.2 (0.9) – –

Increase in  
prepayments  (27.0) (1.7) – –

(Increase)/decrease  
in deferred tax assets  (19.4) (6.2) 0.6 1.3

Increase/(decrease)  
in trade and other  
payables  187.7 17.1 – (3.4)

Increase/(decrease)  
in income tax payable  21.9 8.3 28.5 (6.4)

Increase/(decrease)  
in deferred tax liabilities  30.8 22.7 (0.4) 0.7

Decrease/(increase)  
in billings in advance  (5.8) 3.7 – –

Increase in other  
provisions  49.6 11.1 – –

(Decrease)/increase  
in hire purchase  
liabilities  (0.3) 0.2 – –

Exchange rate  
movement on  
opening balances  – (11.5) – –

Increase in issued capital  – (0.7) – (0.7)

Net cash inflow from  
operating activities  198.8 195.9 280.3 126.0
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 CONSOLIDATED PARENT ENTITY

  2008 2007 2008 2007 
  $’M $’M $’M $’M

27 COMMITMENTS FOR EXPENDITURE

(A) OPERATING LEASES

Commitments for minimum lease payments in relation to non‑cancellable operating 
leases are payable as follows:

Within one year  115.8 92.8 – –

Later than one year and  
not later than five years  295.5 210.7 – –

Later than five years  60.7 61.2 – –

Commitments not recognised  
in the financial statements 472.0 364.7 – –

(B) CAPITAL EXPENDITURE COMMITMENTS

Estimated capital expenditure  
contracted for at reporting  
date but not provided for  
payable as follows:

Within one year  0.3 0.3 – –

(C) OPERATING EXPENDITURE COMMITMENTS

Estimated commitments for  
operating expenditure in  
relation to software are  
as follows:

Within one year  10.0 – – –

28 FINANCE LEASE RECEIVABLE

Current finance lease receivable – 1.0 – –

Non‑current finance lease  
receivable  – 31.5 – –

Gross investment in lease  
receivable  – 32.5 – –

Present value of minimum  
lease payments:

Within one year  – 1.0 – –

Later than one year and not  
later than five years  – 4.7 – –

More than five years  – 25.4 – –

Present value of minimum  
lease payments  – 31.1 – –

Gross investment in lease  
receivable  – 32.5 – –

Unguaranteed residual value – 1.4 – –

The finance lease receivable relates to the power supply contract held by 
WorleyParsons’ 100% subsidiary, Exmouth Power Station Pty Limited, which 
is an arrangement that contains a lease. This finance lease receivable has 
been	transferred	to	assets	held	for	sale;	see	note	8.

29 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

(A) GUARANTEES

The Group is, in the normal course of business, required to provide guarantees and 
letters of credit on behalf of controlled entities, associates and related parties in 
respect of their contractual performance related obligations.

These guarantees and letters of credit only give rise to a liability where the entity 
concerned fails to perform its contractual obligations.

Guarantees outstanding at  
balance date in respect of  
financing facilities  19.6 1.6 19.6 0.7

Bank guarantees outstanding  
at balance date in respect of  
contractual performance  174.9 100.7 106.1 73.6

  194.5 102.3 125.7 74.3

The Group is subject to various actual and pending claims arising in the normal 
course of business. The directors are of the view that the consolidated entity is 
adequately provided in respect of these claims.

Included in guarantees outstanding at balance date in respect of financing facilities 
is a guarantee for an associate DeltaAfrik Engineering Limited. Under the terms 
of the guarantee, the Group has guaranteed the repayment of bank loans and 
performance guarantees outstanding in respect of an external borrowing facility 
taken on by the associate. The amount of borrowing and performance guarantee 
in the associate at 30 June 2008 was $16.8 million.

(B) ASBESTOS

Certain	members	of	Parsons	E&C	Group	and	other	subsidiaries	of	Parsons	
Corporation, have been, and continue to be, the subject of litigation relating 
to the handling of, or exposure to, asbestos.

Based on its due diligence investigations during the acquisition of Parsons 
E&C	Corporation	from	Parsons	Corporation,	including	an	analysis	of	available	
insurance coverage, and in light of the continuation and extension of the 
existing indemnity and asbestos claims administration arrangements 
between	Parsons	Corporation	and	Parsons	E&C	Corporation,	WorleyParsons	
is not aware of any circumstance that is likely to lead to a material residual 
contingent exposure for WorleyParsons in respect of asbestos liabilities.

 CONSOLIDATED PARENT ENTITY

  2008 2007 2008 2007

30 EMPLOYEE NUMBERS

EmPloyEE NumBERS

Number of employees  
as at end of  
financial year  32,200 23,800 – –

SuPERANNuAtIoN CommItmENtS

The Group does not operate a superannuation fund. For its Australian employees, 
the Group contributes to various superannuation funds at the statutory 
superannuation guarantee rate. For non‑Australian employees, the Group 
contributes to various funds which have characteristics similar to superannuation, 
in accordance with the requirements of the applicable jurisdictions.

 CONSOLIDATED PARENT ENTITY

  2008 2007 2008 2007 
  $ $ $ $

31 REMUNERATION OF AUDITORS

Remuneration for audit or  
review of the financial  
reports of the parent entity  
or any entity in the  
consolidated group:

Auditor of the parent entity 2,286,797 2,485,044 – –

Other auditors of controlled  
entities  109,278 65,548 – –

  2,396,075 2,550,592 – –

Amounts received for other  
services:

Services provided in relation  
to the acquisition of:

– The Colt Group  – 1,076,683 – –

Tax related services  80,642 – – –

Other acquisition related  
assurance services  167,923 15,350 – –

Other non‑audit services  204,591 – – –

  453,156 1,092,033 – –

  2,849,231 3,642,625 – –
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32 RELATED PARTIES

(A) dIRECtoRS
The names of persons who were directors of WorleyParsons at any time 
during the financial year were as follows:

Ron McNeilly (Chairman)

Grahame Campbell

Erich Fraunschiel

John Green

John Grill (Chief Executive Officer)

Eric Gwee

William Hall

David Housego

Catherine Livingstone, AO

Larry Benke (alternate executive director for William Hall).

 CONSOLIDATED PARENT ENTITY

  2008 2007 2008 2007 
  $ $ $ $

Amount payable to director:

Larry Benke  84,669 95,875 – –

The amount owing to Larry Benke arose from the acquisition of the Colt Group.

Amount receivable from director

John Grill  33,8471 – – –

The amount was receivable from John Grill for secretarial services provided by 
the Group.

1 This balance was settled in full subsequent to 30 June 2008.

(B) WHolly oWNEd GRouP tRANSACtIoNS
The wholly owned group consists of WorleyParsons and its wholly owned 
entities listed at note 23.

Aggregate amounts included in the determination of profit before income tax 
expense that resulted from transactions with entities in the wholly owned 
group were as follows:

 CONSOLIDATED PARENT ENTITY

  2008 2007 2008 2007 
  $’M $’M $’M $’M

Dividend revenue  – – 294.5 133.4

 CONSOLIDATED PARENT ENTITY

  2008 2007 2008 2007 
  $’M $’M $’M $’M

(C) otHER RElAtEd PARtIES
Aggregate amounts included in the  
determination of profit before  
income tax expense that resulted  
from transactions with each class  
of other related parties were as  
follows:

dividend revenue

Controlled entities  – – 294.5 133.4

Associates and related parties 8.3 4.7 – –

other revenue

Associates and related parties – – – –

Aggregate amounts brought  
to account in relation to other  
transactions with each class  
of other related parties:

loans advanced to:

Controlled entities  – – 203.0 190.4

Associates and related parties 7.4 7.7 – –

loan repayments from:

Controlled entities  – – 88.5 172.9

Associates and related parties 0.4 3.7 – –

Included within loans advanced to associates and related parties is an 
unsecured loan of $4 million (2007: $4 million) due from Esperance Power 
Station Pty Limited. This is at a fixed interest rate of 10.35% per annum 
(2007: 10.35% per annum).

 CONSOLIDATED PARENT ENTITY

  2008 2007 2008 2007 
  $’M $’M $’M $’M

Aggregate amounts receivable  
from, and payable to, each class  
of other related parties at balance  
date were as follows:

Current receivables

Controlled entities  – – 340.9 187.6

Associates and related parties 60.2 47.4 – –

Current payables

Associates and related parties 42.1 10.9 – –

Related entities provide specific advisory services to controlled entities in the 
normal course of business. These transactions are made on normal terms and 
conditions and at market rates.

(d) CoNtRollING ENtItIES
WorleyParsons Limited is the ultimate Australian parent company.
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33 KEY MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL DISCLOSURES

(A) PARtICulARS of KEy mANAGEmENt PERSoNNEl (KmP) INtEREStS 
IN SHARES
Particulars of KMP beneficial interests in shares of WorleyParsons as at 
30 June 2008 are as follows:

NUMBER OF SHARES HELD IN WORLEYPARSONS LIMITED

  SHARES ON 
  ISSUED AS EXERCISE OF ON MARKET 
 BALANCE AT REMUN‑ PERFORMANCE SALE OR BALANCE AT 
 1 JULY 2007 ERATION1 RIGHTS PURCHASE 30 JUNE 2008

EXECUTIVE AND NON‑EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

John Grill 32,939,078 – 163,551 – 33,102,629

William Hall 76,138 – – (60,000) 16,138

David Housego 157,582 – 70,093 (52,500) 175,175

Larry Benke2 1,177,475 – – – 1,177,475

Ron McNeilly 392,860 3,011 – – 395,871

Grahame Campbell 504,579 1,335 – – 505,914

Erich Fraunschiel 164,852 1,410 – – 166,262

John Green 941,510 1,341 – – 942,851

Eric Gwee 3,302 1,280 – – 4,582

Catherine  
Livingstone, AO 4,444 871 – – 5,315

Sub total 36,361,820 9,248 233,644 (112,500) 36,492,212

EXECUTIVES

Stuart Bradie – – – – –

Peter Meurs 10,580,378 – 70,093 (3,503,850) 7,146,621

Iain Ross 466,777 – 70,093 – 536,870

Andrew Wood 828,238 – 70,093 (64,000) 834,331

Robert Edwardes 43,169 – 38,941 – 82,110

Sub total 11,918,562 – 249,220 (3,567,850) 8,599,932

Grand total 48,280,382 9,248 482,864 (3,680,350) 45,092,144

1 Shares granted as remuneration during the financial year.

2 Larry Benke received exchangeable shares as part of the Colt consideration.

(B) PARtICulARS of KmP PERfoRmANCE RIGHtS
Particulars of KMP equity settled performance rights granted as at 30 June 
2008 are as follows:

  BALANCE AT   BALANCE AT 
  1 JULY 2007 GRANTED EXERCISED 30 JUNE 2008

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

John Grill  294,708 32,546 163,551 163,703

William Hall  75,788 14,847 – 90,635

Larry Benke  – 9,105 – 9,105

David Housego  126,668 12,873 70,093 69,448

Sub total  497,164 69,371 233,644 332,891

EXECUTIVES

Stuart Bradie  33,434 12,109 – 45,543

Robert Edwardes  65,907 8,582 38,941 35,548

Peter Meurs  121,259 11,883 70,093 63,049

Iain Ross  120,355 10,727 70,093 60,989

Andrew Wood  119,513 11,883 70,093 61,303

Sub total  460,468 55,184 249,220 266,432

Grand total  957,632 124,555 482,864 599,323

Particulars on KMP cash settled performance rights granted as at 30 June 
2008 are as follows:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR   BALANCE AT   BALANCE AT 
AND EXECUTIVES  1 JULY 2007 GRANTED EXERCISED 30 JUNE 2008

Stuart Bradie  54,517 – 54,517 –

William Hall  41,756 – 41,756 –

Total  96,273 – 96,273 –

All performance rights vested during the year were exercised in full.

(C) SummARy of KmP REmuNERAtIoN
  CONSOLIDATED

    2008 2007 
    $’M $’M

Short term employee benefits   12,053,655 9,119,144

Post employment benefits   285,564 301,612

Other long term benefits    841,674 211,422

Share based payment    4,040,582 3,790,331

Total compensation    17,221,475 13,422,509
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34 SEGMENT INFORMATION

The	Group	operates	in	four	primary	business	segments:	Hydrocarbons,	Power,	Minerals	&	Metals	and	Infrastructure	&	Environment.	The	Hydrocarbons	segment	
incorporates the Oil and Gas, and Refining, Petrochemicals and Chemicals business units.

PRImARy REPoRtING – BuSINESS SEGmENtS
    INFRASTRUCTURE 
	 HYDROCARBONS	 POWER	 MINERALS	&	METALS	 &	ENVIRONMENT	 OTHER	 ELIMINATIONS	 CONSOLIDATED 
2008 $’M $’M $’M $’M $’M $’M $’M

Sales to external customers 3,166.6 435.7 394.9 302.2 – – 4,299.4

Procurement services revenue 203.4 49.6 21.8 32.9 – – 307.7

Inter‑segment sales 7.7 3.3 1.8 0.2 – (13.0) –

Total revenue 3,377.7 488.6 418.5 335.3 – (13.0) 4,607.1

Interest – – – – 18.3 – 18.3

Other 5.6 0.4 1.4 0.8 – – 8.2

Share of net profits of associates 28.3 2.3 5.3 0.6 – – 36.5

Revenue and other income 3,411.6 491.3 425.2 336.7 18.3 (13.0) 4,670.1

Segment result 423.9 61.9 81.0 42.6 – – 609.4

Amortisation expense (29.1) (0.6) – (0.8) (7.3) – (37.8)

Unallocated corporate expenses       (83.3)

Profit before income tax expense 394.8 61.3 81.0 41.8 (7.3) – 488.3

Income tax expense       (141.0)

Profit after income tax expense       347.3

Segment assets 927.3 136.3 150.3 107.4 34.9 – 1,356.2

Goodwill 1,188.3 96.4 22.7 87.4 – – 1,394.8

Identified intangible assets 156.7 3.6 – 7.3 – – 167.6

Unallocated corporate assets       298.9

Consolidated total assets       3,217.5

Segment liabilities 535.2 91.2 64.2 43.4 76.4 – 810.4

Unallocated corporate liabilities       990.6

Consolidated total liabilities       1,801.0

Investments in associates included in  
segment assets 63.4 23.2 19.1 5.4 – – 111.1

Purchase of non‑current assets 159.5 32.5 3.6 80.7 – – 276.3

Depreciation and amortisation expense 41.5 4.8 5.3 8.1 7.3 – 67.0

Revenue and other income 3,411.6 491.3 425.2 336.7 18.3 (13.0) 4,670.1

Share of revenue from associates 750.9 28.2 61.8 15.0 – – 855.9

Procurement services revenue of controlled  
entities (131.7) (48.0) (8.1) (8.3) – – (196.1)

Procurement services revenue of associates (390.0) – (2.5) (0.2) – – (392.7)

Less: share of profits of associates (28.3) (2.3) (5.3) (0.6) – – (36.5)

Aggregated revenue 3,612.5 469.2 471.1 342.6 18.3 (13.0) 4,900.7

Aggregated revenue is defined as statutory revenue and other income plus share of revenue from associates less procurement services revenue at nil margin. The directors believe the disclosure of revenue attributable 
to associates provides additional information in relation to the financial performance of the Group.
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34 SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

PRImARy REPoRtING – BuSINESS SEGmENtS
    INFRASTRUCTURE 
	 HYDROCARBONS	 POWER	 MINERALS	&	METALS	 &	ENVIRONMENT	 OTHER	 ELIMINATIONS	 CONSOLIDATED 
2007 $’M $’M $’M $’M $’M $’M $’M

Sales to external customers 2,054.2 406.9 242.7 195.6 2.6 – 2,902.0

Procurement services revenue 430.9 121.2 15.9 7.8 – – 575.8

Inter‑segment sales 5.9 – 1.3 4.7 – (11.9) –

Total revenue 2,491.0 528.1 259.9 208.1 2.6 (11.9) 3,477.8

Interest – – – – 9.2 – 9.2

Other 0.5 4.6 – 0.7 – – 5.8

Share of net profits of associates 13.9 (0.5) 5.7 0.6 – – 19.7

Revenue and other income 2,505.4 532.2 265.6 209.4 11.8 (11.9) 3,512.5

Segment result 251.0 57.8 42.7 20.4 – – 371.9

Amortisation expense (11.4) – – – – – (11.4)

Unallocated corporate expenses       (54.3)

Profit before income tax expense 239.6 57.8 42.7 20.4 – – 306.2

Income tax expense       (79.9)

Profit after income tax expense       226.3

Segment assets 683.4 150.6 80.7 79.0 14.6 – 1,008.3

Goodwill 1,193.0 88.5 23.7 26.4 – – 1,331.6

Identified intangible assets 156.3 – – – – – 156.3

Unallocated corporate assets       188.1

Consolidated total assets       2,684.3

Segment liabilities 429.8 95.3 38.0 46.5 52.6 – 662.2

Unallocated corporate liabilities       634.4

Consolidated total liabilities       1,296.6

Investments in associates included in  
segment assets 54.9 18.7 12.6 – – – 86.2

Purchase of non‑current assets 1,116.3 23.9 2.9 3.2 – – 1,146.3

Depreciation and amortisation expense 24.8 5.5 1.1 1.9 1.1 – 34.4

Revenue and other income 2,505.4 532.2 265.6 209.4 11.8 (11.9) 3,512.5

Share of revenue from associates 602.4 25.9 46.1 17.4 – – 691.8

Procurement services revenue of controlled  
entities (216.7) (121.2) (13.3) (6.6) – – (357.8)

Procurement services revenue of associates (292.2) – – – – – (292.2)

Less: share of net profits of associates (13.9) 0.5 (5.7) (0.6) – – (19.7)

Aggregated revenue 2,585.0 437.4 292.7 219.6 11.8 (11.9) 3,534.6

SECoNdARy REPoRtING – GEoGRAPHICAl REGIoN
 ASIA, MIDDLE EAST AUSTRALIA AND   UNITED STATES 
 AND AFRICA NEW ZEALAND CANADA EUROPE AND LATIN AMERICA TOTAL 
2008 $’M $’M $’M $’M $’M $’M

Total revenue 526.0 1,292.0 1,304.9 500.7 983.5 4,607.1

Aggregated revenue 731.0 1,337.8 1,390.0 557.7 884.2 4,900.7

Total assets 244.6 730.9 1,467.7 255.4 518.9 3,217.5

Purchase of non‑current assets 9.1 79.5 68.7 43.6 75.4 276.3

 ASIA, MIDDLE EAST AUSTRALIA AND   UNITED STATES 
 AND AFRICA NEW ZEALAND CANADA EUROPE AND LATIN AMERICA TOTAL 
2007 $’M $’M $’M $’M $’M $’M

Total revenue 574.5 912.0 537.0 362.2 1,092.1 3,477.8

Aggregated revenue 795.3 970.8 521.6 415.0 831.9 3,534.6

Total assets 203.6 417.7 1,429.6 162.0 471.4 2,684.3

Purchase of non‑current assets 5.3 28.3 1,070.4 4.8 37.5 1,146.3
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The segment results include the allocation of overhead that can be 
directly attributed to an individual business segment. Those expenses that 
cannot be attributed to a business segment are recorded as unallocated 
corporate expenses.

The Group provides engineering design, project services, and maintenance 
and reliability support services to a number of markets. The consolidated 
entity’s activities also include infrastructure developments within the 
Power sector.

The Group’s operations are organised and managed separately according 
to the nature of the services they provide, with each segment serving 
different markets.

Geographically, the Group operates in five predominant segments: Asia, 
Middle East and Africa, Australia and New Zealand, Canada, Europe, and the 
United States and Latin America. Outside of Australia, activities are 
predominantly in the Hydrocarbons and Power segments.

SEGmENt ACCouNtING PolICIES
Segment accounting policies are the same as the Group’s policies described 
in note 22. During the financial year, there were no changes in segment 
accounting policies that had a material effect on the segment information.

Segment revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities are those that are directly 
attributable to a segment and the relevant portion that can be allocated to 
the segment on a reasonable basis. Segment assets include all assets used 
by a segment and consist primarily of receivables and plant and equipment.

Segment revenues, expenses and results include transactions between 
segments incurred in the ordinary course of business. These transactions are 
priced on an arm’s length basis and are eliminated on consolidation.

35 CREDIT RISK

Credit risk arises from the financial assets of the Group, which comprise cash 
and cash equivalents, trade and other receivables, available‑for‑sale financial 
assets and derivative financial instruments and off balance sheet guarantees 
and letters of credit. The Group’s exposure to credit risk arises from potential 
default of the counterparty, with a maximum exposure equal to the carrying 
amount of these instruments. Exposure at balance date is addressed in each 
applicable note. Credit exposure of derivatives is considered to be any 
positive market value.

The carrying amount of the Group’s financial assets and liabilities represents 
the maximum credit exposure. The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk 
at the reporting date was:
  CONSOLIDATED 
  CARRYING AMOUNT

    2008 2007 
    $’M $’M

Cash and cash equivalents    82.2 118.6

Trade receivables and unbilled contract revenue  1,109.1 744.6

Amounts owing by related parties and associates  60.2 47.4

Finance lease receivable    – 31.5

Derivatives    7.2 5.0

Bank guarantees and letters of credit   19.6 1.6

    1,278.3 948.7

Refer to segment note 34 for credit risk exposure by region. The Board 
believes that there is no material concentration of risk within a geographic or 
business segment.

The ageing of the Group’s trade receivables and unbilled contract revenue at 
the reporting date was:
  GROSS IMPAIRMENT GROSS IMPAIRMENT 
  2008 2008 2007 2007 
  $’M $’M $’M $’M

Unbilled contract revenue  408.0 – 313.4 –

0‑30 days  604.1 (2.0) 301.9 (1.1)

Past due 31‑60 days  48.7 (0.5) 83.0 (0.6)

Past due 61‑90 days  26.0 (1.9) 24.3 (0.4)

Past due 91‑120 days  11.9 (0.5) 17.2 (1.6)

More than 121 days  26.9 (11.6) 18.6 (10.1)

  1,125.6 (16.5) 758.4 (13.8)

Based on historic default rates, the Group believes that no impairment 
allowance is necessary in respect of trade receivables not past due or past 
due by up to 30 days. The Group’s typical payment terms are 30 days from 
date of invoice.

The allowance accounts in respect of trade receivables are used to record 
impairment losses unless the Group is satisfied that no recovery of the 
amount	owing	is	possible;	at	that	point,	the	amount	is	considered	
irrecoverable and is written off against the financial asset directly.

36 LIQUIDITY RISK

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to meet its financial 
obligations as they will fall due. The Group’s approach to managing liquidity 
is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to 
meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, 
without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the Group’s 
reputation.

The Group had unrestricted access at balance date to the following lines 
of credit:

 CONSOLIDATED PARENT ENTITY

  2008 2007 2008 2007 
  $’M $’M $’M $’M

SECuREd fACIlItIES

Total facilities available:

Loan facilities  23.6 24.2 – –

  23.6 24.2 – –

Facilities utilised at balance date:

Loan facilities  23.6 24.2 – –

  23.6 24.2 – –

Facilities available at balance date:

Loan facilities  – – – –

  – – – –

uNSECuREd fACIlItIES

Total facilities available:

Loan facilities  1,025.0 712.2 475.5 187.7

Overdraft facilities  45.4 25.5 38.2 5.0

Bank guarantees and  
letters of credit  221.9 184.5 150.2 129.0

  1,292.3 922.2 663.9 321.7

Facilities utilised at balance date:

Loan facilities*  702.6 483.5 178.1 59.0

Overdraft facilities  9.7 10.6 8.5 –

Bank guarantees and letters  
of credit  171.5 102.3 108.9 74.3

  883.8 596.4 295.5 133.3

Facilities available at balance date:

Loan facilities  322.4 228.7 297.4 128.6

Overdraft facilities  35.7 14.9 29.7 5.0

Bank guarantees and letters  
of credit  50.4 82.2 41.3 54.8

  408.5 325.8 368.4 188.4

*  Amounts disclosed for the parent entity represent total facilities available and drawn by all 
borrowers under the common terms deed poll entered into with the Group’s bankers. The Parent is 
a listed borrower under the common terms deed poll and as such has access to the total facilities 
shown as available.

The maturity profile in respect of the Group’s unsecured loan and overdraft 
facilities is set out below:

Due within one year  98.2 142.4 56.9 10.2

Due between one and four years 456.8 182.5 456.8 182.5

Due after four years  515.4 413.0 – –

  1,070.4 737.9 513.7 192.7
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36 LIQUIDITY RISK (continued)

The table below analyses the Group’s financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period from balance date to the contractural 
maturity date. As the amounts disclosed in the table are the contractural undiscounted cash flows, their balances will not necessarily agree with the amounts 
disclosed in the balance sheet.

  PAYABLES TO INTEREST BEARING EXPECTED FUTURE  TOTAL 
 TRADE RELATED PARTIES LOANS AND INTEREST  FINANCIAL 
2008 PAYABLES AND ASSOCIATES BORROWINGS PAYMENTS DERIVATIVES LIABILITIES

Due within one year 173.8 42.1 38.5 32.8 0.2 287.4

Due between one and four years – – 157.5 125.0 – 282.5

Due after four years – – 515.4 100.8 10.4 626.6

 173.8 42.1 711.4 258.6 10.6 1,196.5

  PAYABLES TO INTEREST BEARING EXPECTED  FUTURE  TOTAL 
 TRADE RELATED PARTIES LOANS AND INTEREST  FINANCIAL 
2007 PAYABLES AND ASSOCIATES BORROWINGS PAYMENTS DERIVATIVES LIABILITIES

Due within one year 133.5 10.9 28.4 25.1 0.5 198.4

Due between one and four years – – 51.3 85.2 – 136.5

Due after four years – – 437.1 70.4 – 507.5

 133.5 10.9 516.8 180.7 0.5 842.4

37 CURRENCY RISK

The Group is exposed to currency risk on sales, purchase and borrowings that are denominated in a currency other than the respective functional currencies of 
Group entities.

(I) foRWARd EXCHANGE CoNtRACtS
The Group is exposed to exchange rate transaction risk on foreign currency sales, purchases and loans to related entities. The most significant exchange rate 
risk is US dollar receipts by Australian and non‑US entities. When required, hedging is undertaken through transactions entered into in the foreign exchange 
markets. Forward exchange contracts have been used for hedging purposes. Forward exchange contracts are generally accounted for as cash flow hedges.

At balance date, the details of outstanding contracts were:
 WEIGHTED AVERAGE  AMOUNT AMOUNT 
CONTRACTS MATURING DURING THE SIX MONTHS ENDED EXCHANGE RATE RECEIVABLE/(PAYABLE) RECEIVABLE/(PAYABLE)

 2008 2007 2008 2008 2007 2007 
   $’M $’M $’M $’M

31 December 2007 contracts to
Buy AUD and sell USD – 0.77 – – AUD 23.8 USD (18.4)
Buy AUD and sell CAD – 0.91 – – AUD 39.5 CAD (35.6)
Buy CAD and sell USD – 0.93 – – CAD (2.5) USD (2.4)
Buy SGD and sell USD – 0.66 – – SGD 0.6 USD (0.4)
Buy SGD and sell GBP – 0.34 – – SGD 1.7 GBP (0.6)
30 June 2008 contracts to
Buy AUD and sell USD – 0.78 – – AUD 19.7 USD (15.4)
Buy CAD and sell USD – 0.93 – – CAD 0.9 USD (0.8)
31 December 2008 contracts to
Buy AUD and sell USD 0.83 0.77 AUD 22.5 USD (18.6) AUD 3.0 USD (2.3)
Buy SGD and sell USD 0.73 – SGD 5.5 USD (4.0) – –
Buy SGD and sell GBP 0.38 – SGD 2.7 GBP (1.0) – –
Buy GBP and sell AUD 2.06 – GBP 0.8 AUD (1.6) – –
Buy SGD and sell AUD 0.77 – SGD 6.5 AUD (5.0) – –
Buy AUD and sell EUR 0.61 – AUD 2.6 EUR (1.6) – –
Buy USD and sell EUR 0.66 – USD 4.0 EUR (2.6) – –
Buy KWD and sell USD 3.78 – KWD 1.0 USD (3.8) – –
Buy USD and sell AUD 0.94 – USD 3.1 AUD (3.3) – –
30 June 2009 contracts to
Buy AUD and sell USD 0.77 – AUD 15.0 USD (11.5) – –
Buy USD and sell EUR 0.66 – USD 2.0 EUR (1.3) – –
31 December 2009 contracts to
Buy AUD and sell USD 0.74 – AUD 3.4 USD (2.5) – –

These contracts are economically hedging anticipated future receipts and 
sales. To the extent they satisfy hedge accounting criteria, any unrealised 
gains and losses on the contracts, together with the cost of the contracts, 
are deferred and will be recognised in the measurement of the underlying 
transaction provided the underlying transaction is still expected to occur as 
originally designated. Included in the amounts deferred are any gains and 
losses on hedging contracts terminated prior to maturity where the related 
hedged transaction is still expected to occur as designated.

The gains and losses at balance date were:
  CONSOLIDATED

    2008 2007 
    $’M $’M

Ineffective accounting hedge – unrealised gains  5.3 –

Effective hedge – unrealised gains   0.6 3.5

Effective hedge – unrealised losses   (0.2) (0.5)

Net unrealised gains, pre‑tax   5.7 3.0
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(IV) CuRRENCy SENSItIVIty ANAlySIS
A 10% weakening of the Australian dollar against the following currencies at 
30 June 2008 would have increased/(decreased) equity and profit or loss by 
the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that all other variables, in 
particular interest rates, remain constant. The analysis is performed on the 
same basis for 2007.

  CONSOLIDATED

    EQUITY PROFIT 
2008    $’M $’M

Effect in millions of Aud

CAD    – (0.1)

GBP    – 0.7

USD    – 4.8

Other    – 2.5

2007

Effect in millions of Aud

CAD    – (0.1)

GBP    – (2.6)

USD    – 4.0

Other    – 2.5

A 10% strengthening of the Australian dollar against the above currencies at 
30 June would have had the equal but opposite effect on the above 
currencies to the amounts shown above, on the basis that all other variables 
remain constant.

The following significant exchange rates applied during the year:

 AVERAGE REPORTING DATE 
 EXCHANGE RATE SPOT EXCHANGE RATE

  2008 2007 2008 2007

CAD  0.9056 0.8883 0.9680 0.8966

GBP  0.4478 0.4061 0.4860 0.4227

USD  0.8963 0.7826 0.9595 0.8465

(II) CRoSS CuRRENCy SWAPS
The Group uses cross currency swaps to hedge its currency risk, most with a maturity of less than one year from the reporting date.

At balance date, the details of cross currency swaps were:

 WEIGHTED AVERAGE  AMOUNT AMOUNT 
 EXCHANGE RATE RECEIVABLE/(PAYABLE) RECEIVABLE/(PAYABLE)

 2008 2007 2008 2008 2007 2007 
   $’M $’M $’M $’M

Contracts to buy USD and sell CAD

Maturing 30 April 2018 1.00 – USD 144.5 CAD (144.5) – –

The following gains and losses have been deferred at balance date:

  CONSOLIDATED

    2008 2007 
    $’M $’M

Cross currency swap hedge receivable    1.3 –

Fair value loss on mark to market of cross currency hedge (effective hedge)    (10.4) –

Net unrealised loss, pre‑tax    (9.1) –

(III) CoNSolIdAtEd foREIGN CuRRENCy RISK EXPoSuRE
The Group’s year end balance sheet exposure to foreign currency risk was as follows, based on notional amounts. The following are financial assets and liabilities 
(unhedged amounts) in currencies other than the functional currency of the entity in which they are recorded.

2008   CAD1 GBP1 USD1 OTHER2

Cash and cash equivalents   0.3 3.3 30.8 13.0

Trade receivables and unbilled contract revenue   3.8 9.9 115.7 31.8

Derivative assets   – – 5.2 –

Trade payables   5.9 8.4 47.7 19.1

Gross balance sheet exposure   (1.8) 4.8 104.0 25.7

2007

Cash and cash equivalents   (1.2) 5.9 26.8 12.2

Trade receivables   0.6 3.0 68.2 45.0

Trade payables   0.2 24.5 46.3 21.6

Gross balance sheet exposure   (0.8) (15.6) 48.7 35.6

1 Represented in currency million as indicated.

2 All other currencies are in AUD million at the relevant year end spot rate.

The parent entity does not have significant exposure to movements in foreign currency and hence this is not separately shown.



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS For the Financial Year Ended 30 June 2008

62     WorleyParsons Annual Report 2008

38 INTEREST RATE RISK

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will affect the Group’s income or value of its holdings of financial instruments.

(I) CoNSolIdAtEd INtERESt RAtE RISK EXPoSuRES
The Group’s exposure to interest rate risk and the effective weighted average interest rate by maturity periods is set out in the following table:

 FIXED INTEREST MATURING IN:

 WEIGHTED          
 AVERAGE FLOATING       NON‑  
 INTEREST INTEREST 1 YEAR 1 TO 2 TO 3 TO 4 TO MORE THAN INTEREST  
 RATE RATE OR LESS 2 YEARS 3 YEARS 4 YEARS 5 YEARS 5 YEARS BEARING TOTAL 
AS AT 30 JUNE 2008  % PA $’M $’M $’M $’M $’M $’M $’M $’M $’M

fINANCIAl ASSEtS

Cash and cash equivalent 2.3 82.2 – – – – – – – 82.2

Trade receivables and unbilled contract revenue – – – – – – – – 1,109.1 1,109.1

Amounts owing by related parties and associates – – – – – – – – 60.2 60.2

Derivatives – – – – – – – – 7.2 7.2

Total financial assets – 82.2 – – – – – – 1,176.5 1,258.7

fINANCIAl lIABIlItIES

Bank overdraft 4.8 9.7 – – – – – – – 9.7

Bank loans 3.4 175.6 9.9 – – – – – – 185.5

Notes payable 5.7 41.7 – – – – – 473.7 – 515.4

Other interest bearing loans and borrowings – – 0.7 0.1 – – – – – 0.8

Trade payables – – – – – – – – 173.8 173.8

Payables to related parties and associates – – – – – – – – 42.1 42.1

Derivatives – – – – – – – – 10.6 10.6

Interests rate swap – (23.1) 1.1 1.1 1.2 1.3 1.4 17.0 – –

Total financial liabilities – 203.9 11.7 1.2 1.2 1.3 1.4 490.7 226.5 937.9

Net financial assets          320.8

 FIXED INTEREST MATURING IN:

 WEIGHTED          
 AVERAGE FLOATING       NON‑  
 INTEREST INTEREST 1 YEAR 1 TO 2 TO 3 TO 4 TO MORE THAN INTEREST  
 RATE RATE OR LESS 2 YEARS 3 YEARS 4 YEARS 5 YEARS 5 YEARS BEARING TOTAL 
AS AT 30 JUNE 2007  % PA $’M $’M $’M $’M $’M $’M $’M $’M $’M

fINANCIAl ASSEtS

Cash and deposits 3.4 118.6 – – – – – – – 118.6

Trade receivables and unbilled contract revenue – – – – – – – – 744.6 744.6

Amounts owing by related parties and associates – – – – – – – – 47.4 47.4

Derivatives – – – – – – – – 5.0 5.0

Finance lease receivable – – 1.0 1.1 1.1 1.2 1.3 26.8 – 32.5

Total financial assets – 118.6 1.0 1.1 1.1 1.2 1.3 26.8 797.0 948.1

fINANCIAl lIABIlItIES

Bank overdraft 6.5 10.6 – – – – – – – 10.6

Bank loans 5.6 83.7 10.4 – – – – – – 94.1

Notes payable 5.7 47.3 – – – – – 366.2 – 413.5

Other interest bearing loans and borrowings – – 0.5 0.3 – – – – – 0.8

Trade and other payables – – – – – – – – 133.5 133.5

Payables to related parties and associates – – – – – – – – 10.9 10.9

Derivatives – – – – – – – – 0.5 0.5

Interest rate swap – (24.0) 1.0 1.0 1.1 1.2 1.3 18.4 – –

Total financial liabilities – 117.6 11.9 1.3 1.1 1.2 1.3 384.6 144.9 663.9

Net financial assets          284.2
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Parent entity interest rate risk
The parent entity financial assets and liabilities, with the exception of cash 
and cash equivalents in the current year and bank overdraft in the prior year, 
are non‑interest bearing. The weighted average interest rate for cash and 
cash equivalents in 2008 was 6.25% and for bank overdraft in 2007 was 
9.75%.

Interest rate swap contracts
Exmouth Power Station Pty Limited, 100% owned by a wholly owned 
subsidiary of WorleyParsons, is contracted to build and operate the Exmouth 
Power Station and has drawn down on a loan facility which currently has a 
variable interest rate of 5.89% per annum. It is policy to protect part of the 
loan from exposure to increasing interest rates. Accordingly, the consolidated 
entity has entered into interest rate swap contracts under which it is obliged 
to receive interest at variable rates and to pay interest at fixed rates. The 
contracts are settled on a net basis and the net amount receivable or payable 
at the reporting date is included in other receivables or other payables.

The contracts require settlement of net interest receivable or payable 
six monthly. The settlement dates coincide with the dates on which interest 
is payable on the underlying debt.

Swaps currently in place cover approximately 97.5% (2007: 97.5%) of 
the loan principal outstanding and are timed to expire as each loan 
repayment falls due. The fixed interest rate is 5.89% per annum 
(2007: 5.89% per annum).

At 30 June 2008, the notional principal amounts and periods of expiry of the 
interest rate swap contracts were as follows:

  CONSOLIDATED

    2008 2007 
    $’M $’M

Less than one year    1.1 1.0

Later than one year but not later than five years  5.0 4.6

Later than five years    17.0 18.4

    23.1 24.0

As these contracts are hedging anticipated future receipts and sales, any 
unrealised gains and losses on the contracts, together with the cost of the 
contracts, are deferred and will be recognised in the measurement of the 
underlying transaction provided the underlying transaction is still expected 
to occur as originally designated. Included in the amounts deferred are any 
gains and losses on hedging contracts terminated prior to maturity where the 
related hedged transaction is still expected to occur as designated. These 
contracts have been accounted for as cash flow hedges.

(II) CASH floW SENSItIVIty ANAlySIS foR VARIABlE INtERESt BEARING 
ASSEtS ANd lIABIlItIES
A change of 100 basis points in interest rates at the reporting date would have 
increased/(decreased) equity and profit or loss by the amounts shown below. 
This analysis assumes that all other variables, in particular foreign currency 
rates, remain constant. The analysis is performed on the same basis for 2007.

 EQUITY PROFIT

  100BP 100BP 100BP 100BP 
2008  INCREASE DECREASE INCREASE DECREASE

Effect in millions of Aud

Variable rate instruments  – – (1.5) 1.5

Interest rate swaps  0.1 (0.1) – –

Cash and overdraft  – – 0.5 (0.5)

Cash flow sensitivity (net)  0.1 (0.1) (1.0) 1.0

2007

Effect in millions of Aud

Variable rate instruments  – – (0.9) 0.9

Interest rate swaps  0.1 (0.1) – –

Cash and overdraft  – – 0.8 (0.8)

Cash flow sensitivity (net)  0.1 (0.1) (0.1) 0.1

The Parent Entity does not have significant variable interest bearing assets 
and liabilities and the Board does not believe that there is a significant risk to 
Parent Entity cashflows from interest rate movements.

39 FAIR VALUES

fAIR VAluES VERSuS CARRyING AmouNtS
The fair values of financial assets and liabilities, together with the carrying 
amounts shown in the balance sheet, are as follows:
 2008 2007

  CARRYING  CARRYING 
  AMOUNT FAIR VALUE AMOUNT FAIR VALUE 
  $’M $’M $’M $’M

Consolidated
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents  82.2 82.2 118.6 118.6
Trade receivables and  
unbilled contract revenue  1,109.1 1,109.1 744.6 744.6
Amounts owing by related  
parties and associates  60.2 60.2 47.4 47.4
Derivatives  7.2 7.2 5.0 5.0
Finance lease receivable  – – 32.5 32.5
Liabilities
Interest bearing loans and  
borrowings  711.4 751.3 516.8 514.0
Trade payables  173.8 173.8 133.5 133.5
Payables to related parties  
and associates  42.1 42.1 10.9 10.9
Derivatives  10.6 10.6 0.5 0.5

  320.8 280.9 286.4 289.2

Parent Entity
Assets
Cash and cash equivalents  5.3 5.3 – –
Amounts owing by related  
parties and associates  340.7 340.7 187.6 187.6
Liabilities
Trade and other payables  0.5 0.5 7.7 7.7
Interest bearing loans and  
borrowings  – – 2.4 2.4

  345.5 345.5 177.5 177.5

The basis for determining fair values is disclosed in note 2(AB). The 2008 fair 
value of interest bearing loans and borrowings primarily reflects the 
reduction in US interest rates.
 CONSOLIDATED PARENT

  2008 2007 2008 2007  
  $’M $’M $’M $’M

RECoNCIlIAtIoN of NEt fINANCIAl ASSEtS/(lIABIlItIES) to NEt ASSEtS
Net financial assets/(liabilities) 320.8 285.4 345.5 177.5
Non‑financial assets and liabilities:
Other receivables  47.9 29.1 0.2 0.3
Inventories  0.4 0.9 – –
Prepayments  51.7 25.1 – –
Assets held for sale  59.0 – – –
Equity accounted associates 91.8 86.2 – –
Property, plant and equipment 81.7 63.3 – –
Intangible assets  1,562.4 1,487.9 – –
Other assets  63.9 44.7 1,063.0 1,064.9
Provisions  (274.2) (245.5) (27.4) –
Liabilities held for sale  (27.4) – – –
Deferred tax liabilities  (124.9) (100.4) – –
Other liabilities  (436.6) (289.0) – (0.7)

Net assets per balance sheet 1,416.5 1,387.7 1,381.3 1,242.0

40 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

No other matter or circumstance has arisen since 30 June 2008 that has 
significantly affected, or may significantly affect:

(i)	 the	consolidated	entity’s	operations	in	future	financial	years;	or

(ii)	 the	results	of	those	operations	in	future	financial	years;	or

(iii) the consolidated entity’s state of affairs in future financial years.
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In accordance with a resolution of the Directors of WorleyParsons Limited, we state that:

(1) in the opinion of the Directors:

 (a)  the financial report and the additional disclosures included in the Directors’ Report designated as audited, of the Company and of the consolidated 
entity, are in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001, including:

  (i)  giving a true and fair view of the Company’s and consolidated entity’s financial position as at 30 June 2008 and of their performance for the 
financial	year	ended	on	that	date;	and

  (ii) complying with Accounting Standards and the Corporations Regulations 2001;	and

	 (b)	 there	are	reasonable	grounds	to	believe	that	the	Company	will	be	able	to	pay	its	debts	as	and	when	they	become	due	and	payable;

(2)  this declaration has been made after receiving the declarations required to be made to the directors in accordance with section 295A of the Corporations 
Act 2001	for	the	financial	year	ended	30	June	2008;	and

(3)  in the opinion of the directors, as at the date of this declaration, there are reasonable grounds to believe that the members of the Closed Group in note 23 
will be able to meet any obligations or liabilities to which they are or may become subject, by virtue of the Deed of Cross Guarantee.

On behalf of the Board

RON McNEILLY

Chairman

Sydney, 19 August 2008

Directors’ Declaration
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Shareholder Information

TOP 20 HOLDERS OF FULLY PAID ORDINARY SHARES AS AT 11 AUGUST 2008

NAME SHARES % OF ISSUED CAPITAL RANK

HSBC Custody Nominees (Australia) Limited 42,241,222 17.45 1

Wilaci Pty Limited 28,306,982 11.69 2

JP Morgan Nominees Australia Limited 22,346,069 9.23 3

National Nominees Limited 20,618,887 8.52 4

UBS Wealth Management Australia Nominees Pty Limited 15,123,501 6.25 5

Lujeta Pty Limited 9,990,000 4.13 6

Behana Pty Limited 6,165,262 2.55 7

ANZ Nominees Limited (Cash Income A/C) 6,066,298 2.51 8

Citicorp Nominees Pty Limited 5,858,172 2.42 9

Skiptan Pty Limited 4,577,590 1.89 10

Queensland Investment Corporation 3,887,865 1.61 11

John Grill 3,399,500 1.40 12

Cogent Nominees Pty Limited 2,053,337 0.85 13

Taylor Square Designs Pty Limited 1,547,997 0.64 14

Inmac Engineering Pty Limited 1,500,000 0.62 15

Benke Engineering Consultants Limited 1,177,475 0.49 16

UBS Nominees Pty Limited 1,117,116 0.46 17

Evenrose Pty Limited 1,053,136 0.44 18

Fleet Nominees Pty Limited 1,049,671 0.43 19

French Consulting Pty Limited 1,000,000 0.41 20

Total 179,080,080 73.99 

Total number of current holders for all named classes is 19,335.

The table above includes exchangeable shares. The ASX treats these exchangeable shares as having been converted into ordinary shares of the Company at 
the time of their issue for the purposes of the ASX Listing Rules.

SUBSTANTIAL HOLDERS OF 5% OR MORE OF FULLY PAID ORDINARY SHARES AS AT 12 AUGUST 2008*

NAME  NOTICE DATE SHARES

John Grill and associated companies  11 Aug 2008 33,102,629

Lujeta Pty Ltd and related companies  12 Aug 2008 23,300,000

* As disclosed in substantial shareholder notices received by the Company.

RANGE OF FULLY PAID ORDINARY SHARES AS AT 11 AUGUST 2008

  1 TO 1,000 1,001 TO 5,000 5,001 TO 10,000 10,001 TO 100,000 100,001 TO (MAX) TOTAL

Holders

Cert  – 1 1 18 32 52

Issuer  1,032 549 96 98 34 1,809

CHESS  12,437 4,206 435 330 68 17,474

Total  13,469 4,754 532 446 134 19,335

Shares

Cert  – 4,293 9,450 985,077 8,974,999 9,973,819

Issuer  482,836 1,204,398 694,825 2,779,106 45,539,795 50,700,960

CHESS  5,199,681 8,840,578 3,028,647 9,334,254 155,003,880 181,407,040

Total  5,682,517 10,049,269 3,732,922 13,098,437 209,518,674 242,081,819

Total holders for classes selected       19,335

Total shares       242,081,819

The number of shareholders holding less than the marketable parcel of shares is 65 (shares: 628).

The table above includes exchangeable shares. The ASX treats these exchangeable shares to have been converted into ordinary shares of the Company at the 
time of their issue for the purposes of the ASX Listing Rules.

VOTING RIGHTS

All ordinary shares carry one vote per share without restriction. In the case of the exchangeable shares, voting rights are provided through the special voting 
share which carries an aggregate number of votes equal to the number of votes attached to the ordinary shares into which the exchangeable shares are 
exchangeable.
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WorleyParsons Limited

ACN 096 090 158

DIRECTORS

Ron McNeilly (Chairman)

Grahame Campbell

Erich Fraunschiel

John Green

John Grill (Chief Executive Officer)

Eric Gwee

William Hall

David Housego

Catherine Livingstone, AO

Larry Benke (alternate executive director for William Hall)

COMPANY SECRETARY

Sharon Sills

REGISTERED OFFICE

Level 7
116 Miller Street
North Sydney NSW 2060

AUDITORS

Ernst	&	Young

BANKERS

HSBC

JPMorgan Chase

Royal Bank of Scotland

Westpac Banking Corporation

Commonwealth Bank of Australia

Royal Bank of Canada

LAWYERS

Freehills

Baker	&	McKenzie

SHARE REGISTRY

Computershare Investor Services Pty Limited
Level 3
60 Carrington Street
Sydney NSW 2000
Australia
Ph: 1300 855 080
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